
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




Class of 2020 Parents, Guardians, and Students: 
 
Over the past several weeks, we have considered many different formats to recognize and celebrate the 
achievements of the Class of 2020. One thing that we have consistently heard is the importance of 
students walking across the stage to receive their diplomas in front of their families. While we may not be 
able to gather as a large group, we want to make sure that every student and family member has the 
opportunity to share this special moment together. In order to safely do this while following social 
distancing guidelines, NRW will be asking students to sign up for a time to come to the high school from 
June 8-11. The link will be emailed to seniors, posted on the district website, and can be found here: 
bit.ly/NRW2020Grad 
 
To help ensure that this process runs as smoothly as possible, we have established some 
guidelines and procedures that must be followed so that we can accommodate all students and as 
many family members as possible to witness each individual ceremony. Please read the 
following information carefully and, if you have any questions, feel free to reach out directly to 
me.  
 
Students and families will park in the lot to the west of the high school. They will enter the 
building by the music and art rooms, which will be labeled. Volunteers will also be there to 
assist. Students will wait on the side of the stage while family members make their way down to 
the pit area in front of the stage to watch the ceremony. Due to the unique circumstances we find 
ourselves in this year, we are able to offer parents the special opportunity to present their student 
with their diploma on the stage. If parents choose to do this, they will be directed where to stand 
upon entering the auditorium. Student names will be announced as they would be in normal 
circumstances, they will cross the stage, and will be handed their diploma. Students and family 
members will then exit out the other side of the auditorium. Once outside of the auditorium, 
students will be able to record a brief, 20-30 second video if they would like to leave a message 
for their teachers or classmates.  
 
Additional important information: 


• Cap and Gown: Your cap and gown will be delivered to you the week before the 
ceremony. Students may decorate the top of their cap if they wish.  


• Family size: Due to social distancing and group gathering guidelines, families will be 
limited to a maximum of six (6) people at each students’ individual ceremony. 


• Seating: There will be no seating at the ceremony. Family members will be asked to 
stand in the pit area in front of the stage for the ceremony.  


• Attire: Students should dress appropriately for a graduation ceremony underneath their 
graduation gown. Collared shirts, dress pants, dresses, and dress shoes are some examples 
of what would be appropriate for the occasion. 


• Stoles: Students who are members of NHS will be provided a stole upon entering the 
building. The stole should be returned immediately after exiting the stage.  


• Process: Please watch the short video found on the high school website under the “Class 
of 2020” page to see what the flow of traffic will look like so that each individual 
ceremony goes smoothly.  


 
Please understand that we have over 21 hours of individual ceremonies to conduct throughout the 
week. It is extremely important to stick to the time slots that students sign up for ahead of time 







and that ceremonies are punctual so that we do not have a backup of students and families 
waiting in their cars.   
 
After each individual ceremony is held, the district will compile the footage, along with speeches 
and other regular graduation ceremony elements into one video. This video will be broadcast on 
the North Rose-Wolcott Central School District Facebook page (@NRWCSD) and the NRW PR 
YouTube channel on Friday, June 26 at 6 p.m., allowing everyone to witness it “together” for the 
first time. A link to the video will be available on the district website, www.nrwcs.org. A USB 
containing the ceremony will also be mailed home to seniors after it has been premiered.  
 
Our goal is to provide a special and memorable experience for graduating seniors and their 
families. A tremendous amount of hard work has gone into this accomplishment, and we want to 
provide the setting for each family to celebrate that with their student. If you have any questions 
about graduation or other senior items, please feel free to reach out to me at (315) 594-3100 ext. 
4414 or sbradley@nrwcs.org. I look forward to recognizing each student as they graduate from 
North Rose-Wolcott High School. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Scott Bradley 
NRWHS Principal 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



http://www.nrwcs.org/

mailto:sbradley@nrwcs.org





Dear Parent/Guardian: 
 
This message is to communicate information about the end of the school year and other 
associated regular events for students and families at NRW High School. Due to the COVID-19 
closure, which caused the cancellation of NYS Regents Exams and the elimination of spring 
recess, the original 2019-20 academic calendar has been adjusted. The last day for students at the 
high school will be Friday, June 12. Teachers will have the option to use that final week for 
enrichment or re-teaching content, depending on the needs of the students in their classes.  
 
Teachers will submit final grades by June 17 using the grading system that was previously 
communicated. After that, the counseling staff will reach out to parents/guardians for any 
students who should attend summer school to complete registrations.  
 
Additionally, the high school plans to hold its annual Awards Night and “Moving up Day” 
ceremonies conjunctively via a virtual ceremony on June 16 at 6:00pm. The ceremony will be 
broadcast as a “premier” event on Facebook and will also be available to go back and watch 
afterwards on the NRW district Facebook page.  
 
Finally, information about graduation is forthcoming shortly. It will be communicated separately 
due to the extent of the information.  
 
I recognize the challenges that everyone has encountered during the COVID-19 school closure. 
The NRW teachers and staff are extremely thankful for all of the partnerships with parents and 
families during this time to help provide instruction and opportunities to connect with students. 
Please do not hesitate to reach out directly to me with any questions or concerns at (315) 594-
3100 ext. 4414 or sbradley@nrwcs.org. 
 
Take care, 
 
 
Scott Bradley 
NRWHS Principal 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



mailto:sbradley@nrwcs.org





North Rose-Wolcott Learning Community: 
 
The purpose of this letter is to help provide clarity on what will be in place for the conclusion of 
the 2019-2020 school year in terms of grading and awarding course credit.  
 
Our committee has systematically worked through a three-phased approach to develop a means 
to fairly and flexibly assign grades for the remainder of the 2019-2020 school year, while 
working to maintain accountability and the integrity of our academic programs. The three phases 
are reviewed below: 
 
Phase I – Grading individual assignments and entering grades into School Tool. 
Phase II – Determining grades for Quarter 4. 
Phase III – Determining final grades for all courses. 
 
On April 20th, we began distributing work that focused on new learning. You are aware that 
grades for Quarter 3 were entered into School Tool and students received a grade of Exemplary, 
Satisfactory, or Needs Improvement. Assignments that were not attempted will be indicated with 
a code of Missing.  
   
Phase II – Determining grades for Quarter 4 
Unlike Quarter 3, all teaching and learning has occurred outside of a traditional classroom. To 
maintain consistency and because parents and students have gained comfort with the E, S, and N 
grading of assignments, we will continue to use this grading system for the marking period. At 
the conclusion of Quarter 4 all students we will receive a letter grade to reflect their 4th quarter 
learning. This will be accompanied by comments from each teacher.  
 
Phase III – Determining final grades for all courses 
At the conclusion of the 2019-2020 school year, teachers will holistically assign a grade of Pass 
(course credit earned) or X (course credit not earned). The families of students that did not 
receive course credit will work with teachers and building administration to remedy the situation. 
 
If you have any questions or concerns please contact Principal Scott Bradley 
(sbradley@nrwcs.org) or Assistant Principal Jason Shetler (jshetler@nrwcs.org). 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Scott Bradley 
NRWHS Principal 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Athletic and Academic Awards 
 
The high school will be presenting two separate virtual awards nights – an Athletic Awards 
Night and an Academic Awards Night. The Academic Awards presentation will be aired on June 
19th at 6pm. The Athletic Awards night is still waiting to be finalized. These ceremonies will 
feature the awards that are typically given at their respective evenings and will be an opportunity 
to recognize the achievements of students this year.  
 
 
Cap and Gown Delivery 
 
Teachers will be delivering graduation caps and gowns to seniors at their home on Friday, June 
5. A group of teachers have volunteered to spend the afternoon making these special deliveries. 
It is the beginning of the graduation celebration that will continue into the following week as 
each student has their individual ceremony.  
 
 
Senior Recognition 
 
News 8 is honoring Rochester area high school seniors by hosting a 1 hour primetime graduation 
celebration on June 16th at 8pm.  During this special, they will highlight the names and schools 
of local graduates.  Seniors were given the information to submit their photo to be included in the 
recognition. Currently, at least ten NRW students have submitted photos, which can be found at 
https://www.rochesterfirst.com/honor-roll-senior-salute/#/gallery. 
 
 



https://www.rochesterfirst.com/honor-roll-senior-salute/#/gallery






 


 


 
 


BOE Report 
June 9th, 2020 


Kellie Marciano, Director of Special Education and Pupil Personnel Services 


 
State Reporting-  
Indicator 13: Secondary Transition Update 
WFL BOCES Transition Specialists have been supporting us with this work.  We have selected 10 IEPs to review.  With the preliminary review, the area the staff 
needs support in writing transition statements is the transition statement.  With support of BOCES, the staff has received training, and will continue to receive 
training to make these statements compliant.  I will work with staff to review this information and apply it to all IEPs.  
Indicator 14: Post-School Outcomes Update 
Our seniors who are students with disabilities will participate in a survey after graduation that looks at what students are doing after high school.  Our students 
have been mailed letters that explain the survey.  The letter also gives an option to opt out.   
Disproportionality Self Review 
We will be completing a self review on Jun 8th looking at suspensions of students with disabilities.  We will report our findings as well and create an action plan 
to support our students with disabilities.  We have started a lot of this work this year with Function Based Thinking, Restorative Practices, and Responsive 
Classroom.  We will continue this work next year.  
 
Hiring- We have had several staff members interested in our Extended School Year Program.  We have been able to shift a few members interested into working 
with the summer program as well.  This year we are hoping to offer special education support in both programs.  Extended School Year will still be focussed on 
students who showed regression during the December and February breaks.  I anticipate needing 2-3 special education teachers for this program and 1 teaching 
assistant.  I am waiting on final numbers and for parents to express their desire for involvement this summer.  
 
For the fall, we are not currently anticipating any new hires in the special education department.  
 
Professional Development- 
● Special education staff and our English as a Second Language teachers have been participating in a wide range of professional development.  This time 
has allowed staff to take professional development targeted on writing quality IEPs, strategies for ELL students, transition statements in IEPs, Function Based 
Thinking, how to support students in crisis, and much more.  Staff has shared their documents with me and I have shared them on our Special Ed/ELL google 
classroom.  There has been a great collaborative approach and sharing of materials and ideas among the staff.  







 


 


● I have worked with the assistant principals and psychologists this month on attending a 3 day  training on Function Based Thinking.  Our plan to move 
forward is to meet over the summer and determine how to implement the approach.  The goal with this will be to determine what the function of student’s 
behavior is and create targeted interventions and replacement behaviors. This will decrease our office discipline referrals and teach behavior to students.   
● We have been able to attend the Midwest PBIS professional development the week of June 1st.  The teams from each building have attended different 
sessions from the Language of MTSS to Administration and MTSS.  It has been a time for us to refine our thinking and skills, as well as create action plans around 
our Tiered Fidelity Inventory.   
● We continue to meet as a consortium on Trauma, Illness, and Grief (TIG).  The TIG training has been focused around how to support students and staff 
during this pandemic and crisis.  We have an all day training coming up on June 5th that is titled “How Schools Can Respond to a National Mental Health Crisis in 
the Wake of COVID-19”.  The hope of this will be to have actional items we can bring back to the district as a TIG team and begin to support creating plans for 
our re-entry.  
 
Special Education and Covid-19 
● We are continuing to hold CSE Annual Reviews, and have started having initial eligibility meetings as well.  The parents have been attending 
more of the meetings via zoom, or on speaker phone.  The case managers have been doing a great job reaching out to families and helping them 
connect to zoom before the meeting is scheduled, as well as sending reminders to the parents.  Through this time our relationships with families 
have become stronger, and we have been able to connect to more families.  They feel very much part of our team.  Parents who are unable to 
attend a meeting, the case manager has called after the meeting and will go over the plan for the student.  Families have been really supportive 
and understanding during this unprecedented time.   
 
Parent Participation for Meetings occurring during April 
Committee on Special Education Meetings- 67% for CSE and 58% for CPSE (all meetings held during the closure have been via zoom.  Parents have participated 
or followed up with a staff member after the zoom meeting if they have had questions.  Parents are accessing the zoom meeting successfully or we are calling 
them and having them on speaker phone so they can participate).   
 
CSE:  


CSE 5/6/20 2 out of 3 attended 


CSE 5/8/20 1 out of 1 attended 


CSE 5/15/20 1 out of 3 attended  







 


 


CSE 5/20/20 3 out of 5 attended 


CSE 5/27/20 5 out of 7 attended  


CSE 6/2/20 2 out of 2 attended 


CPSE:  


CPSE 5/26/20 3 out of 5 attended 


CPSE 5/28/20 2 out of 5 attended  


CPSE 6/2/20 2 out of 2 attended  


English Language Learners 
Current number of students enrolled:  31 
 
Student Movement- 5/5/2020-6/3/2020 


Special Education CPSE CSE 504 


New referrals  0 1 0 


Declassified  0 0 0 


Moved in  0 0 0 


Moved out  0 1 0 


Work placements (1/2 days- Key Industries, Cracker Box Palace)  1  


BOCES placements (some students with work placements & school)  20* 


Consortium placements (at other districts)  2  


Consortium placements (at NR-W)  1  







 


 


Approved Private School placement  3  


*This number has shifted due to Office of Mental Health placing one of our students in a residential facility.  Movement to expect for the 2020-2021 school year will be:  


-One student moving from a consortium placement to WFL BOCES Placement (our consortium placement number will go from 2 to 1) 


-Two students waiting approval at a WFL BOCES placement  


-One student finalizing paperwork on acceptance to Monroe #1 BOCES 


-One student waiting on acceptance to a program.  





		BOE Report

		June 9th, 2020

		Kellie Marciano, Director of Special Education and Pupil Personnel Services

		State Reporting-

		Indicator 13: Secondary Transition Update

		WFL BOCES Transition Specialists have been supporting us with this work.  We have selected 10 IEPs to review.  With the preliminary review, the area the staff needs support in writing transition statements is the transition statement.  With support of...

		Indicator 14: Post-School Outcomes Update

		Our seniors who are students with disabilities will participate in a survey after graduation that looks at what students are doing after high school.  Our students have been mailed letters that explain the survey.  The letter also gives an option to o...

		Disproportionality Self Review

		We will be completing a self review on Jun 8th looking at suspensions of students with disabilities.  We will report our findings as well and create an action plan to support our students with disabilities.  We have started a lot of this work this yea...

		Hiring- We have had several staff members interested in our Extended School Year Program.  We have been able to shift a few members interested into working with the summer program as well.  This year we are hoping to offer special education support in...

		For the fall, we are not currently anticipating any new hires in the special education department.

		Professional Development-

		● Special education staff and our English as a Second Language teachers have been participating in a wide range of professional development.  This time has allowed staff to take professional development targeted on writing quality IEPs, strategies for...

		● I have worked with the assistant principals and psychologists this month on attending a 3 day  training on Function Based Thinking.  Our plan to move forward is to meet over the summer and determine how to implement the approach.  The goal with this...

		● We have been able to attend the Midwest PBIS professional development the week of June 1st.  The teams from each building have attended different sessions from the Language of MTSS to Administration and MTSS.  It has been a time for us to refine our...

		● We continue to meet as a consortium on Trauma, Illness, and Grief (TIG).  The TIG training has been focused around how to support students and staff during this pandemic and crisis.  We have an all day training coming up on June 5th that is titled “...

		Special Education and Covid-19

		● We are continuing to hold CSE Annual Reviews, and have started having initial eligibility meetings as well.  The parents have been attending more of the meetings via zoom, or on speaker phone.  The case managers have been doing a great job reaching ...

		Parent Participation for Meetings occurring during April

		Committee on Special Education Meetings- 67% for CSE and 58% for CPSE (all meetings held during the closure have been via zoom.  Parents have participated or followed up with a staff member after the zoom meeting if they have had questions.  Parents a...

		CSE:

		CSE 5/6/20 2 out of 3 attended

		CSE 5/8/20 1 out of 1 attended

		CSE 5/15/20 1 out of 3 attended

		CSE 5/20/20 3 out of 5 attended

		CSE 5/27/20 5 out of 7 attended

		CSE 6/2/20 2 out of 2 attended

		CPSE:

		CPSE 5/26/20 3 out of 5 attended

		CPSE 5/28/20 2 out of 5 attended

		CPSE 6/2/20 2 out of 2 attended

		English Language Learners

		Current number of students enrolled:  31

		Student Movement- 5/5/2020-6/3/2020

		Special Education CPSE CSE 504

		New referrals  0 1 0

		Declassified  0 0 0

		Moved in  0 0 0

		Moved out  0 1 0

		Work placements (1/2 days- Key Industries, Cracker Box Palace)  1

		BOCES placements (some students with work placements & school)  20*

		Consortium placements (at other districts)  2

		Consortium placements (at NR-W)  1

		Approved Private School placement  3

		*This number has shifted due to Office of Mental Health placing one of our students in a residential facility.  Movement to expect for the 2020-2021 school year will be:

		-One student moving from a consortium placement to WFL BOCES Placement (our consortium placement number will go from 2 to 1)

		-Two students waiting approval at a WFL BOCES placement

		-One student finalizing paperwork on acceptance to Monroe #1 BOCES

		-One student waiting on acceptance to a program.






Report to the Board of Education 


North Rose-Wolcott Middle School 


June 3, 2020 


Mark Mathews 


Brady Farnand 


 


• Since the last report, we worked to reduce the adult-to-student ratio by reorganizing 
the intervention teachers.  The goal is to allow the core subject area teachers to move 
tier 1 core instruction forward with the majority of students who are making sufficient 
progress, and the intervention teacher works on the same assignments as the other 
students, but with an intervention teacher providing support in smaller groups. 


• We have begun reconstructing and developing our school report card to reflect 
performance behaviors related to staying organized, being prepared for class, and 
collaborating with others in group settings. 


• We have begun developing a framework for our 2020-2021 school improvement plan, 
will seek guidance from incoming superintendent on format or process guidelines. 


• The 8th grade talent show, dance, and end of year awards will be organized digitally.  On 
June 12th, we will share the acts with 8th graders digitally, then students can interact 
with one another on Zoom in a “dance” format.  The awards assembly will be recorded 
digitally, then shared with families via Facebook. 


• Continuing our work with Prioritizing standards via the school leadership team and the 
district leadership team.  Teams are organized vertically, and they use the format R 
(Readiness), E (Endurance), A (Assessed), and L (Leverage) to analyze standards and 
determine importance. 


• Midwest PBIS training sessions occurred this week, our team is developing our 20-21 
PBIS/MTSS action plan.   








1 | P a g e  
 


   Board of Education Monthly Report 


June 9, 2020 


Robyn Roberts-Grant  


 Director of Health, Physical Education, and Athletics       


 
1.  Happenings in June in the Athletic Department 
 
The entire varsity coaching staff met, via zoom, a few weeks ago to decipher all of the end of the 
year annual NRW athletic awards.  Filming of the 2019-2020 Athletic Award Night Video will be 
done on Monday, June 8th, 2020.   A video will be compiled to celebrate our athletes from this 
school year and acknowledge various special achievements.  The program will also be created for 
the event and both the video and program will be posted on our website and our social media 
pages.  Students will receive information on how to obtain all of their awards.  Anyone that was on 
a spring team roster for the first week of the season will be getting credit for the team.  Some of 
the special awards that will be announced are: 


1. Scholar Athlete Teams 
2. The top Scholar Athlete with the highest GPA on each varsity team 
3. Tri-Athletes (played three sports this school year) 
4. Triple C Award– Senior that played 3 sports, all four years of high school 
5. MVP per varsity team (Most Valuable Player) 
6. MIP per varsity team (Most Improved Player) 
7. Sportsmanship Award – one per team 
8. The Kathy Hoyt Award 
9. The Ted Woods Award 
10. The Mr. & Mrs. Pat & Patricia Winter Sportsmanship Award Winners 
11. The Robert Bradbury Award Winners  


 
Fall Sports sign-up information was sent out in the high school newsletter and posted on our social media 
pages.  A google document was created for families to input their information and interest.  We will also be 
posting this information on the NRW website and on social media.  We will also be sending out a mailing, 
this summer, to students with athletic registration information. 
 
2.  Student Athletic Association 
 


The NRW Student Athletic Association (SAA) voted unanimously to purchase a Congratulations 
North Rose-Wolcott Class of 2020 Banner for the senior class.  The banner arrived on Monday, 
June 1st, 2020 and will be posted in front of the high school for the remainder of the school year.  
The banner lists all of the students, individually, from the senior class. 
 


 







2 | P a g e  
 


 
3.  High School Events in June 
 


 June 5th – Caps and gowns will be delivered to seniors by high school staff members 


 June 8 – 12 – High School Graduation Activities 


 June 8 – Fall and winter coaches will record their annual athletic award speech 


 June 9 – 12 – All athletic awards will be signed, packaged and info on how to obtain the 


awards will be sent out.  The Athletic Award Night Video and program will be posted 


the week of June 15 


 June 12 – The last day of classes at the high school 


 June 19 – Academic Awards Night Video posted 








2019 


By-Laws 


SUBJECT: REGULAR BOARD MEETINGS AND RULES (QUORUM AND 
PARLIAMENTARY PROCEDURE) 


1510 
1 of2 


All Board meetings will be open to the public except those portions that are executive sessions. 
The Board will make reasonable efforts to ensure that all meetings are held in an appropriate facility 
that can adequately accommodate all members of the public who wish to attend. The Superintendent 
will attend all Board meetings, unless mutu.illy agreed upon between the President Vice President and 
Superintendent. Members of the Superintendent's staff may attend Board meetings at the 
Superintendent's discretion. The Board may also request that additional people attend. 


Regular Board meetings will take place on the day and time designated by the Board at the Annual 
Organizational Meeting, except as modified. Any Board meeting may be adjourned to a future date and 
time if approved by a majority of the Board present. Further, if a meeting date falls on a legal holiday, 
interferes with other area meetings, or Board member attendance will be less than a quorum, the Board 
will select a date for a postponed meeting at the prior regular meeting, and it will direct the Clerk to 
notify all members. The District Clerk will provide the Board members written notice of the time of and 
agenda for each regular meeting before the meeting. 


When the Board schedules a meeting on at least one week's notice, it will give or electronically 
transmit public notice of the time and place to the news media and conspicuously post the notice in one 
or more designated public locations at least 72 hours before the meeting. Notice of other meetings will 
be given or electronically transmitted, to the extent practicable, to the news media and conspicuously 
posted at one or more designated public locations at a reasonable time before the meeting. When the 
District has the ability to do so, it will conspicuously post the meeting notices on its website. 


It is the responsibility of the Superintendent to prepare the agenda and review it with the Board 
President for each meeting of the Board. The agenda for each meeting shall be prepared during the week 
prior to the meeting. The agenda shal] be distributed to Board members no later than the Friday before 
such regular meeting. Whenever the President or other members of the Board wish to bring a matter to 
the attention of the Board, such request should be made to the Superintendent through the Board 
President and/or Vice President so that the same can be placed on the agenda. Whenever individuals or 
groups wish to bring a matter to the attention of the Board, such request shall be addressed in writing 
the to Superintendent through the Board President and/or Vice President for dctcm1ination of inclusion 
on the agenda. The Su11erintendent shall f:!Fesent such maHer ta tke Beard. 


District records available to the public under the Freedom of Information Law, as well as any 
proposed rule, regulation, policy, or amendment scheduled to be discussed at a Board meeting will be 
made available upon request, to the extent practicable, before the meeting. Copies of these records may 
be made available for a reasonable fee. These records will be posted on the website to the extent 
practicable before the meeting. 


If videoconferencing or online technology is used to conduct a meeting, the public notice for the 
meeting will inform the public, identify all the locations for the meeting, and state that the public has 
the right to attend at any of the locations. If a meeting is streamed live over the internet, the public notice 
will inform the public of the website's internet address. Voting may be done through videoconferencing, 
provided that members can be both seen and heard voting and participating from remote locations. 


(Continued) 







2019 


Bylaws 


SUBJECT: REGULAR BOARD MEETINGS AND RULES (QUORUM AND 
PARLIAMENTARY PROCEDURE) (Cont'd.) 


Recording Meetings 


1510 
2 of2 


The Board allows public meetings to be photographed, broadcast, webcast, or otherwise recorded 
by means of audio or video, in a non-disruptive manner, and it supports the use of this technology to 
facilitate the open communication of public business. 


Public Expression 


The Board encourages public expression at Board meetings. The Board will designate a specific 
portion of its meeting agenda for this participation. The Board may invite visitors to participate in its 
discussion of matters on the agenda. 


Quorum 


The quorum for any Board meeting is four members. No formal action will be taken at any meeting 
where a quorum is not present. Unless otherwise required by law, official action will only be taken by 
approval of the majority of the full Board. 


Use of Parliamentary Procedure 


The Board will use pertinent portions of the latest edition of Robert•s Rules of Order to conduct its 
business. 


Education Law§§ 1708 and 2504 
General Construction Law § 41 
Public Officers Law Article 7, §§ 103(d), 104, and 107 


NOTE: Refer also to Policies #1520 -- Special Meetings of the Board of Education 
# 1540 -- Executive Sessions 
#3220 - Community Relations 
#6211 -- Employment of Relatives of Board Members 


Adopted: 1992 
Revised: 11 / 12/03; 1/9/07; 4/3/12; 4/14/15; 







SUBJECT: ADMINISTRATION OF THE BUDGET 


2019 5140 


Non-Instructional/Business 
Operations 


The Superintendent, working in conjunction with the administrative staff, is responsible to the 
Board for the administration of the budget. This includes, but is not limited to: 


a) He or she ·Nill aequaint Acquainting District employees with the final provisions of the program 
bud~e~ and guide guiding them in planning to operate efficiently and economically within these 
prov1s1ons. 


b) Under his or her direetion the Distriet •,yin maintain Providing direction to the District in 
maintaining those records of accounting control as are required by the New York State Uniform 
System of Accounts for School Districts, the Board, and other procedures as are deemed necessary 
and will keep the various operational units informed through periodic reports as to the status of 
their individual budgets. 


c) Board appro,•al is required prior to the expenditure of District funds. Keeping the various 
operational units informed through periodic reports as to the status of their 'ndividual budgets. 


Unless otherwise provided by law, no claim against the District will be paid unless such claims 
have been audited and approved by the Board/Claims Auditor. 


Budget Transfers 


:\llithin Rtone~ery limits as- estaelisheti by the Beare, The Superintendent is authorized to transfer 
funds between and within functional unit appropriations for teachers' salaries and ordinary contingent 
expenses. Whenever changes are made~ they are to be incorporated in the next Board agenda for 
informational purposes only. 


Statement of the Total Funding Allocation 


When required by law, the District will annually submit, prior to July 1, to the Commissioner of 
Education and the Director of the Budget a detailed statement of the total funding allocation for each 
school in the District for the upcoming school budget year. This statement will be in a form developed 
by the Director of the Budget, in consultation with the Commissioner of Education. This statement will 
be made publicly available and posted on the District website. 


Education Law § I 718 
8 NYCRR § 170.2(1) 


Revised: 6/24/97; 6/1 3/ 17; 







SUBJECT: STUDENT GRADING INFORMATION SYSTEMS 


2019 5675 
1 of2 


Non-Instructional/Business 
Operations 


Student performance is assessed in many ways, but primarily through assigned grades. The District 
will help ensure the integrity of student grades by controlling access to its grading information system 
and by approving modifications to grades where warranted. 


The System 


The District utilizes an electronic software system that contains a record of student performance, 
credit accumulation, report cards, and a transcript. More specifically, the system includes class rosters 
where teachers enter student grades and track their students• academic progress. The system is used to 
generate student report cards and transcripts, and to maintain all student grading records. 


To protect student data in the system, the District will first establish who has the authority to grant, 
change, or terminate user access. The personnel with this authority will be very limited. Further, if the 
grading system has a feature that allows one user or account to assume the identity of another user or 
account, the District will restrict or disable that feature. These types of features could allow a user greater 
access than intended, including inheriting permissions of another user that are greater than the user's. 


System Access 


The District will create categories of system users and assign appropriate system permissions to 
each. Users' permissions will be compatible with and restricted by their roles and job duties; their access 
will be as restrictive as possible. Typically, teachers will have the ability to enter, update, and modify 
grades each marking period before a pre-determined lockout date. The lockout function will be 
consistently used throughout the school year to help prevent grade modifications without authorization 
after a marking period closes. Through increased system permissions, other individuals- such as non
classroom teachers, guidance counselors, information technology (IT) staff, clerical staff, and support 
staff.- will be able to view or modify grades. 


The District will work with its IT, human resources, and other appropriate departments to 
determine how best to timely establish access rights, add users, deactivate or modify user accounts, and 
monitor user accounts. +he As appropriate, the District will develop further IT controls te that protect 
against improper access, if needed and promote data security. Further, the District recognizes that system 
access is most secure when District-owned devices are used. Accordingly, staff should only use District
owned devices to view_, enter, or modify student grades and comments .. 


Grade Changes 


Once the lockout period begins, only authorized users identified by the District may change grades, 
and only under certain circumstances. The system will recognize when grades change, and a log of 
modified grades may then be viewed and printed. Any grade mismatches will be reconciled before the 
next marking period closes or before the end of the school year, whichever is earlier. 


(Continued) 







2019 5675 
2 of2 


Non-Instructional/Business 
Operations 


SUBJECT: STUDENT GRADING INFORMATION SYSTEMS (Cont'd.) 


The staff member seeking to change a grade will submit a grade-change form signed by the 
requesting party, the teacher who assigned the original grade, and the appropriate administrator. This 
form and all other documents supporting a grade modification will be electronically filed in the grading 
system or filed in a non-electronic system- if electronic filing is impossible or impractical- and 
maintained for six years. The personnel seeking the modification should specify one or more reasonable 
grounds for the grade change on the form. There must be reasonable grounds to alter a grade. The reasons 
may include: 


a) Data entry error; 


b) Computational error; 


c) A modification based on work submitted or considered after the lockout date; 


d) Changing an incomplete grade to a regular grade because a student completed course 
requirements; 


e) Credit recovery coursework; 


f) Administrative change; or 


g) Other acceptable justifications. 


Audit Log and Monitoring 


The District's grading system will have an audit log or grade-change report function that records 
certain system activities, including modifications to grades. The District will periodically monitor audit 
logs or grade-change reports to confirm the integrity of the system, to ensure proper access by personnel, 
and to confirm that modifications within the system are appropriate and completed in a timely manner. 
The District will also periodically monitor user accounts and rights so that the permissions granted are 
proper and the minimum necessary for each user or user group. To the extent feasible, the District will 
make sure that user accounts are current and updated regularly. The District will be able to print user 
information, logs, reports, and other documents from the student grading information system, as needed. 


Student Transcripts 


Student transcripts may show all credit-bearing classes; final grades; test scores; grade-point 
average; class rank; diploma type; SAT, ACT, and other standardized test scores; and graduation date. 
The same controls, protections, and monitoring applicable to student grading information apply equally 
to student transcripts. 


Adopted: 2/9/1 6 
Revised: 







2019 


Personnel 


SUBJECT: STAFF-STUDENT RELATIONS (FRATERNIZATION) 


6180 
1 of3 


The Board of Education requires that all School District employees maintain a professional, ethical 
relationship with District students that is conducive to an effective, safe learning environment; and that 
staff members act as role models for students at all times, whether on or off school property and both 
during and outside of school hours. Staff must establish appropriate personal boundaries with students 
and not engage in any behavior that could reasonably lead to even the appearance of impropriety. 


Staff members are prohibited, under any circumstances, to date or engage in any improper 
fraternization or undue familiarity with students, regardless of the student's age and,lor regartiless of 
'f'i'hether the student ma~· ha\'e or express or implied "eonsented11 consent to S\:lal this conduct. Further, 
employees shall will not entertain stl:Jdents or socialize with students in S\:lal a manner so as to create 
the perception that a dating relationship exists. Similarly, any action or comment by a staff member 
which invites romantic or sexual involvement with a student is considered highly unethical, in violation 
of District policy, and may result in the notification of law enforcement officials and the filing of 
criminal charges and/or disciplinary action by the District. Uf3 to and including tennination of 
em13loyment. 


Inappropriate employee behavior includes, but is not limited to, flirting; making suggestive 
comments; dating; requests for sexual activity; physical displays of affection; giving inappropriate 
personal gifts; frequent personal communication with a student (via phone, email, letters, notes, etc.) 
unrelated to course work or official school matters; providing alcohol or drugs to students; inappropriate 
touching; and engaging in sexual contact and/or sexual relations. Frequent personal communication with 
a student unrelated to course work or official school matters" means any form in which personal 
communication may occur including, but not limited to, voice or text-based communication via phonej 
email, instant messaging, text messaging, or through social networking websites. 


Inappropriate fraternization of staff with students, even if the student participated "willingly11 in 
the activity (regardless of the student's age), inappropriate fraternization of staff with students is against 
District policy and may be in violation of professional standards of conduct and New York State Law. 
However, inappropriate employee conduct does not need to rise to the level of criminal activity for S\:lal 
the conduct to be in violation of District rules and subject to appropriate disciplinary sanctions. 


Any student who believes that he,£ o she has been subjected to inappropriate staff behavior as 
enumerated in this policy, as well as students, school employees or third parties who have knowledge 
of or witness any possible occurrence of inappropriate staff-student relations, shall must report the 
incident to any staff member or ei-theF the employee's supervisor, the student's principal or the District's 
designated complaint officer. In all e•,•en~s such circumstances~ these reports sh8" will be forwarded to 
the designated complaint officer for further investigation. Anonymous complaints of inappropriate 
fraternization of staff members with students shall also be investigated by the District. Investigations of 
allegations of inappropriate staff-student relations shall follow the procedures utilized for complaints of 
harassment within the School District, as per Regulation #6121 . Allegations of inappropriate staff
student behavior shall be promptly investigated and will be treated as confidential and private to the 
extent possible within legal constraints. If there is a finding upon completion of the investigation that 
inappropriate conduct occurred, District administration will take prompt corrective action. 


(Continued) 







2019 


Personnel 


SUBJECT: STAFF-STUDENT RELATIONS (FRATERNIZATION) (Cont'd.) 


6180 
2 of3 


Any employee having knowledge of or reasonable suspicion that another employee may have 
engaged in inappropriate conduct with a student that may constitute child abuse (s13eeifieally, child abuse 
in an educational setting} must also follow the District's reporting procedures for such allegations; and 
such information will be reported by the designated administrator as required by state law to law 
enforcement officials, the State Education Department (SED) and/or Child Protective Services as may 
be applicable. 


If a student initiates inappropriate behavior toward a staff member, that employee shall document 
the incident and report it to his/her building principal or supervisor-:- immediately, or as soon as is 
practicable. 


The Distriet shall f)FBR'l:ptly im•estigate all eoR'l:plaiRts of iRaIJ13mpriate staff studeRt relatieRs, ORd 
take f)FOR'l:pt correeti1t•e aetioR to sto('J sueh coRduet if it 0ec1:1rs. 


Prohibition of Retaliatory Behavior (Commonly Known as "Whistle-Blower" Protection) 


The Board of EdueatioR prohibits any retaliatory behavior directed against complainants, victims, 
witnesses, and/or any other individuals who participate in the investigation of allegations of 
inappropriate staff-student relations. Follow-up inquiries and/or appropriate monitoring sha11 be made 
to ensure that the alleged conduct has not resumed and that all those involved in the investigation have 
not suffered retaliation. Any act of retaliation is subject to appropriate disciplinary action by the District. 


District Responsibility/Training 


The principal of each school and/or program supervisor shall be responsible for informing 
students, staff and volunteers of the requirements of this policy, including the duty to report and the 
procedures established for investigation and resolution of complaints. Further, staff training shall be 
provided to facilitate staff identification of possible behavior that may constitute inappropriate staff
student relationships. Students sh-al-I- will be provided sueh this training in an age appropriate manner. 


The District's This policy (or a summary thereof) sh-al-I- will be disseminated as appropriate to staff, 
students and parents. Further, this topic shaH will be addressed in the District Code of Conduct. 


Disciplinary Sanctions 


Any staff member who engages in inappropriate conduct with a student, prohibited by the terms 
of this policy, shall be subject to appropriate disciplinary measures up to and including termination of 
employment in accordance with legal guidelines, District policy aRd regulatioR, and the any applicable 
collective bargaining agreement. A violation of this policy may also subject the employee to criminal 
and/or civil sanctions as well as disciplinary action by the Slate EeucatioR DepartmeRt(SED). 


(Continued) 







2019 


Personnel 


SUBJECT: STAFF-STUDENT RELATIONS (FRATERNIZATION) (Cont'd.) 


Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, 20 USC Section 1681 et seq. 
Education Law Article 23-B 
Social Services Law Sections 411-428 
8 NYCRR Part 83 


Adopted: 2/1 5/05 
Revised: 


6180 
3 of3 







2019 


Students 


SUBJECT: ENTITLEMENT TO ATTEND -- AGE AND RESIDENCY 


Entitlement to Attend 


7130 
1 of2 


All persons residing within the District who are between the ages of five years and 21 years and 
who have not obtained a high school diploma are entitled to enroll in the District. 


A student who becomes six years of age on or before the first of December in any school year 
shall be required to attend full-time instruction from the first day that the District schools are in session 
in September of such school year, and a student who becomes six years of age after the first of December 
in any school year shall be required to attend full-time instruction from the first day of session in the 
following September. Each student shall be required to remain in attendance until the last day of session 
in the school year in which the student becomes 16 years of age. 


Evidence of a prospective student's age and residency must be presented in sueh the form as is 
permitted by state and federal law and regulation. 


Determination of Student Residency 


"Residence," for purposes of this policy, is established by a child's physical presence as an 
inhabitant within the District and his/her intent to reside in the District. 


A child's residence is presumed to be that of his/her parents or legal guardians. Where a child's 
parents live apart, the child can have only one legal residence. In cases where parents have joint custody, 
the child's time is essentially divided between two households, and both parents assume responsibility 
for the child, the decision regarding the child's residency lies ultimately with the family. Where parents 
claim joint custody, but do not produce proof of the child's time being divided between both households, 
residency will be determined on the basis of the child's physical presence and intent to remain within 
the District. 


The presumption that a child resides with his/her parents or legal guardians may be rebutted upon 
demonstration that custody of SHeh the child has been totally and permanently transferred to another 
individual. The District will not acknowledge living arrangements with persons other than a child's 
parents or legal guardians which are made for the sole purpose of taking advantage of the District's 
schools. 


The presumption that a child resides with his/her parents or legal guardians may also be rebutted 
upon demonstration that Sl:leh the child is an emancipated minor. To establish emancipation, a minor 
may submit documentation of his/her means of support, proof of residency, and an explanation of the 
circumstances surrounding the student's emancipation, including a description of the student's 
relationship with his/her parents or persons in parental relation. 


Notwithstanding the foregoing, all determinations of student residency will be made consistent 
with applicable state and federal laws and regulations. 


(Continued) 







2019 


Students 


SUBJECT: ENTITLEMENT TO ATTEND - AGE AND RESIDENCY (Cont'd.) 


Undocumented Children 


7130 
2 of2 


The District is mindful that undocumented children are entitled to attend the District's schools, 
provided they meet the age and residency requirements established by state law. Consequently, the 
District will not request or require on any enrollment or registration form, in any meeting, or in any 
other form of communication, any documentation and/or information regarding or tending to reveal the 
immigration status of a child, a child's parent(s) or the person(s) in parental relation. In the event the 
District is required to collect such information, the District will do so after the child has been enrolled. 
In no instance will such information be required as a condition of enrollment or continued attendance. 


Children of Activated Reserve Military Personnel 


Students temporarily residing outside the boundaries of the District, due to relocation necessitated 
by the call to active military duty of the student's parent or person in parental relation, will be allowed 
to attend the public school that they attended prior to the relocation. However, the District is not required 
to provide transportation between a temporary residence located outside the District and the school the 
child attends. 


Homeless Children 


Deteffflinations regafdiag •,i,·kether a ehilel is eatitled to atteaEI the District's schools as a homeless 
child or youth will be made ia aecofdaaee witk 8eetion I 00.2(x) of tke Commissioner's Regulations, as 
well as applieaele Distriet polio;· and regulation. 


Education Law§§ 3202, 3205 and 3218 
Family Court Act § 657 
8 NYCRR §§ J00.2(x) and (y) 


NOTE: Refer also to Policies #7131 -- Non-Resident Students 
#7133 -- Education of Students in Temporary Housing 


Adopted: 1992 
Revised: 11 / 12/03; 1/9/07; 4/9/ 13; 2/9/16; 







2019 7133 
1 of 14 


Students 


SUBJECT: l:DUCATION OF STUDENTS IN TEMPORARY HOUSING 


The Board recognizes the unique challenges that face students in temporary housing (i.e., homeless 
children and youth) and will provide these students with access to the same free and appropriate public 
education, including public preschool education, as other students, as well as access to educational and 
other services necessary to be successful in school. The District will ensure that these students are not 
separated from the mainstream school environment. The Board is also committed to eliminating barriers 
to the identification, enrollment, attendance, and success of students in temporary housing. 


Identification of Students in Temporary Housing 


All districts are obligated to affirmatively identify all students in temporary housing. Therefore, 
the District will determine whether there are students in temporary housing within the District by using 
a housing questionnaire to determine the nighttime residence of all newly enrolled students and all 
students whose address changes during the school year. Not all students in temporary housing can be 
identified through social service agencies or shelters, as children may be sharing the housing of other 
persons, such as family or friends, due to loss of housing, economic hardship, or other similar reason. 
For this reason, the District uses a housing questionnaire that asks for a description of the current living 
arrangements of the child or youth to determine whether the child or youth meets the definition of a 
homeless child. 


In addition to using the housing questionnaire, the District will also contact the local department 
of social services (LOSS) (i.e., the social services district) to identify students in temporary housing, as 
well as the local runaway and homeless youth shelter, and any other shelters located within District 
boundaries to ensure all students in temporary housing are properly identified and served. 


Definitions 


a) Feeder school means: 


1. A preschool whose students are entitled to attend a specified elementary school or group of 
elementary schools upon completion of that preschool; 


2. A school whose students are entitled to attend a specified elementary, middle, intermediate, 
or high school or group of specified elementary, middle, intermediate, or high schools upon 
completion of the terminal grade of such school; or 


3. A school that sends its students to a receiving school in a neighboring school district. 


b) Homeless child means: 


1. A child or youth who lacks a fixed, regular, and adequate nighttime residence, including a 
child or youth who is: 


(Continued) 







2019 7133 
2 of 14 


Students 


SUBJECT: EDUCATION OF STUDENTS IN TEMPORARY HOUSING (Cont'd.) 


(a) Sharing the housing of other persons due to a loss of housing, economic hardship, or a 
similar reason (sometimes referred to as "doubled-up"); 


(b) Living in motels, hotels, trailer parks, or camping grounds due to the lack of alternative 
adequate accommodations; 


(c) Abandoned in hospitals; 


(d) A migratory child who qualifies as homeless under (a), (b), or (c} of this subparagraph 
or item 2) below; or 


(e) An unaccompanied youth; or 


2. A child or youth who has a primary nighttime location that is: 


(a) A supervised, publicly, or privately operated shelter designed to provide temporary 
living accommodations, including, but not limited to, shelters operated or approved 
by the state or LOSS, and residential programs for runaway and homeless youth 
established in accordance with applicable law; or 


(b) A public or private place not designed for, or ordinarily used as, a regular sleeping 
accommodation for human beings, including a child or youth who is living in a car, 
park, public space, abandoned building, substandard housing, bus or train station, or 
similar setting. 


c) Migratory child means a child or youth who made a qualifying move in the preceding 36 months: 


I. As a migratory agricultural worker or a migratory fisher; or 


2. With, or to join, a parent or spouse who is a migratory agricultural worker or a migratory 
fisher. 


d) Preschool means a publicly funded prekindergarten program or a Head Start program administered 
by the District and/or services under the Individuals with Disabilities Act administered by the 
District. 


e) Receiving school means: 


1. A school that enrolls students from a specified or group of preschools, elementary schools, 
middle schools, intermediate schools, or high schools; or 


(Continued) 







2019 7133 
3 of 14 


Students 


SUBJECT: EDUCATION OF STUDENTS IN TEMPORARY HOUSING (Cont'd.) 


2. A school that enrolls students from a feeder school in a neighboring local educational agency. 


t) Regional placement plan means a comprehensive regional approach to the provision of educational 
placements for homeless children that has been approved by the Commissioner of Education. 


g) School district of current location means the public school district within New York State in which 
the hotel, motel, shelter or other temporary housing arrangement of a homeless child, or the 
residential program for runaway and homeless youth, is located, which is different from the school 
district of origin. 


h) School district of origin means the school district within New York State in which: 


I. The homeless child was attending a public school or preschool on a tuition-free basis or was 
entitled to attend when circumstances arose that caused the child to become homeless, which 
is different from the school district of current location; 


2. The child was residing when circumstances arose that caused the child to become homeless 
if the child was eligible to apply, register, or enroll in public preschool or kindergarten at the 
time the child became homeless; or 


3. The homeless child has a sibling who attends a school in the school district in which the child 
was residing when circumstances arose that caused the child to become homeless. 


i) School of origin means: 


1. The public school that the child or youth attended when permanently housed or the school in 
which the child or youth was last enrolled, including a preschool or a charter school; 


2. The designated receiving school at the next grade level for all feeder schools for a student in 
temporary housing who completes the final grade level served by the school of origin; and 


3. The public school or preschool in which the child would have been entitled or eligible to attend 
based on the child1s last residence before the circumstances arose which caused the child to 
become homeless if the child becomes homeless after the child is eligible to apply, register, or 
enroll in the public preschool or kindergarten or if the child is living with a school-age sibling 
who attends school in the school district of origin. 


j) Unaccompanied youth means a homeless child or youth who is not in the physical custody of a 
parent or legal guardian. 


(Continued) 







2019 


Students 


SUBJECT: EDUCATION OF STUDENTS IN TEMPORARY HOUSING (Cont'd.) 


The McKinney-Vento Liaison for Students in Temporary Housing 


7133 
4 of 14 


The District will designate an appropriate staff person, who may also be a coordinator for other 
federal programs, as the District liaison for students in temporary housing ( otherwise referred to as the 
McKinney-Vento liaison). The District's McKinney-Vento liaison serves as one of the primary contacts 
between families experiencing homelessness and school staff, district personnel, shelter workers, and 
other service providers. The McKinney-Vento liaison coordinates services to ensure that homeless 
children and youth enroll in school and have the opportunity to succeed. 


The District's McKinney-Vento liaison must ensure that: 


a) Students in temporary housing are identified by school personnel and through coordination 
activities with other entities and agencies; 


b) Students in temporary housing enroll in, and have full and equal opportunity to succeed in, 
the District's schools; 


c) Students in temporary housing and their families receive educational services for which they 
are eligible, including Head Start programs administered by a local educational agency, Early 
Head Start, early intervention services under part C of the Individuals with Disabilities 
Education Act, and other preschool programs administered by the District. 


d) Students and parents in temporary housing receive referrals to health care services, dental 
services, mental health and substance abuse services, housing services and other appropriate 
services; 


e) Parents or guardians of students in temporary housing are informed of the educational and 
related opportunities available to their children and are provided with meaningful 
opportunities to participate in the education of their children; 


t) Parents and guardians of students in temporary housing, and unaccompanied youth, are fully 
informed of all transportation services, including transportation to and from the school 
district of origin and are assisted in accessing transportation services; 


g) Disputes regarding eligibility, school selection, enrollment and/or transportation are 
mediated in accordance with applicable laws and regulations; 


(Continued) 







2019 7133 
5 of 14 


Students 


SUBJECT: EDUCATION OF STUDENTS IN TEMPORARY HOUSING {Cont'd.) 


h) Assistance in commencing an appeal, in accordance with applicable law, of a final 
determination regarding eligibility, enrollment, school selection, and/or transportation is 
provided to the student in temporary housing's parent or guardian or the unaccompanied 
youth; 


i) A record is maintained of all appeals of enrollment, school selection, and transportation; 


j) Public notice of the educational rights of students in temporary housing is posted in locations 
where these students receive services, such as schools, shelters, public libraries, and soup 
kitchens, in a manner and form understandable to the parents and guardians of students in 
temporary housing, and unaccompanied youth; 


k) School personnel providing services to students in temporary housing receive professional 
development and other support; 


1) Unaccompanied youths: 


1. Are enrolled in school; 


2. Have opportunities to meet the same challenging State academic standards as the State 
establishes for other children and youth, including receiving credit for full or partial 
coursework earned in a prior school pursuant to Commissioner's regulations; and 


3. Are informed of their status as independent students under section 480 of the Higher 
Education Act of 1965 and that the youths may obtain assistance from the McKinney
Vento liaison to receive verification of this status for purposes of the Free Application 
for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA); 


m} School personnel, service providers, advocates working with students in temporary housing, 
parents and guardians of students in temporary housing, and students in temporary housing 
are informed of the duties of the McKinney-Vento liaison; and 


n) Assistance with obtaining any necessary immunizations or screenings, or immunization or 
other required health records is provided to the parents or guardians of the students in 
temporary housing. 


School District and School Designations 


A designator will make the initial decision about which school district and school a student in 
temporary housing will attend. A designator is: 


a) The parent or person in parental relation (guardian) to a student in temporary housing; 


(Continued) 







2019 7133 
6 of 14 


Students 


SUBJECT: EDUCATION OF STUDENTS IN TEMPORARY HOUSING (Cont'd.) 


b) The student in temporary housing, together with the McKinney-Vento liaison, in the case of 
an unaccompanied youth; or 


c) The director of a residential program for runaway and homeless youth, in consultation with 
the student in temporary housing, where the student is living in that program. 


The District will ask the designator to designate one of the following as the school district of 
attendance for the student in temporary housing: 


a) The school district of current location; 


b) The school district of origin; or 


c) A school district participating in a regional placement plan. 


The District will also ask the designator to designate one of the following as the school where a 
student in temporary housing seeks to attend: 


a) The school of origin; or 


b) Any school that permanent housed children and youth who live in the attendance area in 
which the child or youth is actually living are eligible to attend, including a preschool. 


A student in temporary housing is entitled to attend the schools of the school district of origin 
without the payment of tuition for the duration of his or her homelessness and through the remainder of 
the school year in which the student becomes permanently housed and for one additional year if that 
year constitutes the student's terminal year in that school building, subject to a best interest 
determination. 


Designation/ST AC 202 Form 


The District will identify all students in temporary housing, and a designation form will be 
completed by the designator for all these students and any other student who claims homelessness. 
Designations must be made on the ST AC 202 form provided by the Commissioner. 


The appropriate designator must complete the designation form. The District makes designation 
forms available to a student in temporary housing who seeks admission to school or to the parent or 
person in parental relation who seeks to enroll the child in school. 


The District will provide completed designation forms to the McKinney-Vento liaison 
immediately, but no later than two business days from the earlier date on which the child or youth either: 


a) Sought enrollment in school; or 


(Continued) 







2019 7133 
7 of 14 


Students 


SUBJECT: EDUCATION OF STUDENTS IN TEMPORARY HOUSING (Cont'd.) 


b) Was placed in a temporary housing facility or residential facility for runaway and homeless 
youth. 


Where a parent or person in parental relation or a child who is neither placed in a temporary 
housing facility by the LDSS nor housed in a residential program for runaway homeless youth, 
designates the District as the school district of current location, the District will forward to the State 
Education Department a completed designation form and a statement of the basis for its determination 
that the child is a homeless child entitled to attend the District's schools. 


Immediate Enrollment and Best Interest Determinations 


Upon identification of a child who is in temporary housing and/or receipt of a completed 
designation/ST AC 202 form, the District will: 


a) Immediately review the designation form to ensure that it has been completed and admit the 
student in temporary housing even if the child or youth is unable to produce records normally 
required for enrollment, such as previous academic records, medical records, immunization 
records, proof of residency or other documentation and even if the child or youth has missed 
application deadlines; 


b) Determine whether the designation made by the designator is consistent with the best 
interests of the student in temporary housing. In making best interests decisions the District 
will: 


I. Presume that keeping the child in the school of origin is in the child's best interest, 
except when doing so is contrary to the wishes of the parent or guardian ( or youth in 
the case of an unaccompanied youth); and 


2. Consider student-centered factors such as the effect of mobility on student 
achievement, education, health, and safety of the child, giving priority to the wishes of 
the child's parent or guardian (or the youth, if a homeless unaccompanied youth). If the 
District determines that it is in the best interest of the student in temporary housing to 
attend a school other than the school of origin or the designated school, the District will 
provide the parent or guardian (or youth, if an unaccompanied youth) with a written 
explanation of its determination, including information about the right to appeal. 


c) Provide the child with access to all of the District's programs, activities and services to the 
same extent as they are provided to resident students; 


d) Immediately contact the school district where the child1s records are located in order to obtain 
a copy of these records and coordinate the transmittal ofrecords for students with disabilities 
pursuant to applicable laws and regulations; 


{Continued) 







2019 7133 
8 of 14 


Students 


SUBJECT: EDUCATION OF STUDENTS IN TEMPORARY HOUSING (Cont'd.) 


e) Immediately refer the parent or guardian of the student in temporary housing to the 
McKinney-Vento liaison who must assist in obtaining necessary immunizations or 
immunization or medical records if the child or youth needs to obtain immunizations or 
immunization or medical records; 


f) Forward the STAC 202 form to the Commissioner and the school district of origin, where 
applicable. In all cases, the District will give a copy of the completed STAC 202 form to the 
designator and keep a copy of the ST AC 202 form for the District's records; 


g) Arrange for transportation in accordance with applicable laws and regulations; and 


h) Arrange for the child to receive free school meals. 


Request for Records 


Within five days of receipt of a request for school records from a new school, the District will 
forward, in a manner consistent with state and federal law, a complete copy of the student in temporary 
housing's records, including, but not limited to, proof of age, academic records, evaluations, 
immunization records, and guardianship papers, if applicable. 


Tuition Reimbursement 


The District is eligible to request reimbursement from the State Education Department for the 
direct costs of educational services to students in temporary housing that are not otherwise reimbursed 
under special federal programs, when: 


a) The District is either the school district of current location or a school district participating 
in a regional placement plan; 


b) The District is designated as the school district of attendance; and 


c) The school district of origin for the student in temporary housing is within New York State. 


All claims for reimbursement will be made on the ST AC 202 form prescribed by the 
Commissioner of the State Education Department. 


(Continued) 







2019 7133 
9 of 14 


Students 


SUBJECT: EDUCATION OF STUDENTS IN TEMPORARY HOUSING (Cont'd.) 


In addition, the District is eligible for reimbursement for the direct costs of educational services, 
including transportation costs for students who continue enrollment in the District schools after finding 
permanent housing midyear in a different school district within New York State. In these cases, the 
District will directly bill the new district where the student permanently resides for all direct costs of 
educational services, including transportation, that are not otherwise reimbursed under special federal 
programs. 


Transportation Responsibilities 


The LOSS is responsible for providing transportation to students in temporary housing, including 
preschool students and students with disabilities who are eligible for benefits under Social Services Law 
§350-j and placed in temporary housing arrangements outside their designated districts. Where the 
LOSS requests that the District provide or arrange for transportation for a student in temporary housing 
in the circumstances above, the District will provide or arrange for the transportation and directly bill 
the LOSS so that the district will be fully and promptly reimbursed for the cost of the transportation. 


If the District is the designated school district of attendance, the District will provide for the 
transportation of each student in temporary housing who is living in a residential program for runaway 
and homeless youth, including if the temporary housing is located outside the school district. The costs 
for transportation for each student in temporary housing who lives in a residential program for runaway 
youth and homeless youth located outside of the designated school district will be reimbursed by the 
State Education Department, to the extent funds are provided for the purpose, with the submission of a 
Runaway and Homeless Youth Act Transportation Program Form. Where the District provides 
transportation for a student living in a Runaway and Homeless Youth facility, the District will promptly 
request reimbursement using the Runaway and Homeless Youth Act Transportation Form. 


The District will transport any student in temporary housing to their school of origin, including 
preschools and charter schools, where it is the designated district of attendance and the student in 
temporary housing is not entitled to receive transportation from the Department of Social Services. 


When the District is designated as the school district of current location for a student in temporary 
housing and the student does not attend the school of origin, the District will provide transportation on 
the same basis as it is provided to resident students, unless the local transportation policy represents a 
barrier to the student's attendance in school. 


If the student in temporary housing designates the District as the school district of attendance, 
transportation will not exceed 50 miles each way, unless the Commissioner determines that it is in the 
best interest of the child. 


(Continued) 







2019 7133 
10 of 14 


Students 


SUBJECT: EDUCATION OF STUDENTS IN TEMPORARY HOUSING (Cont'd.) 


Where the District is designated as the school district of attendance and it has recommended the 
student in temporary housing attend a summer educational program, the district of attendance will 
provide transportation services to students in temporary housing for summer educational programs if 
the lack of transportation poses a barrier to the student's participation in the program. 


Where the District is designated as the school district of attendance, it will provide transportation 
services to students in temporary housing for extracurricular or academic activities when: 


a) The student participates in or would like to participate in an extracurricular or academic 
activity, including an after-school activity, at the school; 


b) The student meets the eligibility criteria for the activity; and 


c) The lack of transportation poses a barrier to the student's participation in the activity. 


Where the District is designated as the school district of attendance, it will provide transportation 
as described above for the duration of homelessness, unless the LOSS is responsible for providing 
transportation. After the student becomes permanently housed, the District will provide transportation 
to the school of origin until the end of the school year and for one additional year if that year constitutes 
the child's terminal year in the school building. 


*Wltere a srudent in temporary hm1sing must eross state Jines te attend a school of origin, the 
District will coordinate with the District in the neighboring state to prm•ide transportation ser;•iees when: 


a) The srudeAt is tem130rarily li>.•ing iA New York State ane e0ntin1:1es to attend sehool in a 
aeigkboring state; er 


b) The srudent is tem130rarily liYiAg iA a neighboring state and eontin1:1es to atteRd sehoel in 
~Jew Yorle State. 


Dispute Resolution Process 


The District has established the following procedures for the prompt resolution of disputes 
regarding school selection or enrollment of a homeless child or youth: 


a) The District will provide a written explanation, including a statement regarding the right to 
appeal, to the parent or guardian of a student in temporary housing, or to an unaccompanied 
youth, if the District determines that the District is not required to either enroll and/or 
transport the child or youth to the school of origin or a school requested by the parent or 
guardian or unaccompanied youth, or if there is a disagreement about a child's or youth's 
status as a homeless child or unaccompanied youth. The written explanation will be in a 


*Customi=e to District -- Only applicable to districts near other states. 
(Continued) 







2019 7133 
11 of 14 


Students 


SUBJECT: EDUCATION OF STUDENTS IN TEMPORARY HOUSING (Cont'd.) 


manner and form understandable to the parent, guardian, or unaccompanied youth and will 
include a statement regarding the McKinney-Vento liaison's availability to help the parent, 
guardian, or unaccompanied youth with any appeal and the contact information for the 
liaison. 


b) The District will immediately enroll the student in the school in which enrollment is sought 
by the parent or guardian or unaccompanied youth, provide transportation to the school, and 
will delay for 30 days the implementation of a final determination to decline to either enroll 
in and/or transport the student in temporary housing to the school of origin or a school 
requested by the parent or guardian or unaccompanied youth. 


c) If the parent or guardian of a student in temporary housing or unaccompanied youth 
commences an appeal to the Commissioner within 30 days of such final determination, the 
student will be permitted to continue to attend the school he or she is enrolled in at the time 
of the appeal and/or receive transportation to that school pending the resolution of all 
available appeals. 


The McKinney-Vento Liaison's Dispute Resolution Responsibilities 


The District1s McKinney-Vento liaison must assist the student in temporary housing's parent or 
guardian or unaccompanied youth in bringing an appeal to the Commissioner of a final school district 
decision regarding enrollment, school selection and/or transportation. In the event of a dispute regarding 
eligibility, enrollment, school selection, and/or transportation, the District's McKinney-Vento liaison 
will: 


a) Provide the parent or guardian or unaccompanied youth with a copy of the form petition; 


b) Assist the parent or guardian or unaccompanied youth in completing the form petition; 


c) Arrange for the copying of the form petition and supporting documents for the parent or 
guardian or unaccompanied youth, without cost to the parent or guardian or unaccompanied 
youth; 


d) Accept service of the form petition and supporting papers on behalf of any District employee 
or officer named as a party, or the District if it is named as a party, or arrange for service by 
mail by mailing the form petition and supporting documents to any District employee or 
officer named as a party, and, if the District is named as a party, to a person in the office of 
the Superintendent who has been designated by the Board to accept service on behalf of the 
District; 


e) Provide the parent or guardian or unaccompanied youth with a signed and dated 
acknowledgment verifying that he or she has received the form petition and supporting 
documents, and will either accept service of these documents on behalf of the District 


(Continued) 







2019 7133 
12 of 14 


Students 


SUBJECT: EDUCATION OF STUDENTS IN TEMPORARY HOUSING (Cont'd.) 


employee or officer or District, or effect service by mail by mailing the form petition and 
supporting documents to any District employee or officer named as a party, and, if the 
District is named as a party, to a person in the office of the Superintendent who has been 
designated by the Board to accept service on behalf of the District; 


f) Transmit on behalf of the parent or guardian or unaccompanied youth, within five days after 
the service of, the form petition or any pleading or paper to the Office of Counsel, New York 
State Education Department, State Education Building, Albany, New York 12234; 


g) Provide the parent or guardian or unaccompanied youth with a signed and dated 
acknowledgement verifying that he or she has received the form petition and supporting 
documents and will transmit these documents on behalf of the parent, guardian or 
unaccompanied youth to the Office of Counsel, New York State Education Department, State 
Education Building, Albany, New York 12234; 


h) Accept service of any subsequent pleadings or papers, including any correspondence related 
to the appeal, if the parent or guardian or unaccompanied youth so elects. He or she will also 
make this correspondence available to the parent or guardian or unaccompanied youth; and 


i) Maintain a record of all appeals of enrollment, school selection, and transportation 
determinations. 


Coordination 


The District will coordinate the provision of services described in this policy with local social 
services agencies, housing providers and other agencies or programs providing services to students in 
temporary housing and their families, including services and programs funded under the Runaway and 
Homeless Youth Act. 


The District will coordinate with other school districts on inter-district issues, such as 
transportation or transfer of school records. 


The District will coordinate implementation of the above provision of services with the 
requirements of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) for students with disabilities. 


Coordination with Title I 


The District acknowledges that students in temporary housing are eligible for services under Title 
I, Part A, whether or not they live in a Title I school attendance area or meet the academic requirements 
required of other children. The District will ensure that: 


(Continued) 







2019 7133 
13 of 14 


Students 


SUBJECT: EDUCATION OF STUDENTS IN TEMPORARY HOUSING (Cont'd.) 


a) Title I, Part A funds are set aside as are necessary to provide students in temporary housing, 
who may have unique needs that differ from their permanently housed peers, with 
educationally related support services; 


b) Its local plan includes a description of how the plan is coordinated with McKinney-Vento; 


c) Its local plan describes the services provided to students in temporary housing; 


d) Its local plan describes the efforts it made to identify students in temporary housing, 
including unaccompanied youth, if the District reports that there are no students in temporary 
housing enrolled in the District. These efforts will include contacting the LOSS or Office of 
Children and Family Services (OCFS) to verify that there are no students in temporary 
housing in the District; and 


e) Its housing questionnaire asks about the living arrangements of the child or unaccompanied 
youth, including asking if he or she is living in a shelter; with relatives or others due to loss 
of housing or economic hardship; in an abandoned apartment/building; in a motel/hotel, 
camping ground, car, train/bus station or other similar situation due to the lack of alternative, 
adequate housing. Documentation of the District's efforts to identify students in temporary 
housing will be maintained on file and a copy of the housing questionnaire will also be kept 
on file. 


Reporting Requirements 


The District will collect and transmit to the Commissioner of Education, at the time and in the 
manner as the Commissioner may require, a report containing information as the Commissioner 
determines is necessary, including the numbers of homeless students, their grade, and their nighttime 
residence. 


Access to Free Meals 


The District will provide free meals to all children identified as homeless. They do not have to 
complete a free or reduced-price meal application. When the McKinney-Vento liaison or a shelter 
director provides a child's name to the District's school food service office, free school meals will 
commence immediately. 


Removal of Barriers 


The District will review and revise its policies that may act as barriers to the identification of 
students in temporary housing and their enrollment and retention in school, including barriers to 
enrollment and retention due to outstanding fees or fines, or absences. 


(Continued) 







2019 


Students 


SUBJECT: EDUCATION OF STUDENTS IN TEMPORARY HOUSING (Cont'd.) 


Comparable Services 


7133 
14 of 14 


The District will provide services to students in temporary housing comparable to those offered to 
other students in the District, including: transportation services; educational services for which the child 
or youth meets the relevant criteria, such as services provided under Title I or similar state or local 
programs; educational programs for students with disabilities; educational programs for English 
learners; programs in career and technical education; programs for gifted and talented students; and 
school nutrition programs. 


Student Privacy 


Information about a student in temporary housing's living situation will be treated as a student 
education record and will not be deemed to be directory information under the Family Educational 
Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA). A parent or guardian or unaccompanied youth may consent to the 
release of a student's address information in the same way they would for other student education records 
under FERP A. 


Training 


All school enrollment staff, secretaries, school counselors, school social workers, and principals 
will be trained on the requirements for enrollment of students in temporary housing. Other staff members 
including school nutrition staff, school registered professional nurses, teachers, and bus drivers will 
receive training on homelessness that is specific to their field. 


McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act, as amended by the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) of 2015, 
42 USC§ 11431, et seq. 


Education Law§§ 902(b) and 3209 
Executive Law Article 19-H 
8 NYCRR § 100.2(x) 


Adopted: 1/27/04 
Revised: 1/9/07; 10/28/08; 12/ 12/ 17; 







2019 


Students 


SUBJECT: EDUCATION OF STUDENTS IN FOSTER CARE 


7134 
1 of6 


The District recognizes the importance of educational stability for students in foster care and will 
collaborate, as appropriate, with the State Education Department (SEO) and the local Department of 
Social Services (LOSS) to ensure that students in foster care have the opportunity to achieve at the same 
high-levels as their peers. For purposes of this policy, LOSS also refers to the local Social Services 
District or the local child welfare agency. 


Definitions 


a) Child or youth in foster care ("student in foster care") means a child who is in the care and 
custody or custody and guardianship of a local Commissioner of Social Services or the 
Commissioner of the Office of Children and Family Services. 


b) Feeder school means: 


1. A preschool whose students are entitled to attend a specified elementary school or group of 
elementary schools upon completion of that preschool; 


2. A school whose students are entitled to attend a specified elementary, middle, intermediate, 
or high school or group of specified elementary, middle, intermediate, or high schools upon 
completion of the terminal grade of such school; or 


3. A school that sends its students to a receiving school in a neighboring school district pursuant 
to applicable laws and regulations. 


c) Foster care means 24-hour substitute care for children placed away from their parents or i.,uardians 
and for whom the state or tribal child welfare agency has placement and care responsibility. This 
includes, but is not limited to, placements in foster family homes, foster homes ofrelatives, group 
homes, emergency shelters, residential facilities, child care institutions, and pre-adoptive homes. 
A child is in foster care regardless of whether the foster care facility is licensed and payments are 
made by the state, tribal or local agency for the care of the child, whether adoption subsidy 
payments are being made prior to the finalization of an adoption, or whether there is federal 
matching of any payments that are made. 


d) Preschool means a publicly funded prekindergarten program administered by SEO or a local 
educational agency or a Head Start program administered by a local educational agency and/or 
services under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) administered by a local 
educational agency. 


e) Receiving school means: 


1. A school that enrolls students from a specified or group of preschools, elementary schools, 
middle schools, intermediate schools, or high schools; or 


(Continued} 







2019 


Students 


SUBJECT: EDUCATION OF STUDENTS IN FOSTER CARE (Cont'd.) 


7134 
2 of6 


2. A school that enrolls students from a feeder school in a neighboring local educational agency 
pursuant to applicable laws and regulations. 


f) School district of origin means the school district within New York State in which the child or 
youth in foster care was attending a public school or preschool on a tuition-free basis or was 
entitled to attend at the time of placement into foster care when the Social Services District or the 
Office of Children and Family Services assumed care and custody or custody and guardianship of 
such child or youth, which is different from the school district of residence. 


g) School district of residence means the public school district within New York State in which the 
foster care placement is located, which is different from the school district of origin. 


h) School of origin means a public school that a child or youth attended at the time of placement into 
foster care, or the school in which the child or youth was last enrolled, including a preschool or a 
charter school. For a child or youth in foster care who completes the final grade level served by 
the school of origin, the term school of origin will include the designated receiving school at the 
next grade level for all feeder schools. Where the child is eligible to attend school in the school 
district of origin because the child was placed in foster care after such child is eligible to apply, 
register, or enroll in the public preschool or kindergarten or the child is living with a school-age 
sibling who attends school in the school district of origin, the school of origin will include any 
public school or preschool in which such child would have been entitled or eligible to attend based 
on such child's last residence before the circumstances arose which caused such child to be placed 
in foster care. 


District Foster Care Liaison 


The District will designate an appropriate staff person to act as the District's point of contact for 
students in foster care {i.e., the "Foster Care Liaison"). The Foster Care Liaison will not be the same 
staff person as the McKinney-Vento Liaison unless the McKinney-Vento Liaison has sufficient ability 
to carry out the responsibilities of both roles. 


The Foster Care Liaison will work collaboratively with representatives from the LOSS. 


The District will ensure that the name and contact information for the Foster Care Liaison are: 


a) Submitted to SED; 


b) Provided, in writing, to the point of contact for any LOSS known by the District to have 
students in its custody; and 


c) Posted on the District website. 


(Continued) 







2019 


Students 


SUBJECT: EDUCATION OF STUDENTS IN FOSTER CARE (Cont'd.) 


Designation of School District and School 


7134 
3 of6 


The LOSS, in consultation with the appropriate local educational agency or agencies, will 
determine whether placement in the school district of origin or the school district of residence is in the 
best interest of a student in foster care. Provided that the District is an appropriate local educational 
agency, the District will work with the LOSS to make the best interest determination as quickly as 
possible in order to prevent educational discontinuity for the student. If the student has an Individualized 
Education Program (IEP), a Section 504 plan, or is an English language learner, relevant school staff 
may be consulted during the best interest determination process. 


To the extent feasible and appropriate, the student should remain in his or her school of origin 
while the best interest determination is being made. 


Subject to a best interest determination, a student in foster care is entitled to attend the school of 
origin or any school that children and youth who live in the attendance area in which the foster care 
placement is located are eligible to attend, including a preschool, for the duration of the student's 
placement in foster care and until the end of the school year in which he or she is no longer in foster 
care, and for one additional year if that year constitutes the student's terminal year in that building. 


Where the school district of origin or school of origin that a student was attending on a tuition-free 
basis, or was entitled to attend when the student entered foster care is located, in New York State and 
the student's foster care placement is located in a contiguous state, the student is entitled to attend his or 
her school of origin or any school that children and youth who live in the attendance area in which the 
foster care placement is located are eligible to attend, including a preschool, subject to a best interest 
determination, for the duration of the studenits placement in foster care and until the end of the school 
year in which he or she is no longer in foster care, and for one additional year if that year constitutes the 
student's terminal year in such building. 


Responsibilities When Designated as the School District of Attendance 


If the District is designated as the school district of attendance for a student in foster care, the 
District will immediately: 


a) Enroll the student in foster care, even if the student is unable to produce records which are 
normally required for enrollment, such as previous academic records, records of 
immunization and/or other required health records, proof of residency or other 
documentation and/or even if the student has missed application or enrollment deadlines 
during any period of placement in foster care, if applicable; 


b) Treat the student in foster care as a resident for all purposes; and 


(Continued) 







2019 


Students 


SUBJECT: EDUCATION OF STUDENTS IN FOSTER CARE (Cont'd.) 


7134 
4of6 


c) Make a written request to the school district where the student's records are located in order 
to obtain a copy of the student's records and coordinate the transmittal of these records in 
accordance with applicable laws and regulations. 


Request for Records 


Within five days of receipt of a request for school records from a new school, the District will 
forward, in a manner consistent with federal and state law, a complete copy of the records of the student 
in foster care, including, but not limited to: proof of age; academic records; evaluations; immunization 
records; and guardianship papers (if applicable). 


Tuition Reimbursement 


Except as otherwise provided in law or regulation. the cost of instruction of a student in foster care 
will be borne by the school district of origin. Where a district other than the school district of origin is 
designated as the school district of attendance, the cost of instruction will be borne by the school district 
of origin and the tuition paid to the designated school district of attendance will be computed in 
accordance with applicable laws and regulations. 


Transportation Responsibilities 


Any student in foster care who requires transportation in order to attend his or her school of origin, 
is entitled to receive that transportation. 


As appropriate, the District will coordinate and collaborate with the LOSS to make an appropriate 
transportation plan that supports the student's school stability plan and is fair to the District's taxpayers, 
consistent with the District's obligations under federal and state law. 


When the District is the designated school district of attendance, and the student requires 
transportation to attend his or her school of origin, the District will provide transportation to and from 
the student's foster care placement location and the school of origin. The costs for transportation may 
be aidable pursuant to applicable laws and regulations. 


When the District is the school district of residence and the designated school district of 
attendance, and the student does not attend his or her school of origin, the District will provide 
transportation on the same basis as provided to resident students. The costs for transportation may be 
aidable pursuant to applicable laws and regulations. 


When transporting students in foster care, the District may incur excess transportation costs, as 
defined by law. The District and the LOSS may enter into a written agreement relating to how excess 
transportation costs should be funded, consistent with applicable laws and regulations. Absent such an 


(Continued) 







2019 


Students 


SUBJECT: EDUCATION OF STUDENTS IN FOSTER CARE (Cont'd.) 


7134 
5 of6 


agreement, excess transportation costs incurred by the District will be shared equally between the LOSS 
responsible for the foster care costs of the student and the designated school district of attendance. The 
District and the LDSS will consider and utilize all allowable funding sources, including any available 
federal funds, to cover excess transportation costs. 


Where a student in foster care has been placed in foster care in a contiguous state, and the District 
is the designated district of attendance, the District will collaborate with the LOSS to arrange for 
transportation. 


Where the School of Origin is a Charter School 


Where the school of origin is a charter school, the school district designated as the school district 
of attendance for a student in foster care will be deemed to be the school district of residence for the 
student for purposes of fiscal and programmatic responsibility and will be responsible for transportation 
of the student in foster care. If the designated school district of attendance is not the school district of 
origin, the designated school district of attendance may seek reimbursement from the school district of 
origin in accordance with applicable laws and regulations. 


Dispute Resolution Process 


To the extent feasible and appropriate, the District will ensure that a student in foster care remains 
in his or her school of origin while any dispute is being resolved in order to minimize disruptions and 
reduce the number of moves between schools. 


Coordination with Other Agencies 


The District will coordinate the provision of services described in this policy, as appropriate, with 
agencies or programs providing services to students in foster care. 


The District will coordinate with other school districts on inter-district issues, such as 
transportation or transfer of school records. 


The District will coordinate implementation of the above provision of services with the 
requirements of IDEA for students with disabilities. 


Comparable Services 


Each student in foster care will be provided services comparable to other students in the school of 
attendance, including: transportation services; educational services for which the student meets 
eligibility criteria; educational programs for students with disabilities; educational programs for English 
learners; programs in career and technical education; programs for gifted and talented students; and 
school nutrition programs. 


(Continued) 







2019 


Students 


SUBJECT: EDUCATION OF STUDENTS IN FOSTER CARE (Cont'd.) 


Student Privacy 


7134 
6 of6 


As appropriate, the District will collaborate with SEO and/or the LOSS to detennine what 
documentation related to a student in foster care should be shared among involved parties. In all cases, 
the District will comply with all statutory requirements to protect student privacy, including the Family 
Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and any other applicable privacy requirements under 
federal, state, or local laws. 


45 USC§ 6312 
45 CFR § 1355.20(a) 
US DOE, Non-Regulatory Guidance: Ensuring Stability for Children in Foster Care (June 23, 2016) 
Education Law §§ 3202 and 3244 
Memorandum from NY St. Educ. Department on Educational Stability and Transportation Provisions for Students 
in Foster Care Memo (December 2, 2016) 


NOTE: Refer also to Policies #5660 -- Meal Charging and Prohibition Against Meal Shaming 
#7240 -- Student Records: Access and Challenge 


Adopted: 3/12/19 
Revised: 







2019 


Students 


SUBJECT: STUDENT RECORDS: ACCESS AND CHALLENGE 


7240 
I of6 


The Sehool District shall will comply with the provisions of the Family Educational Rights and 
Privacy Act of 1974 (FERPA). Under its provisions, parents or guardians and non-custodial parent(s), 
whose rights are not limited by court order or fonnal agreement, of a student under 18, or a student who 
is 18 years of age or older or who is attending an institution of post-secondary education, have a right 
to inspect and review any and all education records maintained by the School District. 


Education Records 


The tenn "education records" is defined as all records, files, documents and other materials 
containing infonnation directly related to a student; and maintained by the education agency or 
institution, or by a person acting for Stieft that agency or institution. (34 Code of Federal Regulatiens 
(CPR) SectioR 99.3). This includes all records regardless of medium, including, but not limited to, 
handwriting, videotape or audiotape, electronic or computer files, film, print, microfilm, and microfiche. 


In addition, for students who attend a public school district, all records pertaining to services 
provided under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) are considered "education 
records" under FERPA. As sueh, and they are subject to the confidentiality provisions of both Acts. 


However, personal notes made by teachers or other staff., OR the ether kand, are not considered 
education records if they are: 


a) Kept in the sole possession of the maker; 


b) Not accessible or revealed to any other person except a temporary substitute; and 


c) Used only as a memory aid. 


Additionally, FERP A does not prohibit a school official from disclosing infonnation about a 
student if the infonnation is obtained through the school official's personal knowledge or observation 
and not from the student1s education records. 


Records created and maintained by a law enforcement unit for law enforcement purposes are also 
excluded. 


Access to Student Records 


Tke Beard directs that Administrative regulations and procedures will be fon=nulated developed to 
comply with the provisions of federal law relating to the availability of student records. The purpose of 
Stieft these regulations and procedures shall be is to make available to the parents or guardians of students 
and non-custodial parent(s) whose rights are not limited by court order or fonnal agreement, or students 
who are 18 years of age or older or who are attending an institution of post-secondary education, student 
records, and files on students, and to ensure the confidentiality of sooh these records with respect to third 
parties. 


(Continued) 







2019 


Students 


SUBJECT: STUDENT RECORDS: ACCESS AND CHALLENGE (Cont'd.) 


7240 
2 of6 


Under FERP A, unless otherwise exempted in accordance with law and regulation, the District may 
release personally identifiable information (PII) contained in student education records only if it has 
received a "signed and dated written consent" from a parent or eligible student. Signed and dated written 
consent may include a record and signature in electronic form provided that ~ the signature: 


a) Identifies and authenticates a particular person as the source of the electronic consent; and 


b) Indicates ~ the person's approval of the information contained in the electronic consent. 


Exceptions 


Without the consent of a parent or eligible student, a the District may release a student's 
information or records when it is: 


a) Directory Information and Limited Directory Information 


Directory information is information contained in an education record of a student that would 
not generally be considered harmful or an invasion of privacy if disclosed. Limited Directory 
Information Disclosure means that the District may limit disclosure of its designated 
directory information to specific parties, for specific purposes, or both. The intent is to allow 
schools the option to implement policies that allow for the disclosure of student information 
for uses such as yearbooks, honor roll lists graduation programs, and play bills but restrict 
disclosure for more potentially dangerous purposes. The District skaH- will limit disclosure 
of its designated directory information as otherwise specified in its public notice to parents 
of students in attendance and eligible students in attendance. 


b) To School Officials who have a Legitimate Educational Interest 


To other school officials, including teachers, within the educational agency or institution 
whom the school has determined to have legitimate educational interests. An educational 
interest includes the behavior of a student and disciplinary action taken against Stieh the 
student for conduct that posed a significant risk to the safety or well-being of the student, 
other students or other members of the school community. A school official has a legitimate 
educational interest if the official needs to review an education record in order to fulfill his 
or her professional responsibility. 


c) To Another Educational Institution 


The District may disclose any and all educational records, including disciplinary records and 
records that were created as a result of a student receiving special education services under 
Part B of IDEA, to another school or postsecondary institution at which the student seeks or 
intends to enroll, or after the student has enrolled or transferred, so long as the disclosure is 


(Continued) 







2019 


Students 


SUBJECT: STUDENT RECORDS: ACCESS AND CHALLENGE (Cont'd.) 


7240 
3 of6 


for purposes related to the student's enrollment or transfer. Parental consent is not required 
for transferring education records if the school's annual FERP A notification indicates that 
SHeh these disclosures may be made. In the absence of information about disclosures in the 
annual FERP A notification, school officials must make a reasonable attempt to notify the 
parent about the disclosure, unless the parent initiated the disclosure. Additionally, upon 
request, schools must the District will provide a copy of the information disclosed and an 
opportunity for a hearing. 


d) For Health and Safety Emergency Reasons 


The District must balance the need to protect students' persoHally identifiable iHfonnatioa 
PII with the need to address issues of school safety and emergency preparedness. Under 
FERP A, if an educational agency or institution determines that there is an articulable and 
significant threat to the health or safety of a student or other individuals, it may disclose 
information from education records, without consent, to any person whose knowledge of the 
information is necessary to protect the health and safety of the student or other individuals 
during the period of the health or safety emergency. The District may release information 
from records to appropriate parties including, but not limited to, parents, law enforcement 
officials and medical personnel. The District's determination that there is an articulable and 
significant threat to the health or safety of a student or other individuals Sfta-1-l will be based 
upon a totality of the circumstances, including the information available, at the time the 
determination is made. The District must record the articulable and significant threat that 
formed the basis for the disclosure and maintain this record for as long as the student's 
education records are maintained. 


e) To Juvenile Justice Systems 


Information may be disclosed to state and local officials or authorities to whom information 
is specifically allowed to be reported or disclosed by a state statute that concerns the juvenile 
justice system and the system's ability to effectively serve, prior to adjudication, the student 
whose records were released. In SHeh these cases the official or authority must certify in 
writing that the information will not be disclosed to any other party except as provided under 
law without prior written consent. 


f) To Foster Care Agencies 


The District may release records to an agency caseworker or other representative of a State 
or local child welfare agency, who has the right to access a student's case plan, when the 
agency or organization is legally responsible, for the care and protection of the student. This 
does not give a child welfare agency the right to look into any non-foster care student's 
records, without parental consent, when there has been a mere allegation of abuse or neglect 
maltreatment, absent an order or subpoena (see belo1N). 


(Continued) 







2019 


Students 


SUBJECT: STUDENT RECORDS: ACCESS AND CHALLENGE (Cont'd.) 


g) Pursuant to a Subpoena or Court Order 


7240 
4 of6 


When a the district receives a subpoena or court order for the release of records, the Distriet 
~ it will make a reasonable effort to notify the parent or guardian or eligible student of 
the order or subpoena in advance of compliance. This allows the parent or guardian or 
eligible student to seek protective action against the subpoena or order before the release of 
the records. 


The District may disclose a student's records without first notifying parents or guardians or 
eligible students if the disclosure is: 


1. Based on a subpoena in which the court orders, for good cause shown, not to reveal to 
any person the existence or contents of the subpoena or any information furnished 
pursuant to the subpoena; 


2. Pt:1rsuaHt to In accordance with a judicial order in cases where the parents are a party 
to a court proceeding involving child abuse or Regleet maltreatment or dependency 
matters, and the order is issued in the context of that proceeding; or 


3. Made to a court (with or without an order or subpoena) when a District is involved in 
a legal action against a parent or student and the records are relevant to the matter. 


h) For Financial Aid Purposes 


Pertinent information may be released in connection with the determination of eligibility, 
amount, conditions and enforcement of terms of a student's financial aid. 


i) To Accrediting Organizations 


Disclosure of a student's records may be made to an organization in which that student seeks 
accreditation, in order to carry out their accrediting function. 


j) To Parents of a Dependent Student 


Even when a student turns 18 years of age or older a District may disclose education records 
to that student's parents, without the student's consent, if the student is claimed as a dependent 
for federal income tax purposes by either parent. 


k) For Audit/Evaluation Purposes 


The audit or evaluation exception allows for the disclosure of PU from education records 
without consent to authorized representatives of the Comptroller General of the U .S., the 
Attorney General, the Secretary of Education, federal, state or local educational authorities~ 


{Continued) 







2019 


Students 


7240 
5 of6 


SUBJECT: STUDENT RECORDS: ACCESS AND CHALLENGE (Cont'd.) 


1) 


("FERPA JJeffRiHeEI" entities). Under this exception, PII from education records must be used 
to audit or evaluate a federal or state supported education program, or to enforce or comply 
with federal legal requirements that relate to those education programs. (auelit, e't•aluatioR, or 
enforeemeRt or eomplianee aetiYity). 


The District may, from time to time occasionally, disclose PU from education records 
without consent to authorized representatives of the entities listed above. The District may 
also, from time to time, designate its own authorized representative who may access PII 
without consent in connection with an audit or evaluation of an education program within 
the District. As an example, the District might designate a university as its authorized 
representative in order to disclose, without consent, PU from education records on its former 
students to the university. The university could then disclose, without consent, transcript data 
on those fonner students attending the university to allow the District to evaluate how 
effectively the District prepared its students for success in postsecondary education. 


For Conducting Studies 


This exception allows for the disclosure of PII from education records without consent to 
organizations conducting studies for, or on behalf of, schools, school districts or 
postsecondary institutions. Studies can be for the purpose of developing, validating, or 
administering predictive tests; administering student aid programs; or improving instruction. 


The District may, from time to time, disclose PU from education records without consent to 
Stieff these organizations conducting studies for the District, in accordance with its 
obligations under FERP A. 


In addition, other entities outside of the District may, &om time to time occasionally, disclose PII 
from education records that the District has previously shared with that entity, to organizations 
conducting studies on behalf of the District. For example, a State Education Agency (SEA) may disclose 
PII from education records provided by the District without consent to an organization for the purpose 
of conducting a study that compares program outcomes across school districts to further assess the 
effectiveness of -5t:leh these programs with the goal of providing the best instruction. 


Required Agreements for the Studies or Audit/Evaluation Exceptions (see items k and 1) 


To the extent required by law, the District Sftal-l will enter into a written agreement with 
organizations conducting studies for the District, or, with its designated authorized representatives in 
connection with audits or evaluations of education programs within the District. In the event that the 
District discloses PII from education records to its own designated authorized representative in 
connection with an audit or evaluation of an educational program within the District, it Sftal-l will use 
reasonable methods to ensure to the greatest extent practicable that its designated authorized 
representative complies with FERPA and its regulations. 


(Continued) 







2019 


Students 


SUBJECT: STUDENT RECORDS: ACCESS AND CHALLENGE (Cont'd.) 


Challenge to Student Records 


7240 
6 of6 


Parents or guardians of a student under the age of 18, or a student who is 18 years of age or older 
or who is attending an institution of post-secondary education, shall will have an opportunity for a 
hearing to challenge the content of the school records, to ensure that the records are not inaccurate, 
misleading, or otherwise in violation of the privacy of students, and to provide an opportunity for the 
correction or deletion of any sueh inaccurate, misleading, or otherwise inappropriate data. eeRtaiReEI 
thereiR. 


Release of Information to the Non-Custodial Parent 


The District may presume that the non-custodial parent has the authority to request information 
concerning his or her child and release~ this information upon request. If the custodial parent wishes 
to limit the non-custodial parent's access to the records, it v,•m:dEI ee is his or her responsibility to obtain 
and present to the school a legally binding instrument that prevents the release of said- information related 
to the child. 


Parents' Bill of Rights 


The District posts a parents' bill of rights for data privacy and security on its website, and it includes 
this bill of rights with every contract it enters into with a third-party contractor that receives student, 
teacher, or principal data. The bill of rights informs parents of the legal requirements regarding privacy, 
security, and use of student data. 


Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974, 20 USC§ 1232g 
34 CFR Part 99 
Education Law § 2-d 


NOTE: Refer also to Policies #7241 -- Student Directory Information 


Adopted: 1992 


#7242 -- Military Recruiters and Institutions of Higher Education 
#7243 -- Student Data Breaches 
#7643 -- Transfer Students with Disabilities 


Revised: 1/9/07; 10/28/08; 4/7/09; 12/ 18/1 2; 4/14/15; 12/12/17; 







2019 7242 


Students 


SUBJECT: MIL IT ARY RECRUITERS AND INSTITUTIONS OF HIGHER EDUCATION 


Requests for Information 


The District will comply with requests from military recruiters and institutions of higher education 
{IHEs) for access to the name, address and telephone listing of each secondary school student, except 
for any student whose parent (or the student, if he or she is at least 18 years of age) has submitted a 
written request to opt out of this disclosure, in which case the information will not be released without 
the parent's (or student's, if he or she is at least 18 years of age) prior written consent. 


Annual Notification and Opt Out Opportunity 


The District will annually notify parents of a secondary student (or the student, ifhe or she is at 
least 18 years of age) of the opportunity to submit a written request to opt out of disclosure of the 
student's name, address, and telephone listing to military recruiters and IHEs. If a written opt out request 
is submitted, the District will not disclose the student's information to military recruiters or IHEs without 
the parent's (or student's, if he or she is at least 18 years of age) prior written consent. 


Military Recruiter Access 


The District will provide military recruiters the same access to secondary school students as is 
provided generally to IHEs or prospective employers of those students. 


Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965, 20 USC § 7908 as amended 
by the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) of 2015 


10 USC§ 503 
Education Law § 2-a 


Adopted: 11/12/03 
Revised: 10/28/08; 12/1 2/17; 







2019 


Students 


SUBJECT: DESIGNATION OF PERSON IN PARENTAL RELATION 


7260 
1 of3 


A parent of a minor or incapacitated person may designate another person as a person in parental 
relation to that minor or incapacitated person for certain health care and educational decisions for a 
period not exceeding 5* 12 months. However, this parental designation is conditioned upon there being 
no prior order of any court in any jurisdiction currently in effect that would prohibit the parent from 
exercising the same or similar authority; and provided further that, in the case where a court has ordered 
that both parents must agree on education or health decisions regarding the child, a designation pursuant 
ta in accordance with this law will not be valid unless both parents have given their consent. 


The designation of a person in parental relation must be in writing in the form prescribed by law, 
and must include specified information as set forth in law for designations of 30 days or less, as well as 
additional information required for designations of more than 30 days. The designation of a person in 
parental relation may be presented to any school that requires the designation by either the parent or 
designee. The designation may specify a period of time less than six months for which the designation 
will be valid unless earlier revoked by the parent in accordance with law. However, a designation 
specifying a period of more than 30 days must be notarized. 


If no time period is specified in the designation, it will be valid until the earlier of: 


a) Revocation; or 


b) The expiration of 30 days from the date of signature if the designation does not meet the 
requirements for designations of more than 30 days, or 


c) ~ Twelve months from the date of commencement specified in the designation if the 
designation meets the requirements for designations of more than 30 days. 


Scope of Designation 


A designation made in accordance with this law may specify: 


a) The treatment, diagnosis or activities for which consent is authorized; 


b) Any treatment, diagnosis or activity for which consent is not authorized; or 


c) Any other limitation on the duties and responsibilities conveyed by the designation. 


Form of Designation 


Designations in General 


A designation of a person in parental relation pl:lrsuant te in accordance with this law must be in 
writing and include: 


(Continued) 







2019 


Students 


SUBJECT: DESIGNATION OF PERSON IN PARENTAL RELATION (Cont'd.) 


a) The name of the parent; 


b) The name of the designee; 


7260 
2 of3 


c) The name of each minor or incapacitated person with respect to whom the designation is 
made; 


d) The parent's signature; and 


e) The date of the signature. 


The designation may specify a period of time less than Si* 12 months for which the designation 
will be valid unless earlier revoked by the parent in accordance with Section 5-1554 of General 
Obligations Law. However, any designation specifying a period of more than 30 days must also conform 
to the following provisions as set forth in law. 


Designations for More Than 30 Days 


A designation specifying a period of more than 30 days must also include: 


a) An address and telephone number where the parent can be reached; 


b) An address and telephone number where the designee can be reached; 


c) The date of birth of each minor or incapacitated person with respect to whom the designation 
is made; 


d) The date or contingent event on which the designation commences; 


e) The written consent of the designee to the designation; and 


t) A statement that there is no prior order of any court in any jurisdiction currently in effect 
prohibiting the parent from making the designation. 


A designation specifying a period of more than 30 days must be notarized. 


Revocation of Designation 


A parent may revoke a designation by notifying, either orally or in writing, the designee or the 
school to which the designation has been presented, or by any other act evidencing a specific intent to 
revoke the designation. A designation will also be revoked upon the execution by the parent of a 
subsequent designation. Revocation by one parent authorized to execute SHeh a designation will be 
deemed effective and complete revocation of a designation in accordance with law. 


(Continued) 







2019 


Students 


SUBJECT: DESIGNATION OF PERSON IN PARENTAL RELATION (Cont'd.) 


7260 
3 of3 


A designee who receives notification from a parent of any Stieh revocation will immediately notify 
any school to which a designation has been presented. A parent may directly notify the school of the 
revocation, in which case the failure of the designee to notify the school of Stieh the revocation will not 
make the revocation ineffective. 


Effect of Designation 


a) A designee will possess all the powers and duties of a person in parental relation unless otherwise 
specified in the designation. 


b) A designation will not impose upon a designee a duty to support the child. 


c) A designation will not cause a change in the school district of residence of the child for purposes 
of the Education Law, and during the period of validity of the designation, the child will be 
presumed to be a resident of the school district in which the parent resided at the time the 
designation was made. 


d) A designation will tenninate and be revoked upon the death or incapacity of the parent who signed 
the designation. 


e) The decision of a designee will be superseded by a contravening decision of a parent. 


A person who acts based upon the consent of a designee reasonably and in the good faith belief 
that the parent has authorized the designee to provide the consent will not be deemed to have acted 
negligently, unreasonably or improperly in accepting the designation and acting upon the consent. 
However, this person may be deemed to have acted negligently, unreasonably or improperly if he or she 
has knowledge of facts indicating that the designation was never given, or did not extend to an act or 
acts in question, or was revoked. 


No provision of Title 15-A of the General Obligations Law will be construed to require designation 
of a person in parental relation where such designation is not otherwise required by law, rule or 
regulation. 


Education Law§§ 2 and 3212 
Family Court Act § 413 
General Obligations Law Title 15-A 
Public Health Law§§ 2164 and 2504 


Adopted: 3/14/06 
Revised: 12/12/1 7; 







2019 


Students 


7410 
1 of2 


SUBJECT: EXTRACURRICULAR ACTIVITIES 


Any organization within the District whose activities are conducted by students, and whose 
financial support is raised other than by taxation or though charges of the Board, is an extraclassroom 
activity (ECA). All ECAs must be approved by the Board. The Superintendent or designee will maintain 
an up-to-date register of all ECAs that are approved or discontinued. The District will develop detailed 
procedures for the establishment of ECAs. 


The Board may adopt rules and regulations to abolish and/or prohibit any fraternity, sorority, or 
other secret society in any secondary school in the District provided that the Board has found that the 
fraternity, sorority, or secret society has, by virtue of its activities, caused or created a disruption of or 
interference with the academic process of any secondary school within the District or caused or created 
a disruption of the academic process of any individual student or students in any secondary school within 
the District. 


Eligibility for Attendance 


Student participation in extracurricular activities is a privilege. Students must abide by the 
academic standards and standards of conduct for participation in extracurricular activities as established 
by the Board and outlined in the District's Code of Conduct and/or any other applicable document. 


Censorship of School-Sponsored Student Publications and Activities 


The District may exercise editorial control over the style and content of student speech in school
sponsored publications and activities that are part of the educational curriculum. 


Limited Open Forum 


The District maintains a limited open forum where one or more noncurricular related secondary 
student groups meet on District premises during noninstructional time. The District will not deny equal 
access or a fair opportunity to, or discriminate against these groups on the basis of the religious, political, 
philosophical, or other content of the speech at those meetings. 


that: 
To provide a fair opportunity to students who wish to conduct a meeting, the District will ensure 


a) The meeting is voluntary and student-initiated; 


b) There is no sponsorship of the meeting by the District, the government, or its agents or 
employees; 


c) Employees or agents of the District or government are present at religious meetings only in 
a nonparticipatory capacity; 


(Continued) 







2019 


Students 


SUBJECT: EXTRACURRICULAR ACTIVITIES (Cont'd.) 


7410 
2 of2 


d) The meeting does not materially and substantially interfere with the orderly conduct of 
educational activities within the District; and 


e) Non-District persons may not direct, conduct, control, or regularly attend activities of student 
groups. 


However, the District, its agents, and its employees, retain the authority to: 


a) Ban unlawful groups; 


b) Maintain order and discipline on District premises; 


c) Protect the well-being of students and employees; 


d) Assure that attendance of students at meetings is voluntary; and 


e) Restrict groups that materially and substantially interfere with the orderly conduct of 
educational activities. 


20 USC§§ 4071-4074 
Education Law§§ 1709-a, 2503-a, and 2554-a 
8 NYCRR Part 172 
NYSED Finance Pamphlet, The Safeguarding, Accounting, and Auditing of Extraclassroom Activity Funds, 


Revised 2019 


Revised: 6/24/97; 1/9/07; 1/9/ 18; 







SUBJECT: STUDENT PHYSICALS 


Health Examination and Certificate 


Health Examination 


2019 


Students 


7512 
1 of5 


Each student enrolled in a District school must have a satisfactory health examination conducted 
by a duly licensed physician, physician assistant, or nurse practitioner within 12 months prior to the 
commencement of the school year of the student's entrance into: 


a) A District school at any grade level; 


b) Pre-kindergarten or kindergarten; and 


c) 1st, 3rd, 5th, 7th, 9th, and I Ith grades. 


The District may also require an examination and health history of a student when it is determined 
by the District that it would promote the educational interests of the student. 


The District will also provide health examinations before participation in strenuous physical 
activity and periodically throughout the season as necessary, as well as for the issuance of employment 
certificates, vacation work permits, newspaper carrier certificates, and street trades badges. 


Health Certificate 


Each student must submit a health certificate attesting to the health examination within 30 calendar 
days after his or her entrance into: 


a) A District school at any grade level; 


b) Pre-Kindergarten or kindergarten; and 


c) 1st, 3rd, 5th, 7th, 9th, and 11th grades. 


The building principal or designee will send a notice to the parent of, or person in parental relation 
to, any student who does not present a health certificate, that if the required health certificate is not 
furnished within 30 calendar days from the date of the notice, an examination by health appraisal will 
be made of the student by the Director of School Health Services. 


The health certificate will be filed in the student's cumulative record. The health certificate must: 


a) Be on a form prescribed by the Commissioner; 


(Continued) 







2019 


Students 


SUBJECT: STUDENT PHYSICALS (Cont'd.) 


7512 
2 of5 


b) Describe the condition of the student when the examination was given, provided that such 
examination was not given more than 12 months prior to the commencement of the school 
year in which the examination is required; 


c) State the results of any test conducted on the student for sickle cell anemia; 


d) State whether the student is in a fit condition of health to permit his or her attendance at a 
District school and, where applicable, whether the student has impaired sight or hearing, has 
received a scoliosis screening, or has any other physical disability which may tend to prevent 
the student from receiving the full benefit of school work or from receiving the best 
educational results, or which may require a modification of such work to prevent injury to 
the student; 


e) State the student's body mass index (BMI) and weight status category; and 


f) Be signed by a duly licensed physician, physician assistant, or nurse practitioner, who is: 


1. Authorized by law to practice in New York State consistent with any applicable written 
practice agreement; or 


2. Authorized to practice in the jurisdiction in which the examination was given, provided 
that the Commissioner has determined that the jurisdiction has standards of licensure 
and practice comparable to those of New York State. 


A licensed health professional with appropriate training may conduct a scoliosis screening. 


Dental Health Certificate 


The District will request a dental health certificate from each student at the same time that health 
certificates are required. 


The District may also request an assessment and dental health history of a student when it is 
determined by the District that it would promote the educational interests of the student. 


A notice ofrequest for a dental health certificate will be distributed at the same time that the parent 
or person in parental relation is notified of health examination requirements. The notice ofrequest for a 
dental health certificate will list dental practices, dentists, and registered dental hygienists to which 
students may be referred for dental services on a free or reduced cost basis upon request of the student's 
school. 


(Continued) 







2019 


Students 


SUBJECT: STUDENT PHYSICALS (Cont'd.) 


7512 
3 of5 


The dental health certificate will be filed in the student's cumulative record. The dental health 
certificate must: 


a) Describe the dental health condition of the student when the assessment was given, provided 
that the assessment was not given more than 12 months prior to the commencement of the 
school year in which the assessment is requested; and 


b) State whether the student is in fit condition of dental health to permit his or her attendance 
at a District school; and 


c) Be signed by a duly licensed dentist, or a registered dental hygienist, who is: 


l. Authorized by law to practice in New York State, and consistent with any applicable 
written practice agreement; or 


2. Authorized to practice in the jurisdiction in which the assessment was performed, 
provided that the Commissioner has determined that the jurisdiction has standards of 
licensure and practice comparable to New York State. 


Examination by Health Appraisal 


The Director of School Health Services will cause students who are required to, but have not 
submitted, the required health certificate and students with disabilities to be separately and carefully 
examined and tested to ascertain whether any student has impaired sight or hearing, or any other physical 
disability which may tend to prevent the student from receiving the full benefit of school work or from 
receiving the best educational results, or which may require a modification of work to prevent injury to 
the student. 


Each examination will include a calculation of the student's BMI and weight status category. 
Further, the physician, physician assistant, or nurse practitioner administering the examination will 
determine whether a one-time test for sickle cell anemia is necessary or desirable and, if so determined, 
will conduct the test and include the results in the health certificate. 


Unless otherwise prohibited by law, if it is ascertained that a student has impaired sight or hearing, 
or a physical disability or other condition, including sickle cell anemia, the building principal or designee 
will notify, in writing, the student's parent or person in parental relation as to the existence of the 
disability. If the parent or person in parental relation is unable or unwilling to provide the necessary 
relief and treatment for the student, it will be reported by the building principal or designee to the 
Director of School Health Services, who then has the duty to provide relief for the student. 


(Continued) 







SUBJECT: STUDENT PHYSICALS (Cont'd.) 


District Reporting ofBMI and Weight Status Category 


2019 


Students 


7512 
4 of5 


Each school year, the New York State Department of Health randomly selects a certain number of 
districts across New York State to report, in the aggregate, students' BMI and weight status categories. 
Selected districts must report BMI results on-line using the Department of Health's Health Provider 
Network secure website. A student's parent or person in parental relation may refuse to have the student's 
BMI and weight status category included in such survey. 


Health Screenings 


The District will provide a: 


a) Scoliosis screening, if not documented on the student's health certificate, at least once each 
school year for male students in grade 9, and for female students in grades 5 and 7. The 
positive results of any scoliosis screening examination will be provided in writing to the 
student's parent or person in parental relation within 90 calendar days after the finding; 


b) Vision screening, if not documented on the student's health certificate, to all students within 
six months of admission to a District school. The vision screening will test the student's color 
perception, distance acuity, and near vision. In addition, all students will be screened for 
distance acuity and near vision in grades pre-kindergarten or kindergarten, I, 3, 5, 7, and I I , 
as well as at any other time deemed necessary. The results of all vision screening 
examinations will be provided in writing to the student's parent or person in parental relation 
and to any teacher of the student while the student is enrolled in the District school; and 


c) Hearing screening, if not documented on the student's health certificate, to all students within 
six months of admission to a District school. In addition, all students will receive a hearing 
screening in grades pre-kindergarten or kindergarten, I, 3, 5, 7, and I I, as well as at any 
other time deemed necessary. Each hearing screening will include, but not be limited to, pure 
tone screening. The results of any hearing tests requiring a follow-up examination will be 
provided in writing to the student's parent or person in parental relation and to any teacher 
of the student while the student is enrolled in the District school. 


The results of all health screenings will be recorded in the student's cumulative health record which 
will be maintained by the school for at least as long as the minimum retention period for such records. 


Student Health Records 


The health records of individual students will be kept confidential in accordance with the federal 
Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and any other applicable federal and state laws. 


(Continued) 







SUBJECT: STUDENT PHYSICALS (Cont'd.) 


Accommodation for Religious Beliefs 


2019 


Students 


7512 
5 of5 


No health examinations, health history, examinations for health appraisal, screening examinations 
for sickle cell anemia and/or other health screenings will be required where a student or the parent or 
person in parental relation to that student objects on the grounds that the examinations, health history, 
and/or screenings conflict with their genuine and sincere religious beliefs. A written and signed 
statement from the student or the student's parent or person in parental relation that the person holds 
these beliefs must be submitted to the building principal or designee, in which case he or she may require 
supporting documents. 


Students in Temporary Housing 


For students in temporary housing (i.e., homeless children and youth), the enrolling school must 
immediately refer the parent or guardian of the student to the District's McKinney-Vento liaison, who 
will assist them in obtaining the necessary medical records. 


20 USC§ 1232g 
Education Law§§ 903-905, and 3220 
8 NYCRR §§ 136.1, 136.3 


NOTE: Refer also to Policies #5690 -- Exposure Control Program 
#5691 -- Communicable Diseases 
#5692 -- Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV) Related Illnesses 
#7121 -- Diagnostic Screening of Students 
#7131 -- Education of Students in Temporary Housing 
#7250 -- Student Privacy, Parental Access to Information, and 


Administration of Certain Physical Examinations to Minors 
#7420 -- Sports and the Athletic Program 
#7510 -- School Health Services 
#7511 -- Immunization of Students 
#7522 -- Concussion Management 


Adopted: 1992 
Revised: 11/1 2/03; 1/9/07; 10/28/08; 3/20/12; 7/9/13; 5/5/1 5; 







SUBJECT: MEDICATION AND PERSONAL CARE ITEMS 


Administration of Medication 


2019 


Students 


7513 
1 of 4 


The school's registered professional nurse may administer medication to a student during the 
school day under certain conditions. For the purpose of this policy, the term 11medication" includes both 
prescription and non-prescription medications. The school must receive the following before medication 
will be administered to a student: 


a) The original written order from the student's provider stating the name of the medication, 
precise dosage, frequency, and time of administration; 


b) A written, signed consent from the student1s parent or person in parental relation requesting 
the administration of the medication, as prescribed by the physician, to the student in school; 
and 


c) The medication, properly labeled in its original container, must be delivered to the school 
health office by the student's parent or person in parental relation. The term "properly 
labeled," in the context of this policy, means that the container must include the following 
information: the student's name, name of medication, dosage, frequency, and prescribing 
physician. A student is not permitted to carry any medication on his/her person in school, or 
on the school bus, or keep any medication in his/her school locker(s). Exceptions may apply, 
however, for students diagnosed with asthma or other respiratory illnesses, diabetes, or 
allergies who will be permitted to carry and self-administer medication under certain 
conditions. 


All medication orders must be reviewed annually by school health office personnel or whenever 
there is a change in dosage. 


Students with Asthma or Other Respiratory Illnesses 


The District will make a nebulizer available on-site in school buildings where full- or part-time 
nursing services are provided. Only students with a patient-specific order may have access to the 
nebulizer. School nursing personnel will clean and maintain the District nebulizer as appropriate. 


Personal equipment used to deliver albuterol to a student will be cleaned and appropriately labeled 
with the student's name and used solely by that individual student. (Examples of equipment to be cleaned 
and labeled are nebulizer tubing, facemask, mouthpiece, spacer, etc.) 


(Continued) 







2019 


Students 


SUBJECT: MEDICATION AND PERSONAL CARE ITEMS (Cont'd.) 


Self-Administration of Medication 


Generally 


7513 
2 of4 


Each student who is pennitted to self-administer medication should have an emergency care plan 
on file with the District. Further, the school will maintain a record of all written parental consents in the 
student1s cumulative health record. 


School health office personnel will also maintain regular parental contact in order to monitor the 
effectiveness of such self-medication procedures and to clarify parental responsibility as to the daily 
monitoring of their child to ensure that the medication is being utilized in accordance with the 
physician's or provider1s instructions. Additionally, the student will be required to report to the health 
office on a periodic basis as detennined by health office personnel so as to maintain an ongoing 
evaluation of the student's management of such self-medication techniques, and to work cooperatively 
with the parents and the student regarding such self-care management. 


Students who self-administer medication without proper authorization will be referred for 
counseling by school nursing personnel, as appropriate. Additionally, school administration and parents 
will be notified of such unauthorized use of medication by the student, and school administration may 
detennine the proper resolution of this behavior. 


Students with asthma or another respiratory disease 


A student wi11 be pennitted to carry and self-administer their prescribed inhaled rescue medication 
during the school day, on school property, and at any school function if the school health office has the 
following on file: 


a) Written order/pennission and an attestation from a duly authorized health care provider 
stating that the student has a diagnosis of asthma or other respiratory disease for which 
inhaled rescue medications are prescribed to alleviate respiratory symptoms or to prevent the 
onset of exercise induced asthma; the student has demonstrated that he/she can self
administer the prescribed medication effectively; and the expiration date of the order, the 
name of the prescribed medication, the dose the student is to self-administer, times when the 
medication is to be self-administered, and the circumstances which may warrant the use of 
the medication; and 


b) Written consent from the student's parent or person in parental relation. 


Upon written request of the student's parent or person in parental relation, the school will allow 
the student to maintain an extra inhaled rescue medication in the care and custody of the school's 
registered professional nurse, nurse practitioner, physician assistant, or school physician. 


(Continued) 







2019 


Students 


SUBJECT: MEDICATION AND PERSONAL CARE ITEMS (Cont'd.) 


Students with Allergies 


7513 
3 of4 


A student will be permitted to carry and self-administer his/her prescribed EpiPen during the 
school day, on school property, and at any school function if the school health office has the following 
on file: 


a) Written order/permission and an attestation from a duly authorized health care provider 
stating that the student has a diagnosis of an allergy for which an EpiPen is needed for the 
emergency treatment of allergic reactions; the student has demonstrated that he/she can self
administer the prescribed EpiPen effectively; and the expiration date of the order, the name 
of the medicine, the dose the student is to self-administer, and the circumstances which may 
warrant the use of the medication; and 


b) Written consent from the student's parent or person in parental relation. 


Upon written request of the student's parent or person in parental relation, the school will allow 
the student to maintain an extra EpiPen in the care and custody of a licensed nurse, nurse practitioner, 
physician assistant, or school physician. 


Students with Diabetes 


A student will be permitted to carry and self-administer his/her prescribed insulin through an 
appropriate medication delivery device, carry glucagon, and carry and use equipment and supplies 
necessary to check blood glucose and/or ketone levels during the school day, on school property, and at 
any school function if the school health office has the following on file: 


a) Written order/permission and an attestation from a duly authorized health care provider 
stating that the student has a diagnosis of diabetes for which insulin and glucagon through 
appropriate medication delivery devices, and the use of equipment and supplies to check 
blood glucose and/or ketone levels are necessary; the student has demonstrated that he/she 
she can self-administer effectively, can self-check glucose or ketone levels independently, 
and can independently follow prescribed treatment orders; and the expiration date of the 
order, the name of the prescribed insulin or glucagon, the type of insulin delivery system, the 
dose of insulin and/or glucagon the student is to self-administer, times when the insulin 
and/or glucagon is to be self-administered, and the circumstances which may warrant 
administration by the student. The written permission must also identify the prescribed blood 
glucose and/or ketone test, the times testing is to be done, and any circumstances which 
warrant checking a blood glucose and/or ketone level. 


b) Written consent from the student's parent or person in parental relation. 


(Continued) 







2019 


Students 


SUBJECT: MEDICATION AND PERSONAL CARE ITEMS (Cont'd.) 


7513 
4of4 


Upon written request of the student's parent or person in parental relation, the school will allow 
the student to maintain extra insulin, insulin delivery system, glucagon, blood glucose meter, and related 
supplies to treat the student's diabetes in the care and custody of a licensed nurse, nurse practitioner, 
physician assistant, or school physician. 


Students with diabetes will also be permitted to carry food, oral glucose, or other similar 
substances necessary to treat hypoglycemia in accordance with District policy. 


Storage and Disposal of Medication 


The District will comply with relevant state laws, regulations, and guidelines governing the 
District's receipt, storage, and disposal of medication. 


Personal Care Items 


Feminine Hygiene Products 


Each school building within the District serving students in any grade from six through twelve will 
provide femi i e hygiene products in building restrooms. These products will be provided at no charge 
to students. 


Alcohol-Based Hand Sanitizers 


The New York State Education Department (NYSED) permits the use of alcohol-based hand 
sanitizers in schools. The school medical director may approve and permit the use of alcohol-based hand 
sanitizers in the District's schools without a physician's order. Parents may provide written notification 
to the school in the event that they do not wish to have their child use this product. 


Sunscreen 


Students may carry and use FDA approved sunscreen products for over-the-counter use. The 
student's parent or person in parental relation must provide written permission for the student to carry 
and use sunscreen. This written parental consent will be maintained by the school. A student who is 
unable to physically apply sunscreen may be assisted by unlicensed personnel when directed to do so 
by the student, if permitted by a parent or person in parental relation, and authorized by the school. 


Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), 20 USC§ 1400 et seq. 
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 USC§ 794 et seq. 
Education Law§§ 902(b), 907,916, 916-a, 916-b, 919,921, 6527, 6908(l)(a)(iv), and 6909 
Public Health Law§§ 267, 3000-a, 3000-c, and 3309 
8 NYCRR §§ 136.6, 136.7 


NOTE: Refer also to Policy #7521 -- Students with Life-Threatening Health Conditions 


Revised: 6/24/97; 1/9/01; 11/12/03; 1/9/07; 10/28/08; 4/9/ 13; 2/9/ 16; 







2019 


Students 


SUBJECT: STUDENTS WITH LIFE-THREATENING HEAL TH CONDITIONS 


7521 
1 of 4 


Students come to school with diverse medical conditions which may impact their learning as well 
as their health. Some of these conditions are serious and may be life-threatening. As a result, students, 
parents, school personnel, and health care providers must all work together to provide the necessary 
information and training to allow children with chronic health problems to participate as fully and safely 
as possible in the school experience. This policy encompasses an array of serious or life-threatening 
medical conditions such as anaphylaxis, diabetes, seizure disorders, or severe asthma and acute medical 
conditions such as substance overdose. All students within the District with known life-threatening 
conditions will have a comprehensive plan of care in place: an Emergency Care Plan (ECP) or 
Individualized Healthcare Plan (IHP) and if appropriate, an Individualized Education Plan (IEP) or 
Section 504 Plan. 


Life-Threatening Conditions 


For those students with chronic life-threatening conditions such as diabetes, seizure disorders, 
asthma, and allergies, the District must work cooperatively with the parent(s) and the healthcare 
provider(s) to: 


a) Immediately develop an ECP for each at risk student to ensure that all appropriate personnel 
are aware of the student's potential for a life-threatening reaction; 


b) If appropriate, develop an IHP that includes all necessary treatments, medications, training, 
and educational requirements for the student. If the student is eligible for accommodations 
based upon the Individuals with Disabilities Act (IDEA), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation 
Act of 1973, or the Americans with Disabilities Act, the appropriate procedures will be 
followed regarding evaluation and identification; 


c) Provide training by licensed medical personnel (e.g., registered professional nurse) for all 
adults in a supervisory role in the recognition and emergency management of a specific 
medical condition for specific students; 


d) Obtain specific medical-legal documents duly executed in accordance with New York State 
law; appropriate health care provider authorization in writing for specific students that 
includes the frequency and conditions for any testing and/or treatment, symptoms, and 
treatment of any conditions associated with the health problem; and directions for 
emergencies; 


e) Secure written parent permission and discuss parental responsibility that includes providing 
the health care provider's orders, providing any necessary equipment, and participation in the 
education and co-management of the child as he/she works toward self-management; 


(Continued) 







2019 


Students 


7521 
2 of4 


SUBJECT: STUDENTS WITH LIFE-THREATENING HEAL TH CONDITIONS (Cont'd.) 


t) Allow supervised students to carry life-saving medication in accordance with relevant laws, 
regulations, and procedures. The District will also encourage parents and students to provide 
duplicate life-saving medication to be maintained in the health office in the event the self
carrying student misplaces, loses, or forgets their medication; 


g) Assure appropriate and reasonable building accommodations are in place within a reasonable 
degree of medical certainty. 


In addition, the District will: 


a) Provide training for transportation, instructional, food service, or physical education staff, as 
appropriate, in the recognition of an anaphylactic reaction; 


b) Have standing emergency medical protocols for nursing or other staff; 


c) Request the school medical director to write a non-patient specific order for anaphylaxis 
treatment agents for the school's registered professional nurse or other staff, as designated 
by the administration and allowed under federal and New York State laws and regulations, 
to administer in the event of an unanticipated anaphylactic episode; 


d) Maintain or ensure the maintenance of a copy of the standing order(s) and protocol(s) that 
authorizes them to administer emergency medications such as anaphylactic treatment agents; 


e) As permitted by New York State law, maintain stock supplies of life-saving emergency 
medications such as epinephrine auto-injectors or Naloxone (Narcan) for use, especially in 
first time emergencies; 


f) Allow the school registered nurse, nurse practitioner, or physician to train unlicensed school 
personnel to administer emergency epinephrine via auto-injector, or emergency glucagon, to 
students with both a written provider order and parent/person in parental relation consent 
during the school day, on school property, and at any school function. Such training will be 
done in accordance with specifications outlined in the Commissioner's regulations; 


g) Ensure that building-level safety plans and District-wide school safety f)lans emergency 
response plan include appropriate accommodations for students with life-threatening health 
conditions. 


h) Encourage families to obtain medic-alert bracelets for at risk students; 


i) Educate students regarding the importance of immediately reporting symptoms ofan allergic 
reaction. 


(Continued) 







2019 


Students 


7521 
3 of4 


SUBJECT: STUDENTS WITH LIFE-THREATENING HEAL TH CONDITIONS (Cont'd.) 


EmeFgeeey Medieatiee 


Epinephrine Auto lnj eetors fe.Alsl 


The Distriet kes entered into a eollaborati¥e agreement witk Dr. KrishBa Persaud iR order to 
provide and maiRtaiR EAis OR site iR its instraetioRal facilities. Tkis agreement allo1.Ys for trainee sekool 
employees, •.vho ha1i•e eompleted a },fov,r York State DepertmeRt of Heahk (NYSDOH) eourse, to 
eElminister EA ls to aR~' student or staff member \'i'ko demonstrates s~'fflptoms of anepk~·laxis, regafdless 
of whether sueh persoR kes a prior kistory of se·,·ere allergie reaetions. The Distriet will ensure tkat it 
kas suffieient EAls ai,·ailable to ensure reeEly end npprof)riate eeeess for use Eluring emergeRcies anEl will 
immeEliately report ei,•ery use of BFI EAi in eeeordanee witk the eollaborative agreement to [insert name 
of emergeney keahh eare proYider.] Tlte eollaboreth•e agreement, as defines in Puhlie Healtk Law 
Seetion 3000 e, is reEJuired for tke Distriet to permit trained sehool employees to administer stoek EAls 
to satdents and staff members wko do not haYe a f)Btient specific order for s1:1eh meElieation. 


Creating an Allergen-Safe School Environment 


The risk of accidental exposure or cross-contamination is always present in school, particularly 
for students with food allergies. The school setting is a high-risk environment for accidental ingestion 
of a food allergen due to the presence of a large number of students, increased exposure to food allergens, 
and cross-contamination of tables, desks, and other surfaces. 


In an effort to prevent accidental exposure to allergens, the District will monitor the following 
high-risk areas and activities: 


a) Cafeteria; 


b) Food sharing; 


c) Hidden ingredients in art, science, and other projects; 


d) Transportation; 


e) Fund raisers and bake sales; 


f) Parties and holiday celebrations; 


g) Field trips; 


h) Before and after school programs. 


i) Cafeteria; 


(Continued) 







2019 


Students 


7521 
4of4 


SUBJECT: STUDENTS WITH LIFE-THREATENING HEAL TH CONDITIONS (Cont'd.) 


Medication Self-Management 


The District will work toward assisting students in the self-management of their chronic health 
condition based upon the student's knowledge level and skill by: 


a) Adequately training all staff involved in the care of the child, as appropriate; 


b) Assuring the availability of the necessary equipment aaekr medications; 


c) Providing appropriately trained licensed persons as required by law; 


d) Developing an emergency plan for the student; and 


e) Providing ongoing staff and student education. 


Americans with Disabilities Act, 42 USC§ 12101, et seq. 
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), 20 USC§§ 1400-1485 
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 USC § 794 et seq. 
34 CFR Part 300 
Education Law§§ 6527 and 6908 
8 NYCRR §§ 136.6 and 136. 7 
Public Health Law§§ 2500-h, 3000-a, and 3000-c 


NOTE: Refer also to Policy #75 I 3 -- Medication and Personal Care Items 


Adopted: l /9/07 
Revised: 2124/09; 2/9/16; 







2019 


Students 


SUBJECT: CONCUSSION MANAGEMENT 


7522 
1 of3 


The Board of Education recognizes that concussions and head injuries are the most commonly 
reported injuries in children and adolescents who participate in sports and recreational activities. The 
physical and mental well-being of our students is a primary concern. Therefore, the North Rose-Wolcott 
Central School District adopts the following Policy to support the proper evaluation and management 
of concussion injuries. 


A concussion is a mi1d traumatic brain injury (MTBI). A concussion occurs when normal brain 
functioning is disrupted by a blow or jolt to the head or body that causes the head and brain to move 
rapidly back and forth. Recovery from concussion and its symptoms will vary. A voiding re-injury and 
over-exertion until fully recovered are the cornerstones of proper concussion management. Concussions 
can impact a student's academics as well as their athletic pursuits. 


Concussion Management Team (CMT) 


In accordance with the Concussion Management and Awareness Act, the School District is 
authorized, at its discretion, to establish a Concussion Management Team (CMT) which may be 
composed of the certified athletic director, a school nurse, the school physician, a coach of an 
interscholastic team, a certified athletic trainer or such other appropriate personnel as designated by the 
School District. The Concussion Management Team shall oversee and implement the School District's 
concussion policy and regulations, including the requirement that all school coaches, physical education 
teachers, nurses and certified athletic trainers who work with and/or provide instruction to pupils 
engaged in school-sponsored athletic activities complete training relating to mild traumatic brain 
injuries. Furthermore, every concussion management team may establish and implement a program 
which provides information on mild traumatic brain injuries to parents and persons in parental relation 
throughout each school year. 


Staff Training/Course of Instruction 


Each school coach, physical education teacher, school nurse and certified athletic trainer who 
works with and/or provides instruction to students in school-sponsored athletic activities (including 
physical education class and recess) shall complete a course of instruction every two years relating to 
recognizing the symptoms of concussions or MTBis and monitoring and seeking proper medical 
treatment for students who suffer from a concussion or MTBI. 


Components of the training will include: 


a) The definition of MTBI; 


b) Signs and symptoms ofMTBI; 


c) How MTBis may occur; 


(Continued) 







SUBJECT: CONCUSSION MANAGEMENT (Cont'd.) 


d} Practices regarding prevention; and 


2019 


Students 


7522 
2 of3 


e) Guidelines for the return to school and school activities for a student who has suffered an 
MTBI, even if the injury occurred outside of school. 


The course can be completed by means of instruction approved by SEO which include, but are not 
limited to, courses provided online and by teleconference. The CMT will utilize the District's existing 
system to document all required training and professional development for District staff. Upon 
completion of the training each year, staff will forward their course completion certificate to the 
appropriate staff for entry into the system. The system will also use an email to remind staff of the need 
to complete the training each year. Because concussion symptoms may manifest themselves in any 
setting, all school staff will be encouraged to take the online training and be alert for students who may 
display or report concussion symptoms. 


Information to Parents and Students 


The District skaH will include the following information on MTBis or em:icussion concussions in 
any permission or consent form or similar document that may be required from a parent/person in 
parental relation for a student's participation in interscholastic sports. Similar information will be 
provided to all students when they sign up for participation in sports and/or through information 
provided in physical education1 health or mental health classes. Information will include: 


a) The definition of MTBI; 


b) Signs and symptoms of MTBI; 


c) How MTBls may occur; 


d) Practices regarding prevention; and 


e) Guidelines for the return to school and school activities for a student who has suffered an 
MTBI, even if the injury occurred outside of school. 


The District will provide a link on its website, if one exists, to the above list of information on the 
State Education Department's and Department of Health's websites. 


Identification of Concussion and Removal from Athletic Activities 


The District shall require the immediate removal from all athletic activities of any student who has 
sustained, or is believed to have sustained, a mild traumatic brain injury (MTBI) or concussion. Any 
student demonstrating signs, symptoms or behaviors consistent with a concussion while participating in 
a class, extracurricular activity, or interscholastic athletic activity shall be removed from the class, game 


(Continued) 







2019 


Students 


SUBJECT: CONCUSSION MANAGEMENT (Cont'd.) 


7522 
3 of3 


or activity and must be evaluated as soon as possible by an appropriate health care professional. Such 
removal must occur based on display of symptoms regardless of whether such injury occurred inside or 
outside of school. If there is any doubt as to whether the student has sustained a concussion, it shall be 
presumed that the student has been injured until proven otherwise. The District shall notify the student's 
parents or guardians and recommend appropriate evaluation and monitoring. 


The School District may choose to allow credentialed District staff to use validated Neurocognitive 
computerized testing as a concussion assessment tool to obtain baseline and post-concussion 
performance data. These tools are not a replacement for a medical evaluation to diagnose and treat a 
concussion. The District must seek authorization from the parent/guardian prior to the testing. 
Additionally, parents/guardians should be given a copy of the results upon request. 


Return to School Activities and Athletics 


The student shall not return to physical activity (including athletics, physical education class and 
recess) until he/she has been symptom-free for not less than at least 24 hours, and has been evaluated 
and received written authorization from a licensed physician. In accordance with Commissioner's 
regulations, the School District's Medical Director will give final clearance on a return to activity for 
extra-class athletics. All such authorizations shall be kept on file in the student's permanent health 
record. The standards for return to athletic activity will also apply to injuries that occur outside of school. 
School staff should be aware that students may exhibit concussion symptoms caused by injuries from 
outside activities and that these visible symptoms also indicate a removal from play. 


The District shall follow any directives issued by the student's treating physician with regard to 
limitations and restrictions on school and athletic activities for the student. The District will also develop 
a coordinated communication plan among appropriate staff to ensure that the treating physician's orders 
for post-concussion management are implemented and followed. The school nurse will work to ensure 
that all the necessary staff get the information they need to care for and work with the injured student. 


The District's Medical Director may and other licensed health care professionals employed by the 
District will also formulate a standard protoeol fer treatment of procedure and treatment plan to be 
utilized by District staff who max respond to students or staff with possible concussions during the 
school day. 


In accordance with NYSED guidelines, this Policy sl=taU will be both reviewed perioelieally and 
updated periodically. as neeessary in aeeordance with New York State Eelueation Department 
guielelines. The Superintendent, in consultation with the District's Medical Director and other 
appropriate staff, may develop regulations and protocols for strategies to prevent concussions, the 
identification of concussions, and procedures for removal from and return to activities or academics. 


Education Law § 305( 42) 
8 NYCRR §§ 135.4 and 136.5 
Guidelines for Concussion Management in Schools, SEO Guidance Document, 2018 
Adopted: 12118/1 2 
Revised: 







2019 


Students 


SUBJECT: CHILD ABUSE AND MALTRE TMENT 


7530 
I of6 


The District takes seriously the obligations of its officers and employees to report cases of child 
abuse or maltreatment. To this end, regulations will be developed, maintained, and disseminated by 
administration regarding the: 


a) Mandatory reporting of suspected child abuse or maltreatment; 


b) Reporting procedures and obligations of persons required to report; 


c) Provisions for taking a child into protective custody; 


d) Mandatory reporting of deaths; 


e) Immunity from liability and penalties for failure to report; 


t) Obligations for provision of services and procedures necessary to safeguard the life or health 
of a child; and 


g) Provision of information in recognizing signs of unlawful methamphetamine laboratories for 
all current and new school officials (i.e., "mandated reporters11


) who, as part of their usual 
responsibilities, visit children's homes. 


Additionally, an ongoing training program for all current and new school officials will be 
established and implemented to enable the staff to carry out their reporting responsibilities. 


Reporting Information 


The District will post the child abuse hotline telephone number and directions for accessing the 
Office of Children and Family Services (OCFS) website in English and Spanish on its website and in 
clearly and highly visible areas of school buildings. The District will also make this information 
available from its administrative offices; provide it to parents and persons in parental relation at least 
once per school year by electronic communication, sending the information home with students, or 
otherwise; and provide it to each teacher and administrator. The District may post and provide this 
information in other, common languages used by the school community. 


Persons Required to Report 


Persons required to report cases of child abuse or maltreatment to the State Central Register (SCR) 
in accordance with Social Services Law Section 413(1) include, but are not limited to, school teachers, 
school guidance counselors, school psychologists, school social workers, school nurses, school 
administrators or other school personnel required to hold a teaching or administrative license or 
certificate, and full- or part-time compensated school employees required to hold a temporary coaching 
license or professional coaching certificate. 


(Continued) 







2019 


Students 


SUBJECT: CHILD ABUSE AND MALTREATMENT (Cont'd.) 


7530 
2 of6 


All mandated reporters must make the report themselves and then immediately notify the building 
principal or designee. The building principal or designee will be responsible for all subsequent 
administration necessitated by the report. Any report must include the name, title, and contact 
infonnation for every staff member who is believed to have direct knowledge of the allegations in the 
report. 


Prohibition of Retaliatory Personnel Action 


The District will not take any retaliatory personnel action against an employee because the 
employee believes that he or she has reasonable cause to suspect that a child is an abused or maltreated 
child and that employee makes a report to SCR. Further, no school official will impose any conditions, 
including prior approval or prior notification, upon any staff member specifically designated a mandated 
reporter. 


11Retaliatory personnel action" means the discharge, suspension, or demotion of an employee, or 
other adverse employment action taken against an employee in the terms and conditions of employment. 


Report Form 


The "Report of Suspected Child Abuse or Maltreatment11 Form LDSS-2221A may be accessed at 
the OCFS website. 


Child Abuse in an Educational Setting 


The District is committed to the protection of students in educational settings from abuse and 
maltreatment by employees or volunteers. 


Child abuse means any of the following acts committed in an educational setting by an employee 
or volunteer against a child {defined as a person under the age of 21 years enrolled in a school): 


a) Intentionally or recklessly inflicting physical injury, serious physical injury, or death; or 


b) Intentionally or recklessly engaging in conduct which creates a substantial risk of physical 
injury, serious physical injury, or death; or 


c) Any child sexual abuse, defined as conduct prohibited by Penal Law Articles 130 or 263; or 


d) The commission or attempted commission against a child of the crime of disseminating 
indecent materials to minors in accordance with Penal Law Article 235. 


Administrator or school administrator means a principal, or the equivalent title, in a school, or 
other chief school officer. 


{Continued) 







2019 


Students 


SUBJECT: CHILD ABUSE AND MAL TREATMENT (Cont'd.) 


7530 
3 of6 


Educational setting means the building(s) and grounds of the District; the vehicles provided 
directly or by contract by the District for the transportation of students to and from school buildings, 
field trips, co-curricular and extracurricular activities both on and off District grounds; all co-curricular 
and extracurricular activity sites; and any other location where direct contact between an employee or 
volunteer and a child has allegedly occurred. 


In any case where an oral or written allegation is made to a teacher, school nurse, school counselor, 
school psychologist, school social worker, school administrator, Board member, or other school 
personnel required to hold a teaching or administrative license or certificate, as well as a licensed and 
registered physical therapist, licensed and registered occupational therapist, licensed and registered 
speech-language pathologist, teacher aide or school resource officer that a child has been subjected to 
child abuse by an employee or volunteer in an educational setting, that person will upon receipt of the 
allegation: 


a) Promptly complete a written report of the allegation including the full name of the child 
alleged to be abused; the name of the child's parent; the identity of the person making the 
allegation and their relationship to the alleged child victim; the name of the employee or 
volunteer against whom the allegation was made; and a listing of the specific allegations of 
child abuse in an educational setting. This written report will be completed on a form 
prescribed by the Commissioner of Education. 


b) Except where the school administrator is the person receiving the oral or written allegation, 
the employee completing the written report must promptly personally deliver a copy of that 
written report to the school administrator of the school in which the child abuse allegedly 
occurred. 


In any case where an oral or written allegation is made to a school bus driver employed by a person 
or entity that contracts with the District to provide transportation services to children that a child has 
been subjected to child abuse by an employee or volunteer in an educational setting, that school bus 
driver will upon receipt of the allegation, promptly report or cause a report to be made to his or her 
supervisor employed by the contracting person or entity. 


In any case where an oral or written report or allegation is made to a supervisor who is employed 
by a person or entity that contracts with the District to provide transportation services to children from 
a person employed by the contracted person or entity that a child has been subjected to child abuse by 
an employee or volunteer in an educational setting, the supervisor must, upon receipt of an allegation: 


a) Promptly complete a written report of the allegation including the full name of the child 
alleged to be abused; the name of the child's parent or guardian; the identity of the person 
making the allegation and their relationship to the alleged child victim; the name of the 
employee or volunteer against whom the allegation was made; and a listing of the specific 


(Continued) 







2019 


Students 


SUBJECT: CHILD ABUSE AND MAL TREATMENT (Cont'd.) 


7530 
4 of6 


allegations of child abuse in an educational setting. This report must be completed on a fonn 
prescribed by the Commissioner. 


b) Ensure that the written report is personally delivered to the Superintendent employed by the 
school district where the child abuse occurred or, for a school other than a school district or 
public school, the school administrator employed by the school where the child abuse 
occurred. 


In any case where it is alleged a child was abused by an employee or volunteer of a school other 
than a school within the District, the report of these allegations will be promptly forwarded to the 
Superintendent of the District and the Superintendent of the school district where the abuse of the child 
allegedly occurred. If a case involves a school that is not a school district or public school, the 
appropriate school administrator or administrators, in addition to any appropriate Superintendent, must 
be noti fled of the allegations of abuse. 


If it is alleged the child was abused by the Superintendent or administrator, the report of the 
allegations will be made to another designated administrator. 


Any employee, volunteer, or supervisor who is employed by a person or entity that contracts with 
the District to provide transportation services to children who reasonably and in good faith makes a 
report of allegations of child abuse in an educational setting in accordance with the reporting 
requirements of the law will have immunity from civil liability which might otherwise result by reason 
of those actions. 


Upon receipt of a written report alleging child abuse in an educational setting, a school 
administrator or the Superintendent must then detennine whether there is reasonable suspicion to believe 
that an act of child abuse has occurred. Where there has been a detennination as to the existence of 
reasonable suspicion, the school administrator or Superintendent must follow the procedures mandated 
in law and further described in administrative regulations including parental notification. When the 
school administrator receives a written report, he or she must promptly provide a copy of the report to 
the Superintendent and promptly forward the report to appropriate law enforcement. In no event will 
reporting to law enforcement be delayed by an inability to contact the Superintendent. 


Where the Superintendent or, in a school other than a school district or public school, the school 
administrator has forwarded a written report of child abuse in an educational setting to law enforcement 
authorities, the Superintendent will also refer the report to the Commissioner if the employee or 
volunteer alleged to have committed an act of child abuse holds a certification or license issued by the 
State Education Department. 


Any school administrator or Superintendent who reasonably and in good faith makes a report of 
allegations of child abuse in an educational setting, or reasonably and in good faith transmits a report to 


(Continued) 







2019 


Students 


SUBJECT: CHILD ABUSE AND MALTREATMENT (Cont'd.) 


7530 
5 of6 


a person or agency as required by law, will have immunity from civil liability which might otherwise 
result by reason of those actions. 


Reports and other written material submitted in accordance with law with regard to allegations of 
child abuse in an educational setting, and photographs taken concerning those reports that are in the 
possession of any person legally authorized to receive that information, will be confidential and will not 
be redisclosed except to law enforcement authorities involved in an investigation of child abuse in an 
educational setting or as expressly authorized by law or in accordance with a court-ordered subpoena. 
School administrators and the Superintendent will exercise reasonable care in preventing unauthorized 
disclosure. 


Additionally, teachers and all other school officials will be provided an annual written explanation 
concerning the reporting of child abuse in an educational setting, including the immunity provisions as 
set forth in law. The Commissioner will furnish the District with required information, including rules 
and regulations for training necessary to implement District and staff responsibilities under the law. 


All persons employed by the District, in titles equivalent to teacher or administrator, and any 
school bus drivers employed by a person or entity that contracts with the District to provide 
transportation services to children, are required to complete coursework or training regarding the 
identification and reporting of child abuse and maltreatment in accordance with law and Commissioner's 
regulations. 


Prohibition of "Silent" (Unreported) Resignations 


The Superintendent and other school administrators are prohibited from withholding from law 
enforcement authorities, the Superintendent, or the Commissioner, as appropriate, information 
concerning allegations of child abuse in an educational setting against an employee or volunteer in 
exchange for that individual's resignation or voluntary suspension from his or her position. 


The Superintendent or other school administrator who reasonably and in good faith reports to law 
enforcement officials information regarding allegations of child abuse or a resignation as required by 
law will have immunity from any liability, civil or criminal, which might otherwise result by reason of 
those actions. 


Prohibition on Aiding and Abetting Sexual Abuse 


Unless exempted by law, no District employee, contractor, or agent of the District will assist 
another District employee, contractor, or agent in obtaining a new job, apart from the routine 
transmission of administrative and personnel files, if the individual or agency knows or has probable 
cause to believe, that the individual engaged in sexual misconduct regarding a minor or student in 
violation of the law. 


(Continued) 







SUBJECT: CHILD ABUSE AND MALTREATMENT (Cont'd.) 


Education Law Article 23-B and§§ 409-1, 902(b), 3028-b and 3209-a 
Family Court Act § IO 12 
Labor Law§ 740(l)(e) 
Penal Law Articles 130, 235 and 263 
Social Services Law §§ 411-428 
8 NYCRR Part 83, § 100.2(nn) 
20 USC§ 7926 


Adopted: 1992 
Revised: 11/1 2/03; 1/9/07; 10/28/08; 1/9/1 8; 


2019 


Students 


7530 
6 of6 







2019 


Students 


SUBJECT: DIGNITY FOR ALL STUDENTS 


7550 
I of 4 


The District seeks to create an environment free of harassment, bullying, and discrimination; to 
foster civility in its schools; and to prevent conduct that is inconsistent with its educational mission. The 
District, therefore, prohibits all forms of harassment and bullying of students by employees or other 
students on school property and at school functions. The District further prohibits discrimination against 
students, including, but not limited to, discriminatory acts based on a person•s actual or perceived race, 
color, weight, national origin, ethnic group, religion, religious practice, disability, sexual orientation, 
gender, or sex by school employees or other students on school property and at school functions that 
take place at locations off school property. In addition, other acts of harassment, bullying, or 
discrimination that can reasonably be expected to materially and substantially disrupt the education 
process may be subject to discipline or other corrective action. 


Dignity Act Coordinator 


In each of its schools, the District will designate at least one employee holding licenses or 
certifications as required by the Commissioner to serve as the Dignity Act Coordinator (DAC). Each 
DAC will be thoroughly trained to handle human relations in the areas of race, color, weight, national 
origin, ethnic group, religion, religious practice, disability, sexual orientation, gender (including gender 
identity or expression), and sex. Training will also be provided for DACs which addresses: the social 
patterns of harassment, bullying, and discrimination, including, but not limited that to, those acts based 
on a person1s actual or perceived race, color, weight, national origin, ethnic group, religion, religious 
practice, disability, sexual orientation, gender, and sex; the identification and mitigation of harassment, 
bullying, and discrimination; and strategies for effectively addressing problems of exclusion, bias, and 
aggression in educational settings. All DAC appointments will be approved by the Board. 


The District will widely disseminate the name, designated school, and contact information of each 
DAC to all school personnel, students, and parents or persons in parental relation by: 


a) Listing it in the Code of Conduct, with updates posted on the District's website; and 


b) Including it in the Code of Conduct 1s plain language summary provided to all parents or 
persons in parental relation to students before the beginning of each school year; and 


c) Providing it to parents or persons in parental relation in at least one District or school mailing 
or other method of distribution, including, but not limited to, electronic communication 
and/or sending information home with each student. If the information changes, parents and 
persons in parental relation will be notified in at least one subsequent District or school 
mailing, or other method of distribution as soon as practicable thereafter; and 


d) Posting it in highly visible areas of school buildings; and 


e) Making it available at the District and school-level administrative offices. 


(Continued) 







2019 


Students 


SUBJECT: DIGNITY FOR ALL STUDENTS (Cont'd.) 


7550 
2 of4 


If a DAC vacates his or her position, the District will immediately designate an interim DAC, 
pending approval from the Board within 30 days. In the event a DAC is unable to perform his or her 
duties for an extended period of time, the District will immediately designate an interim DAC, pending 
the return of the previous individual to the position. 


Training and Awareness 


Each year, all employees will be provided with training to promote a supportive school 
environment that is free from harassment, bullying, and/or discrimination, and to discourage and 
respond to incidents of harassment, bullying, and/or discrimination. This training may be provided in 
conjunction with existing professional development, will be conducted consistent with guidelines 
approved by the Board, and will: 


a) Raise awareness and sensitivity to potential acts of harassment, bullying, and/or 
discrimination; 


b) Address social patterns of harassment, bullying, and discrimination and the effects on 
students; 


c) Inform employees on the identification and mitigation of harassment, bullying, and 
discrimination; 


d) Enable employees to prevent and respond to incidents of harassment, bullying, and/or 
discrimination; 


e) Make school employees aware of the effects of harassment, bullying, cyberbullying, and/or 
discrimination on students; 


f) Provide strategies for effectively addressing problems of exclusion, bias, and aggression; 


g) Include safe and supportive school climate concepts in curriculum and classroom 
management; and 


h) Ensure the effective implementation of school policy on conduct and discipline. 


Rules against harassment, bullying, and discrimination will be included in the Code of Conduct, 
publicized District-wide, and disseminated to all staff and parents or persons in parental relation. Any 
amendments to the Code of Conduct will be disseminated as soon as practicable following their 
adoption. The District will provide new employees with a complete copy of the current Code of Conduct 
upon beginning their employment, and distribute an age-appropriate summary to all students at a school 
assembly at the beginning of each school year. 


(Continued) 







2019 


Students 


SUBJECT: DIGNITY FOR ALL STUDENTS (Cont'd.) 


Reports and Investigations of Harassment, Bullying, and/or Discrimination 


7550 
3 of4 


The District encourages and expects students who have been subjected to harassment, bullying, or 
discrimination; parents or persons in parental relation whose children have been subjected to this 
behavior; other students who observe or are told of this behavior; and all District staff who become 
aware of this behavior to timely report it to the principal, Superintendent, DAC, or designee. 


The principal, Superintendent, DAC, or designee will lead or supervise a timely and thorough 
investigation of all reports of harassment, bullying, and discrimination. The DAC or other individual 
conducting the investigation, may seek the assistance of the District's Civil Rights Compliance Officer 
in investigating, responding to, and remedying complaints. 


In the event any investigation verifies that harassment, bullying, and/or discrimination occurred, 
the District will take prompt action reasonably calculated to end it, to eliminate any hostile environment, 
to create a more positive school culture and climate, to prevent recurrence of the behavior, and to ensure 
the safety of the student or students against whom the harassment, bullying, or discrimination was 
directed. 


The Superintendent, principal, DAC, or designee will notify the appropriate local law enforcement 
agency when there is a reasonable belief that an incident of harassment, bullying, or discrimination 
constitutes criminal conduct. 


The District will timely collect information related to incidents involving harassment, bullying, 
and discrimination; provide required internal reports; and complete and submit any required report to 
the State Education Department in the manner and within the timeframe specified by the Commissioner. 


Prohibition of Retaliatory Behavior (Whistle-Blower Protection) 


Any person who has reasonable cause to suspect that a student has been subjected to harassment, 
bullying, or discrimination by an employee or student on school grounds or at a school function, and 
who acts reasonably and in good faith in reporting it to school officials, the Commissioner of Education, 
or law enforcement authorities, or who otherwise initiates, testifies, participates, or assists in any formal 
or informal proceedings, will have immunity from any civil liability that may arise from making that 
report, or from initiating, testifying, participating, or assisting in those proceedings. The District also 
prohibits any retaliatory behavior directed against any complainant, victim, witness, or any other 
individual who participated in the reporting or investigation of an incident of alleged harassment, 
bullying, or discrimination. 


(Continued) 







SUBJECT: DIGNITY FOR ALL STUDENTS (Cont'd.) 


Publication of District Policy 


2019 


Students 


7550 
4of4 


At least once during each school year, all school employees, students, and parents or persons in 
parental relation will be provided with a written or electronic copy of this policy, or a plain-language 
summary of it. The policy or summary will include information relating to how students, parents or 
persons in parental relation, and school employees may report harassment, bullying, or discrimination. 
Additionally, the District will strive to maintain a current version of this policy on its website at all 
times. 


Application 


Nothing in this policy or its implementing regulations should be interpreted to preclude or limit 
any right or cause of action provided under any local, state, or federal ordinance, law or regulation 
including, but not limited to, any remedies or rights available under the Individuals with Disabilities 
Education Act, Title VII of the Civil Rights Law of 1964, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 
or the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. 


Education Law§§ 10-18, 801-a, 2801 and 3214 
8 NYCRR § 100.2 


NOTE: Refer also to Policies #1330 -- Appointments and Designations by the Board 


Adopted: 6/12/12 


#3410 -- Code of Conduct 
#3420 -- Non-Discrimination and Anti-Harassment in the District 
#5670 -- Records Management 
#6411 -- Use of Email in the District 
#7551 -- Sexual Harassment of Students 
#7552 -- Student Gender Identity 
#7553 -- Hazing of Students 
#8242 -- Civility. Citizenship and Character Education/Interpersonal 


Violence Prevention Education 


Revised: 12/18/12; 7/9/13; 11/1 8/14; 6/9/15; 







2019 7690 


Students 


SUBJECT: SPECIAL EDUCATION MEDIATION 


The District will offer mediation to resolve aey disputes involving any matter for which an 
impartial due process hearing may be brought, including matters arising those that occurred prior to~ 
filing ef a due process complaint notice. 


&tiefl Mediation shall- will be conducted by mediators furnished by a Community Dispute 
Resolution Center who are not employees of any school district or State agency that is involved in the 
education or care of the student who is the subject of the mediation process. Mediators may not have a 
personal or professional interest which would conflict with their objectivity in the mediation process 
and should be knowledgeable in laws and regulations relating to the provision of special education 
services. 


Parents or persons in parental relation to students suspected of or having disabilities will receive 
written notice of the availability of the mediation program each time they receive notice of their 
entitlement to the impartial hearing procedures in accordance with Federal and State law and regulations. 
If the parent and District agree, alternative means of meeting participation may be utilized, such as video 
conferences and conference calls. 


Discussions during the mediation process must be confidential and may not be used as evidence 
in any subsequent due process hearing or civil proceedings. The parties may be ref1Hired to sigR a 
eonfidentiality pledge prior to the commencement of the process. 


If resolution to the complaint is reached through mediation, the parent and the representative of 
the District who has the authority to bind the District will execute a legally binding written agreement 
specifying the resolution. and stating that all disct:1ssi0Rs occHrriRg duriag the mediation process are 
coRfideatial aml may not be Hsed as evidence in any subseffUeRt due process hearing or eivil proceeding 
of any Federal or State court. If the written agreement is inconsistent with the student's current 
individualized education programs (IEP), the IEP must be immediately amended to reflect the mediation 
agreement. 


The mediation process is voluntary and will not operate to diminish or limit any rights provided 
for in law, including the right of the parent or person in parental relation to request an impartial hearing 
subsequent to mediation. Parents or persons iR parental relation ta students suspecteEl ef or having 
disabilities centinue to ha,•e full access to all rigkts, iRcluding due process procedures, provided fer in 
federal and state laws Bfld regulations. Similarly, meEliatioR shall not be construed to limit a parent or 
persen in parental relation from Fef1Hesting Bfl impartial hearing •.vithout ha,•ing first utilized mediation 
procedt:1res set ferth in edc1cation La..,,. 


Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), 20 USC§ 1400 et seq. 
34 CFR Part 300 
Education Law§§ 4005, 4202, and 4404-a 
Judiciary Law § 849a 
8 NYCRR §§ 200. I and 200.5 


Adopted: 6/24/97 
Revised: 11/12/03; 1/9/07; 10/28/08; 







2019 


Instruction 


8230 
1 of2 


SUBJECT: INSTRUCTIONA-b PROGRAr.MS: DRIVER EDUCATION, GIFTED .AL~D 
TALENTED EDUCATION ,,. .. ND PHYSICAL EDUCATION IN CERTAIN 
SUBJECTS 


Driver Education 


A driver education course may be offered under the conditions set forth by the New York State 
Education Department. 


EElueatioR Law SeetioR 80e a 
8 New Yofk Code of Rules aRd Reg1:1iati0Rs (}-1YCRR) SeetioR 107.2 


Gifted and Talented Students 


The Board of Eclueation may provide appropriate educational programs for students identified as 
being gifted and talented. Administrath•e fJTOcedures for icleatifying Gifted aRd Talentee Studeats ancl 
flFOgrammiRg will he cle•,•elof!ed. 


EdueatieR Lavl Article 90 aRd SeetieR 3204(2)(h) 
8 New Yofk Cede of Rules anel Reg1:1iati0Rs (}-1YCRR) SeetioR 142 


Physical Education Class 


All students, except those with medical excuses, shall will participate in physical education in 
accordance with the Commissioner's regulations, which require that all students attend and participate 
in physical education as follows: 


a) All students in grades K through 3 shall participate in a daily program for a minimum of 120 
minutes per week. All students in grades 4 through 6 shall participate in a program three 
times per week for a minimum of 120 minutes per week. The minimum time devoted to such 
programs (K through 6) shall be at least 120 minutes in each calendar week, exclusive of any 
time that may be required for dressing and showering. 


b) Pupils in grades 5 through 6 that are in a middle school shall will participate in the physical 
education program a minimum of three periods per calendar week during one semester of 
each school year and two periods during the other semester, or a comparable time each 
semester if the school is organized in other patterns. 


c) All secondary students (in grades 7 through 12) shall have the opportunity for regular 
physical education, but not less than three times per week in one semester and two times per 
week in the other semester. For students in grades 10 through 12 only a comparable time 
each semester shall be provided if the school is organized in other patterns or if students have 


(Continued) 







2019 


Instruction 


8230 
2 of2 


SUBJECT: INSTRUCTIONAl:r PROGR.'\MS: DRIVER EDUCATION, GIFTED AND 
TALENTED EDUCATION AND PHYSICAL EDUCzt+ .. TION IN CERTAIN 
SUBJECTS (Cont'd.) 


demonstrated acceptable levels of physical fitness, physical skills and knowledge of physical 
education activities in extraclass programs or out-of-school activities approved by the 
physical education staff and the School Administration. 


d) For grades K through 12, a district may provide an equivalent program as approved by the 
Commissioner of Education. 


An excuse from physical education class may be accepted from a licensed physician for medical 
reasons or a licensed chiropractor for conditions of the spine. 


Any student whose condition precludes participation in a regular program shall be provided with 
adaptive physical education approved by the Commissioner of Education. 


Health and Mental Health Education 


The District's health education program recognizes the multiple dimensions of health by including 
instruction related to: 


a) Mental health; 


b) The relation of physical and mental health· 


c) Alcohol, tobacco, and other drugs; and 


d) The prevention and detection of certain cancers. 


This instruction will enhance student understanding, attitudes, and behaviors that promote health, 
well-being, and human dignity. 


Health education programs provided by the District will be designed according to the needs and 
abilities of the students at successive grade levels in acco dance with applicable laws and regulations. 


Education Law § § 803, 804, 806-a, and 3204 
Education Law Article 90 
8 NYCRR §§ 107.2, 135.1 , 135.3, 135.4, and 142 


Revised: 10/28/08; 4/9/13; 







POLICY 
20201 56i76 


Lof l4 


Non.tlhstmiatienalY:Business 
Operaliiens 


SUBJECT: PRIVACY AND SECURITY FOR STUDENT DATA AND TEACHER AND 
PRINCIPAL DATA 


The District is committed to maintaining the privacy and security of student data and teacher and 
principal data and will follow all applicable laws and regulations for the handling and storage of this 
data in the District and when disclosing or releasing it to others, including, but not limited to, third-party 
contractors. The District adopts this policy to implement the requirements of Education Law Section 
2-d and its implementing regulations, as well as to align the District's data privacy and security practices 
with the National Institute for Standards and Technology Framework for Improving Critical 
Infrastructure Cybersecurity (Version 1 .1 ). 


Definitions 


As provided in Education Law Section 2-d and/or its implementing regulations, the following 
tenns, as used in this policy, will mean: 


a) "Breach" means the unauthorized acquisition, access, use, or disclosure of student data 
and/or teacher or principal data by or to a person not authorized to acquire, access, use, or 
receive the student data and/or teacher or principal data. 


b) "Building principal" means a building principal subject to annual perfonnance evaluation 
review under the provisions of Education Law Section 3012-e-d. 


c) "Classroom teacher" means a teacher subject to annual perfonnance evaluation review under 
the provisions of Education Law Section 3012-e-d. 


d) "Commercial or marketing purpose" means the sale of student data; or its use or disclosure 
for purposes of receiving remuneration, whether directly or indirectly; the use of student data 
for advertising purposes, or to develop, improve, or market products or services to students. 


e) "Contract or other written agreement" means a binding agreement between an educational 
agency and a third-party, which includes, but is not limited to, an agreement created in 
electronic fonn and signed with an electronic or digital signature or a click-wrap agreement 
that is used with software licenses, downloaded, and/or ontine applications and transactions 
for educational technologies and other technologies in which a user must agree to terms and 
conditions prior to using the product or service. 


t) 11Disclose" or "disclosure11 means to pennit access to, or the release, transfer, or other 
communication of personally identifiable information by any means, including oral, written, 
or electronic, whether intended or unintended. 


g) "Education records" means an education record as defined in the Family Educational Rights 
and Privacy Act and its implementing regulations, 20 USC Section 1232g and 34 CFR Part 
99, respectively. 


(Continued) 







202© 5676 
2'mf14l 


Neru-Instruationalt.Business 
0peratians 


SUBJECT: PRIVACY AND SECURITY FOR STUDENT DAT A AND TEACHER AND 
PRINCIPAL DATA (Cont'd.) 


h) "Educational agency" means a school district, board of cooperative educational services 
(BOCES), school, or the New York State Education Department (NYSED). 


i) "Eligible student11 means a student who is eighteen years or older. 


j) "Encryption11 means methods of rendering personally identifiable information unusable, 
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized persons through the use of a technology or 
methodology specified or permitted by the Secretary of the United States Department of 
Health and Human Services in guidance issued under 42 USC Section 17932(h)(2). 


k) 11FERPA" means the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act and its implementing 
regulations, 20 USC Section 1232g and 34 CFR Part 99, respectively. 


1) "NIST Cybersecurity Framework" means the U.S. Department of Commerce National 
Institute for Standards and Technology Framework for Improving Critical Infrastructure 
Cybersecurity (Version 1.1 ). A copy of the NIST Cybersecurity Framework is available at 
the Office of Counsel, State Education Department, State Education Building, Room 148, 89 
Washington Avenue, Albany, New York 12234. 


m) "Parent" means a parent, legal guardian, or person in parental relation to a student. 


n) "Personally identifiable information (Pil),U as applied to student data, means personally 
identifiable information as defined in 34 CFR Section 99.3 implementing the Family 
Educational Rights and Privacy Act, 20 USC Section 1232g, and, as applied to teacher or 
principal data, means personally identifying information as this term is defined in Education 
Law Section 3012-c(IO). 


o) "Release" has the same meaning as disclosure or disclose. 


p) "Student" means any person attending or seeking to enroll in an educational agency. 


q) "Student data" means personally identifiable information from the student records of an 
educational agency. 


r) "Teacher or principal data" means personally identifiable information from the records of an 
educational agency relating to the annual professional performance reviews of classroom 
teachers or principals that is confidential and not subject to release under the provisions of 
Education Law Sections 3012-c and 3012-d. 


s) "Third-party contractor11 means any person or entity, other than an educational agency, that 
receives student data or teacher or principal data from an educational agency pursuant to a 
contract or other written agreement for purposes of providing services to the educational 


(Continued) 







5676 


POLICY 
31 ofl1!4 


N on-Instruoti0.nalYJBusiftC1Ss-
©pCfflltiens -


SUBJECT: PRIVACY AND SECURITY FOR STUDENT DATA AND TEACHER AND 
PRINCIPAL DATA (Cont'd.} 


agency, including but not limited to data management or storage services, conducting studies 
for or on behalf of the educational agency, or audit or evaluation of publicly funded 
programs. This term will include an educational partnership organization that receives 
student and/or teacher or principal data from a school district to carry out its responsibilities 
pursuant to Education Law Section 211-e and is not an educational agency, and a not-for
profit corporation or other nonprofit organization, other than an educational agency. 


t) 11Unauthorized disclosure11 or 11unauthorized release" means any disclosure or release not 
permitted by federal or state statute or regulation, any lawful contract or written agreement, 
or that does not respond to a lawful order of a court or tribunal or other lawful order. 


Data Collection Transparency and Restrictions 


As part of its commitment to maintaining the privacy and security of student data and teacher and 
principal data, the District will take steps to minimize its collection, processing, and transmission of PII. 
Additionally, the District will : 


a) Not sell PII nor use or disclose it for any marketing or commercial purpose or facilitate its 
use or disclosure by any other party for any marketing or commercial purpose or permit 
another party to do so. 


b) Ensure that it has provisions in its contracts with third-party contractors or in separate data 
sharing and confidentiality agreements that require the confidentiality of shared student data 
or teacher or principal data be maintained in accordance with law, regulation, and District 
policy. 


Except as required by law or in the case of educational enrollment data, the District will not report 
to NYSED the following student data elements: 


a) Juvenile delinquency records; 


b) Criminal records; 


c) Medical and health records; and 


d) Student biometric information. 


Nothing in Education Law Section 2-d or this policy should be construed as limiting the 
administrative use of student data or teacher or principal data by a person acting exclusively in the 
person's capacity as an employee of the District. 


(Continued) 







POLICY 
2020 5676 


4l ofil!4 


Ne&i.lflsttuetionaJYBusiness, 
@prnratiens -


SUBJECT: PRIVACY AND SECURITY FOR STUDENT DATA AND TEACHER AND 
PRINCIPAL DATA (Cont'd.) 


Chief Privacy Officer 


The Commissioner of Education has appointed a Chief Privacy Officer who will report to the 
Commissioner on matters affecting privacy and the security of student data and teacher and principal 
data. Among other functions, the Chief Privacy Officer is authorized to provide assistance to educational 
agencies within the state on minimum standards and best practices associated with privacy and the 
security of student data and teacher and principal data. 


The District will comply with its obligation to report breaches or unauthorized releases of student 
data or teacher or principal data to the Chief Privacy Officer in accordance with Education Law Section 
2-d, its implementing regulations, and this policy. 


The Chief Privacy Officer has the power, among others, to: 


a) Access all records, reports, audits, reviews, documents, papers, recommendations, and other 
materials maintained by the District that relate to student data or teacher or principal data, 
which includes, but is not limited to, records related to any technology product or service 
that will be utilized to store and/or process PII; and 


b) Based upon a review of these records, require the District to act to ensure that PU is protected 
in accordance with laws and regulations, including but not limited to requiring the District 
to perfonn a privacy impact and security risk assessment. 


Data Protection Officer 


The District has designated a District employee to serve as the District's Data Protection Officer. 
*The Data Protection Officer for the District is .:::B:.:..n:.::.d:..~-=-et.:..:.tc=--=B:.::ac:.:rr,_ ______ _ 


The Data Protection Officer is responsible for the implementation and oversight of this policy and 
any related procedures including those required by Education Law Section 2-d and its implementing 
regulations, as well as serving as the main point of contact for data privacy and security for the District. 


The District will ensure that the Data Protection Officer has the appropriate knowledge, training, 
and experience to administer these functions. The Data Protection Officer may perfonn these functions 
in addition to other job responsibilities. Additionally, some aspects of this role may be outsourced to a 
provider such as a BOCES, to the extent available. 


(Continued) 







20!Wr 56176 
5off4 FJ.(lllCC¥ ~-- - -


Non..:Jnstructi.onalYB~iness 
Opevaticms 


SUBJECT: PRIVACY AND SECURITY FOR STUDENT DATA AND TEACHER AND 
PRINCIPAL DAT A (Cont'd.) 


District Data Privacy and Security Standards 


The District will use the National Institute for Standards and Technology Framework for 
Improving Critical Infrastructure Cybersecurity (Version I.I) (Framework) as the standard for its data 
privacy and security program. The Framework is a risk-based approach to managing cybersecurity risk 
and is composed of three parts: the Framework Core, the Framework Implementation Tiers, and the 
Framework Profiles. The Framework provides a common taxonomy and mechanism for organizations 
to: 


a) Describe their current cybersecurity posture; 


b) Describe their target state for cybersecurity; 


c) Identify and prioritize opportunities for improvement within the context of a continuous and 
repeatable process; 


d) Assess progress toward the target state; and 


e) Communicate among internal and external stakeholders about cybersecurity risk. 


The District will protect the privacy of PII by: 


a) Ensuring that every use and disclosure of PII by the District benefits students and the District 
by considering, among other criteria, whether the use and/or disclosure will: 


1. Improve academic achievement; 


2. Empower parents and students with information; and/or 


3. Advance efficient and effective school operations. 


b) Not including PU in public reports or other public documents. 


The District affords all protections under FERPA and the Individuals with Disabilities Education 
Act and their implementing regulations to parents or eligible students, where applicable. 


(Continued) 


__, 







2020 56f76 
6 of 14 


Nom-lllsttuGtion~ usiness 
Operations 


SUBJECT: PRIVACY AND SECURITY FOR STUDENT DAT A AND TEACHER AND 
PRINCIPAL DATA (Cont'd.) 


Third-Party Contractors 


District Responsibilities 


The District will ensure that whenever it enters into a contract or other written agreement with a 
third-party contractor under which the third-party contractor will receive student data or teacher or 
principal data from the District, the contract or written agreement will include provisions requiring that 
confidentiality of shared student data or teacher or principal data be maintained in accordance with law, 
regulation, and District policy. 


In addition, the District will ensure that the contract or written agreement includes the third-party 
contractor's data privacy and security plan that has been accepted by the District. 


The third-party contractor's data privacy and security plan must, at a minimum: 


a) Outline how the third-party contractor will implement all state, federal, and local data privacy 
and security contract requirements over the life of the contract, consistent with District 
policy; 


b) Specify the administrative, operational, and technical safeguards and practices the third-party 
contractor has in place to protect PII that it will receive under the contract; 


c) Demonstrate that the third-party contractor complies with the requirements of 8 NYCRR 
Section 121.3(c); 


d) Specify how officers or employees of the third-party contractor and its assignees who have 
access to student data or teacher or principal data receive or will receive training on the laws 
governing confidentiality of this data prior to receiving access; 


e) Specify if the third-party contractor will utilize subcontractors and how it will manage those 
relationships and contracts to ensure PU is protected; 


t) Specify how the third-party contractor will manage data privacy and security incidents that 
implicate PII including specifying any plans to identify breaches and unauthorized 
disclosures, and to promptly notify the District; 


g) Describe whether, how, and when data will be returned to the District, transitioned to a 
successor contractor, at the District's option and direction, deleted or destroyed by the third
party contractor when the contract is terminated or expires; and 


h) Include a signed copy of the Parents' Bill of Rights for Data Privacy and Security. 


(Continued) 







20~0 5676 
7 off 114 


POLI.CCV Nan:lnstructionaltBusiness 
~tions 


SUBJECT: PRIVACY AND SECURITY FOR STUDENT DATA AND TEACHER AND 
PRINCIPAL DAT A (Cont'd.) 


Third-Party Contractor Responsibilities 


Each third-party contractor, that enters into a contract or other written agreement with the District 
under which the third-party contractor will receive student data or teacher or principal data from the 
District, is required to: 


a) Adopt technologies, safeguards, and practices that align with the NIST Cybersecurity 
Framework; 


b) Comply with District policy and Education Law Section 2-d and its implementing 
regulations; 


c) Limit internal access to PII to only those employees or subcontractors that have legitimate 
educational interests (i .e., they need access to provide the contracted services); 


d) Not use the PII for any purpose not explicitly authorized in its contract; 


e) Not disclose any PU to any other party without the prior written consent of the parent or 
eligible student: 


1. Except for authorized representatives of the third-party contractor such as a 
subcontractor or assignee to the extent they are carrying out the contract and in 
compliance with law, regulation, and its contract with the District; or 


2. Unless required by law or court order and the third-party contractor provides a notice 
of the disclosure to NYSED, the Board, or the institution that provided the information 
no later than the time the information is disclosed, unless providing notice of the 
disclosure is expressly prohibited by law or court order; 


t) Maintain reasonable administrative, technical, and physical safeguards to protect the 
security, confidentiality, and integrity of PII in its custody; 


g) Use encryption to protect PII in its custody while in motion or at rest; and 


h) Not sell PII nor use or disclose it for any marketing or commercial purpose or facilitate its 
use or disclosure by any other party for any marketing or commercial purpose or permit 
another party to do so. 


Where a third-party contractor engages a subcontractor to perform its contractual obligations, the 
data protection obligations imposed on the third-party contractor by law and contract apply to the 
subcontractor. 


(Continued) 







2020 56?6 
8af 14 


N li>n-I'nsbiuatienal/Business 
©perations · 


SUBJECT: PRIVACY AND SECURITY FOR STUDENT DATA AND TEACHER AND 
PRINCIPAL DATA (Cont'd.) 


Cooperative Educational Services through a BOCES 


The District may not be required to enter into a separate contract or data sharing and confidentiality 
agreement with a third-party contractor that will receive student data or teacher or principal data from 
the District under all circumstances. 


For example, the District may not need its own contract or agreement where: 


a) It has entered into a cooperative educational service agreement (CoSer) with a BOCES that 
includes use of a third-party contractor's product or service· and 


b) That BOCES has entered into a contract or data sharing and confidentiality agreement with 
the third-party contractor, pursuant to Education Law Section 2-d and its implementing 
regulations, that is applicable to the District's use of the product or service under that CoSer. 


To meet its obligations whenever student data or teacher or principal data from the District is 
received by a third-party contractor pursuant to a CoSer, the District will consult with the BOCES to, 
among other things: 


a) Ensure there is a contract or data sharing and confidentiality agreement pursuant to Education 
Law Section 2-d and its implementing re!:,'Ulations in place that would specifically govern 
the District's use of a third-party contractor's product or service under a particular CoSer 


b) Determine procedures for including supplemental information about any applicable contracts 
or data sharing and confidentiality a!:,rreements that a BOCES has entered into with a third
party contractor in its Parents' Bill of Rights for Data Privacy and Security; 


c) Ensure appropriate notification is provided to affected parents, eligible students, teachers, 
and/or principals about any breach or unauthorized release of PII that a third-party contractor 
has received fro the District pursuant to a BOCES contract; and 


d) Coordinate reporting to the Chief Privacy Officer to avoid duplication in the event the 
District receives information directly from a third-party contractor about a breach or 
unauthorized release of PII that the third-party contractor received from the District pursuant 
to a BOCES contract. 


Click-Wrap Agreements 


Periodically, District staff may wish to use software, applications, or other technologies in which 
the user must "click" a button or box to agree to certain online terms of service prior to using the 
software, application, or other technology. These are known as "click-wrap agreements" and are 
considered legally binding "contracts or other written agreements" under Education Law Section 2-d 
and its implementing regulations. 


(Continued) 







2020 5696. 
9Ja£14 


POLICY Nom-JhstruGtian~ usiness 
©peratiens 


SUBJECT: PRIVACY AND SECURITY FOR STUDENT DAT A AND TEACHER AND 
PRINCIPAL DATA (Cont'd.) 


District staff are prohibited from using software, applications, or other technologies pursuant to a 
click-wrap agreement in which the third-party contractor receives student data or teacher or principal 
data from the District unless they have received prior approval from the District' Data Privacy Officer 
or designee. 


The District will develop and implement procedures requiring prior review and approval for staff 
use of any software., applications, or other technologies pursuant to click-wrap agreements. 


Parents' Bill of Rights for Data Privacy and Security 


The District will publish its Parents' Bill of Rights for Data Privacy and Security (Bill of Rights) 
on its website. Additionally, the District will include the Bill of Rights with every contract or other 
written agreement it enters into with a third-party contractor under which the third-party contractor will 
receive student data or teacher or principal data from the District. 


The District's Bill of Rights will state in clear and plain English terms that: 


a) A student's PII cannot be sold or released for any commercial purposes; 


b) Parents have the right to inspect and review the complete contents of their child's education 
record; 


c) State and federal laws protect the confidentiality of PII, and safeguards associated with 
industry standards and best practices, including but not limited to encryption, firewalls, and 
password protection, must be in place when data is stored or transferred; 


d) A complete list of all student data elements collected by the state is available for public 
review at the following website http://www.nysed.gov/student-data-privacy/student-data
inventory or by writing to the Office oflnformation and Reporting Services, New York State 
Education Department, Room 865 EBA, 89 Washington Avenue, Albany, New York 12234; 
and 


e) Parents have the right to have complaints about possible breaches of student data addressed. 
Complaints should be directed in writing to Privacy Complaint, Chief Privacy Officer, New 
York State Education Department, 89 Washington Avenue, Albany, New York 12234. 
Complaints may also be submitted using the form available at the following website 
http://www.nysed.gov/student-data-privacy/form/report-improper-disclosure. 


The Bill of Rights will also include supplemental information for each contract the District enters 
into with a third-party contractor where the third-party contractor receives student data or teacher or 
principal data from the District. The supplemental information must be developed by the District and 
include the following information: 


(Continued) 







POllCV 
2020 56i76 


10 mf114 


Neru-Ihstruttional/Business. 
<Opemtians 


SUBJECT: PRIVACY AND SECURITY FOR STUDENT DATA AND TEACHER AND 
PRINCIPAL DAT A (Cont'd.) 


a) The exclusive purposes for which the student data or teacher or principal data will be used 
by the third-party contractor, as defined in the contract; 


b) How the third-party contractor will ensure that the subcontractors, or other authorized 
persons or entities to whom the third-party contractor will disclose the student data or teacher 
or principal data, if any, will abide by all applicable data protection and security 
requirements, including but not limited to those outlined in applicable laws and regulations 
(e.g., FERPA; Education Law Section 2-d); 


c) The duration of the contract, including the contract's expiration date, and a description of 
what will happen to the student data or teacher or principal data upon expiration of the 
contract or other written agreement (e.g., whether, when, and in what format it will be 
returned to the District, and/or whether, when, and how the data will be destroyed); 


d) If and how a parent, student, eligible student, teacher, or principal may challenge the 
accuracy of the student data or teacher or principal data that is collected; 


e) Where the student data or teacher or principal data will be stored, described in a manner as 
to protect data security, and the security protections taken to ensure the data will be protected 
and data privacy and security risks mitigated; and 


t) Address how the data will be protected using encryption while in motion and at rest. 


The District will publish on its website the supplement to the Bill of Rights (i.e., the supplemental 
information described above) for any contract or other written agreement it has entered into with a third
party contractor that will receive PII from the District. The Bill of Rights and supplemental information 
may be redacted to the extent necessary to safeguard the privacy and/or security of the District's data 
and/or technology infrastructure. 


Right of Parents and Eligible Students to Inspect and Review Students' Education Records 


Consistent with the obligations of the District under FERPA, parents and eligible students have 
the right to inspect and review a student's education record by making a request directly to the District 
in a manner prescribed by the District. 


The District will ensure that only authorized individuals are able to inspect and review student 
data. To that end, the District will take steps to verify the identity of parents or eligible students who 
submit requests to inspect and review an education record and verify the individual's authority to do so. 


Requests by a parent or eligible student for access to a student's education records must be directed 
to the District and not to a third-party contractor. The District may require that requests to inspect and 
review education records be made in writing. 


(Continued) 







POllCY 
2020 5616 


Dl1 a6L4 


Non.;Jnstractionalfflusinas 
Opriati.ons · 


SUBJECT: PRIVACY AND SECURITY FOR STUDENT DATA AND TEACHER AND 
PRINCIPAL DATA (Cont'd.) 


The District will notify parents annually of their right to request to inspect and review their child's 
education record including any student data stored or maintained by the District through its annual 
FERP A notice. A notice separate from the District's annual FERP A notice is not required. 


The District will comply with a request for access to records within a reasonable period, but not 
more than 45 calendar days after receipt of a request. 


The District may provide the records to a parent or eligible student electronically, if the parent 
consents. The District must transmit the PII in a way that complies with laws and regulations. Safeguards 
associated with industry standards and best practices, including but not limited to encryption and 
password protection, must be in place when education records requested by a parent or eligible student 
are electronically transmitted. 


Complaints of Breach or Unauthorized Release of Student Data and/or Teacher or Principal Data 


The District will inform parents, through its Parents' Bill of Rights for Data Privacy and Security, 
that they have the right to submit complaints about possible breaches of student data to the Chief Privacy 
Officer at NYSED. In addition, the District has established the following procedures for parents, eligible 
students, teachers, principals, and other District staff to file complaints with the District about breaches 
or unauthorized releases of student data and/or teacher or principal data: 


a) All complaints must be submitted to the District's Data Protection Officer in writing. 


b) Upon receipt of a complaint, the District will promptly acknowledge receipt of the complaint, 
commence an investigation, and take the necessary precautions to protect PU. 


c) Following the investigation of a submitted complaint, the District will provide the individual 
who filed the complaint with its findings. This will be completed within a reasonable period 
of time, but no more than 60 calendar days from the receipt of the complaint by the District. 


d) If the District requires additional time, or where the response may compromise security or 
impede a law enforcement investigation, the District will provide the individual who filed 
the complaint with a written explanation that includes the approximate date when the District 
anticipates that it will respond to the complaint. 


These procedures will be disseminated to parents, eligible students, teachers, principals, and other 
District staff. 


The District will maintain a record of all complaints of breaches or unauthorized releases of student 
data and their disposition in accordance with applicable data retention policies, including the Records 
Retention and Disposition Schedule ED-1 ( 1988; rev. 2004). 


(Continued) 







--~-------- ·-


2020 5677.6 
12 ofl~ 


Non:,1hstruoti0mMBusiness1 
Opemyions 


SUBJECT: PRIVACY AND SECURITY FOR STUDENT DATA AND TEACHER AND 
PRINCIPAL DATA (Cont'd.) 


Reporting a Breach or Unauthorized Release 


The District will report every discovery or report of a breach or unauthorized release of student 
data or teacher or principal data within the District to the Chief Privacy Officer without unreasonable 
delay, but no more than ten calendar days after the discovery. 


Each third-party contractor that receives student data or teacher or principal data pursuant to a 
contract or other written agreement entered into with the District will be required to promptly notify the 
District of any breach of security resulting in an unauthorized release of the data by the third-party 
contractor or its assignees in violation of applicable laws and regulations, the Parents' Bill of Rights for 
Student Data Privacy and Security, District policy, and/or binding contractual obligations relating to 
data privacy and security, in the most expedient way possible and without unreasonable delay, but no 
more than seven calendar days after the discovery of the breach. 


In the event of notification from a third-party contractor, the District will in tum notify the Chief 
Privacy Officer of the breach or unauthorized release of student data or teacher or principal data no more 
than ten calendar days after it receives the third-party contractor's notification using a fonn or format 
prescribed by NYSED. 


Investigation of Reports of Breach or Unauthorized Release by the Chief Privacy Officer 


The Chief Privacy Officer is required to investigate reports of breaches or unauthorized releases 
of student data or teacher or principal data by third-party contractors. As part of an investigation, the 
Chief Privacy Officer may require that the parties submit documentation, provide testimony, and may 
visit, examine, and/or inspect the third-party contractor's facilities and records. 


Upon the belief that a breach or unauthorized release constitutes criminal conduct, the Chief 
Privacy Officer is required to report the breach and unauthorized release to law enforcement in the most 
expedient way possible and without unreasonable delay. 


Third-party contractors are required to cooperate with the District and law enforcement to protect 
the integrity of investigations into the breach or unauthorized release of PII. 


Upon conclusion of an investigation, if the Chief Privacy Officer determines that a third-party 
contractor has through its actions or omissions caused student data or teacher or principal data to be 
breached or released to any person or entity not authorized by law to receive this data in violation of 
applicable laws and regulations, District policy, and/or any binding contractual obligations, the Chief 
Privacy Officer is required to notify the third-party contractor of the finding and give the third-party 
contractor no more than 30 days to submit a written response. 


(Continued) 







POllCCY 
__ , 


202(!) 56?6 
ts·o£1A 


N o~Ibsttilotio~ess 
Operations 


SUBJECT: PRIVACY AND SECURITY FOR STUDENT DATA AND TEACHER AND 
PRINCIPAL DAT A (Cont'd.} 


If after reviewing the third-party contractor's written response, the Chief Privacy Officer 
determines the incident to be a violation of Education Law Section 2-d, the Chief Privacy Officer will 
be authorized to: 


a) Order the third-party contractor be precluded from accessing PII from the affected 
educational agency for a fixed period of up to five years; 


b) Order that a third-party contractor or assignee who knowingly or recklessly allowed for the 
breach or unauthorized release of student data or teacher or principal data be precluded from 
accessing student data or teacher or principal data from any educational agency in the state 
for a fixed period of up to five years; 


c) Order that a third-party contractor who knowingly or recklessly allowed for the breach or 
unauthorized release of student data or teacher or principal data will not be deemed a 
responsible bidder or offeror on any contract with an educational agency that involves the 
sharing of student data or teacher or principal data, as applicable for purposes of General 
Municipal Law Section 103 or State Finance Law Section 163(10)(c), as applicable, for a 
fixed period of up to five years; and/or 


d) Require the third-party contractor to provide additional training governing confidentiality of 
student data and/or teacher or principal data to all its officers and employees with reasonable 
access to this data and certify that the training has been performed at the contractor's expense. 
This additional training is required to be performed immediately and include a review of 
laws, rules, and regulations, including Education Law Section 2-d and its implementing 
regulations. 


If the Chief Privacy Officer determines that the breach or unauthorized release of student data or 
teacher or principal data on the part of the third-party contractor or assignee was inadvertent and done 
without intent, knowledge, recklessness, or gross negligence, the Chief Privacy Officer may make a 
recommendation to the Commissioner that no penalty be issued to the third-party contractor. 


The Commissioner would then make a final determination as to whether the breach or 
unauthorized release was inadvertent and done without intent, knowledge, recklessness or gross 
negligence and whether or not a penalty should be issued. 


Notification of a Breach or Unauthorized Release 


The District will notify affected parents, eligible students, teachers, and/or principals in the most 
expedient way possible and without unreasonable delay, but no more than 60 calendar days after the 
discovery of a breach or unauthorized release of PII by the District or the receipt of a notification of a 
breach or unauthorized release of PII from a third-party contractor unless that notification would 


(Continued) 







IP'OllCV 
20201 5676 


1L4af l4. 


Non-Ihstruotiomdmusihess 
Op~fi(i)ns 


SUBJECT: PRIVACY AND SECURITY FOR STUDENT DAT A AND TEACHER AND 
PRINCIPAL DATA (Cont'd.) 


interfere with an ongoing investigation by law enforcement or cause further disclosure of PII by 
disclosing an unfixed security vulnerability. Where notification is delayed under these circumstances, 
the District will notify parents, eligible students, teachers, and/or principals within seven calendar days 
after the security vulnerability has been remedied or the risk of interference with the law enforcement 
investigation ends. 


Notifications will be clear, concise, use language that is plain and easy to understand, and to the 
extent available, include: 


a) A brief description of the breach or unauthorized release, the dates of the incident and the 
date of discovery, if known; 


b) A description of the types of PII affected; 


c) An estimate of the number of records affected; 


d) A brief description of the District•s investigation or plan to investigate; and 


e) Contact information for representatives who can assist parents or eligible students that have 
additional questions. 


Notification will be directly provided to the affected parent, eligible student, teacher, or principal 
by first-class mail to their last known address, by email, or by telephone. 


Where a breach or unauthorized release is attributed to a third-party contractor, the third-party 
contractor is required to pay for or promptly reimburse the District for the full cost of this notification. 


Annual Data Privacy and Security Training 


The District will annually provide data privacy and security awareness training to its officers and 
staff with access to PII. This training will include, but not be limited to, training on the applicable laws 
and regulations that protect PII and how staff can comply with these laws and regulations. The District 
may deliver this training using online training tools. Additionally, this training may be included as part 
of the training that the District already offers to its workforce. 


Notification of Policy 


The District will publish this policy on its website and provide notice of the policy to all its officers 
and staff. 


Education Law § 2-d 
8 NYCRR Part 121 


Adoption Date 





















































































 


 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


ATTACHMENTS  


 
 


E-MAIL RECIPIENTS  


 
 
Status History: Draft: 05/14/2020 09:41 AM, Sent: 05/14/2020 09:43 AM  
 
 


2017-705 North Rose-Wolcott CSD
TRANSMITTAL #01025


 


Trans-01025 CREATED ON: 5/14/2020


Issued By: Rachel Swick 
Campus Construction Management 
11631 Salter-Colvin Road 
Wolcott, NY 14590 


Issued To: Robert Magin 
North Rose - Wolcott CSD 
11631 Salter-Colvin Road 
Wolcott, NY 14590 


Regarding: Fahs Change Order GT-093 Status: Sent


Issue 
(CIC):


WE ARE SENDING


Attached   Drawings   Specifications   Timeline   Copy of Letter   


ITEMS 


# copies Description


These are transmitted as checked below


For review and comment   For approval   As requested   For your use   


Remarks:


Please sign the attached Change Order and return to campus for processing and distribution.


Attachment Name Date Uploaded  


GT-093 - Suspense.pdf 05/14/2020 09:41 AM 


Company Person Phone Email


Campus Construction Management James Basile 5853134911 jbasile@campuscmg.com 


Campus Construction Management Brian Bellaire bbellaire@campuscmg.com 


Campus Construction Management Justin Busse (315)573-6468 jbusse@campuscmg.com 


Campus Construction Management Kathryn Gonzalez kgonzalez@campuscmg.com 


Campus Construction Management Rachel Swick rswick@campuscmg.com 


North Rose - Wolcott CSD Robert Magin rmagin@nrwcs.org 


North Rose - Wolcott CSD Pam Murtha pmurtha5667@gmail.com 


MasterLibrary Software                    Created: 05/14/2020 Page 1 / 1



javascript:void(window.open('ViewAttachment.aspx?Type=Trans&TransID=21847&FileID=352492&p=1896','file','location=no,menubar=no,resizable=yes,scrollbars=yes,status=no,titlebar=no,toolbar=no,width=900,height=600'))






 


127 
 


 
NORTH ROSE-WOLCOTT CENTRAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 


BOARD OF EDUCATION REGULAR MEETING  
May 12, 2020 4:00 PM      DISTRICT OFFICE 


 
PRESENT: 
BOE Members: Lucinda Collier, Linda Eygnor, Tina Reed, Jasen Sloan, Izetta Younglove, John Boogaard and Paul 
Statskey via Zoom 
Interim Superintendent:  Scott Bischoping via Zoom 
District Clerk: Tina Fuller via Zoom 
Assistant Superintendent for Instruction and School Improvement: Megan Paliotti via Zoom 
Assistant Superintendent for Business and Operations: Robert Magin via Zoom 
Absent: Student Representative – Kennedy Jones 
 
Approximately 14 students, staff and guests via Zoom 
 
In light of increasing guidance from the state regarding COVID-19, the May 12, 2020 Board of Education 
meeting was closed to the public and broadcast via Zoom.  
 
1.  Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance 
        President, Lucinda Collier called the meeting to order at 4:03 PM.  
 


 Approval of Agenda: 
 Motion for approval was made by Paul Statskey and seconded by Izetta Younglove with the motion approved 7-


0. 
 


       Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and      
       pursuant to Education Law, approves the agenda of May 12, 2020.  
 
2.  Presentations: 


• Megan Paliotti gave a presentation on the Special Education process 
• Robert Magin gave a presentation regarding Bus Driver Recruitment 
• Robert Magin gave a presentation regarding the Budget Spending Plan 


 
3.  Reports and Correspondence: 


a. First Reading: These policies were submitted for a first reading. 
 
1000 Bylaws  
1510 Regular Board Meetings & Rules (Quorum and Parliamentary Procedure) Revised 
5000 Non-Instructional/Business Operations  
5140 Administration of the Budget Revised 
5675 Student Grading Information Systems Revised 
5676 Privacy and Security for Student Data and Teacher and Principal Data New 
6000 Personnel  
6180 Staff-Student Relations (Fraternization) Revised 
7000 Students  
7130 Entitlement to Attend – Age and Residency Revised 
7133 Education of Students in Temporary Housing Revised 
7134 Education of Students in Foster Care New 
7240 Student Records – Access and Challenge Revised 
7242 Military Recruiters and Institutions of Higher Education Revised 
7260 Designation of Persona in Parental Relation Revised 







 


128 
 


7410 Extra Curricular Activities Revised 
7512 Student Physicals Revised 
7513 Medication and Personal Care Items Revised 
7521 Students with Life-Threatening Health Conditions Revised 
7522 Concussion Management Revised 
7530 Child Abuse and Maltreatment Revised 
7550 Dignity for All Students Revised 
7690 Special Education Mediation Revised 
8000 Instruction  
8230 Instruction in Certain Subjects Revised 


 
 
4.  Consent Agenda: 


A motion for approval of the following items  as listed under the CONSENT AGENDA is made by John Boogaard 
and seconded by Linda Eygnor with the motion approved 7-0. 
 
a) Board of Education Meeting Minutes  


RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law, approves the Meeting Minutes of April 22, 2020. 
 


b) Treasurer Reports 
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law approves the Treasurer Reports for March 2020. 
 


c) Recommendations from CSE and CPSE 
RESOLUTION  


 Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
 pursuant to Education Law, approves the recommendations for the Committee on Special Education dated; 
 March 11, April 20, and 21, 2020; and instructs the Superintendent to implement the recommendations on 
 behalf  of  the following individuals identified by student number:    
 


13750 12396 14077 11568 11133 11722 
14351 14366 11947 13210   


 
d) Four County School Boards Association Annual Vote 


               RESOLUTION 
             Be it resolved that the Board of Education, authorizes the BOE President submit one ballot on behalf of the 
 North Rose-Wolcott School Board to approve the slate of officers, the bank for use, and the authorization of 
 the list of people that have access to Four County Board Bank Accounts. 
 


a) Personnel Items: 
1. Correction Letter of Intent to Retire-Kent Sparnon 


Kent Sparnon, Auto Mechanic/Bus Driver has submitted a letter of resignation for purpose of 
retirement. 
 
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law accepts the resignation for the purpose of retirement from Kent Sparnon as 
an Auto Mechanic/Bus Driver effective July 28, 2020 October 30, 2020. 
 







 


129 
 


2. Correction Letter of Intent to Retire-Frank Heffernan 
Frank Heffernan, Maintenance Worker has submitted a letter of resignation for purpose of retirement. 


 
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law accepts the resignation for the purpose of retirement from Frank Heffernan 
as Maintenance Worker effective April 30, 2020 April 29, 2020. 


 
5.  Items Requiring a Roll Call Vote: 


 
Prior to the approval of the Adoption of the 2020-2021 Budget Spending Plan, the amount of $31,749.458 
was included in the resolution. 


 
a) Adoption of the 2020-2021 Budget Spending Plan 


RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law, approves the proposed 2020-2021 budget spending plan in the amount of 
$$31,749.458. 
 
A motion for approval  is made by Izetta Younglove  and seconded by Tina Reed. 
 
Lucinda Collier 
Linda Eygnor 
John Boogaard 
Tina Reed 
Jasen Sloan 
Paul Statskey 
Izetta Younglove 


Voting 
Voting 
Voting 
Voting 
Voting 
Voting 
Voting 


___x___ yes           ______ no 
___x___ yes           ______ no 
___x___ yes           ______ no 
___x___ yes           ______ no 
____x__ yes           ______ no 
___x___ yes           ______ no 
___x___ yes           ______ no 
 


 
The  motion was approved 7-0. 


 
b) Approval of Real Property Tax Report Card 


RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law, approves the North Rose-Wolcott Central School District’s Real Property Tax 
Report Card for the 2020-2021 tax year. 
 
A motion for approval  is made by Paul Statskey and seconded by John Boogaard 
 
Lucinda Collier 
Linda Eygnor 
John Boogaard 
Tina Reed 
Jasen Sloan 
Paul Statskey 
Izetta Younglove 


Voting 
Voting 
Voting 
Voting 
Voting 
Voting 
Voting 


___x___ yes           ______ no 
___x___ yes           ______ no 
___x___ yes           ______ no 
___x___ yes           ______ no 
____x__ yes           ______ no 
___x___ yes           ______ no 
___x___ yes           ______ no 
 


 
The  motion was approved 7-0. 


 
 







 


130 
 


6.  Other: 
 Board Discussions 


o BOE Retreat: 
 BOE Goals 
 BOE Handbook 
 Community Relations 
 Capital Project 


 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
 
A motion was requested to enter executive session for the purpose to discuss the employment history of one 
specific person 
  
The motion was made by John Boogaard and seconded by Izetta Younglove with motion approved 7-0.  
Time entered:  5:52 p.m. 
 
Return to regular session at 6:10p.m. 
 
Adjournment: 
A motion was requested to adjourn the regular meeting. 
 
Motion for approval was made by Izetta Younglove and seconded by Tina Reed with motion approved 7-0.   
Time adjourned: 6:12 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________________________________ 
Tina Fuller, Clerk of the Board of Education 


 
 








1 
 


NORTH ROSE-WOLCOTT CENTRAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION REGULAR MEETING 


June 9, 2020 7:00 PM      DISTRICT OFFICE 
 


AGENDA 
 


In light of increasing guidance from the state regarding COVID-19, the June 9, 2020 Board of Education 
meeting will be closed to the public and will be broadcast via Zoom.  
 
1.  Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance 


 
Approval of Agenda 
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and pursuant to 
Education Law, approves the agenda of June 9, 2020. 
 
Motion for approval by _______, seconded by _______, all in favor ____-____. 
 
2.  Presentations: 


• SWBR & Campus Construction 
 


a) Consent Agenda: 
A motion for approval of the following items  as listed under the CONSENT AGENDA is made by _______, and 
seconded by_______ any discussion- All in favor ___-___. 


 
b) Board of Education Meeting Minutes  


RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law, approves the Meeting Minutes of May 12, 2020. 
 
Board of Education Meeting Minutes  
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law, approves the Meeting Minutes of May 26, 2020. 
 


c) Treasurer Reports 
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law approves the Treasurer Reports for April 2020. 
 


d) Substitute Teachers and Substitute Service Personnel  
 RESOLUTION 


Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law approves the individuals named on the substitute lists, which are on file with 
the District Clerk. 
 


e) Adjust 2019-2020 School Year 
RESOLVED, that the North Rose-Wolcott School District Board of Education amends the 2019-2020 school 
calendar as follows: 


  
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Executive Orders 202.11, 202.14, 202.18, AND 202.28, the North Rose-Wolcott 
 School District continued to provide remote instruction for students, meals for students, and childcare for 
essential workers every weekday between, and including, April 1, 2020 and May 29, 2020, despite the fact the 







2 
 


District was scheduled to be on spring break during and to have an additional non-instructional day during that 
time; and   
  
 WHEREAS, the North Rose-Wolcott School District was in session, and provided the remote instruction and 
services referenced above on April 6 - 10, 2020 (spring recess) including April 10, 2020 (Good Friday), April 13, 
2020 (scheduled non-instructional day), and May 22, 2020 (scheduled non-instructional day).  Now therefore,  
  
 BE IT RESOLVED, that Wednesday, June 17, 2020 will be the last day of school for the 2019-2020 academic 
school year. 
 


f) Approve Change Order #GT-093 
RESOLUTION 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF THE NORTH ROSE-WOLCOTT CENTRAL SCHOOL             
DISTRICT that it hereby authorizes and approves Change Order No. GT-0093 the Change Proposals 
submitted by Fahs Construction Group, dated May 7, 2020 in the amount of $27,910.00. 
 


g) Transfer of Funds 
 Upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools, it is hereby Resolved that the sum of 
 $45,000.00 from the mandatory reserve fund established for this purpose be applied to pay down principal 
 on the District's outstanding debt that financed improvements to the Florentine-Hendrick Elementary 
 School and that the Board of Education authorizes the inter-account transfer of funds to accomplish this 
 payment. 


 
h) Reasonable Assurance Letters 


RESOLUTION 
 Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
 pursuant to Education Law, authorizes the Assistant Superintendent for Business and Operations to 
 transmit reasonable assurance letters in compliance with Federal Unemployment Act enacted under Public 
 Law 94-566, to all eligible and active employees for the 2020-2021 school year, commencing on July 1, 
 2020 and ending June 30, 2021. 


 
i) Personnel Items: 


1. Correction - Letter of Intent to Retire-John O’Brien 
        RESOLUTION 


       Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and    
       pursuant to Education Law accepts the resignation for the purpose of retirement from John O’Brien as    
       Technology Teacher effective July 1, 2020 June 30, 2020.  


 
2. Letter of Resignation –Elizabeth Ferguson 


Elizabeth Ferguson, Cook, has submitted a letter of resignation. 
 
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law accepts the letter of resignation from Elizabeth Ferguson as a Cook, 
effective June 9, 2020. 
 


3. Appoint Maintenance Worker – Anthony Vezzose 
Daniel Friday recommends Anthony Vezzose to the position of Maintenance Worker. 
 
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law, approves the 52 week probationary appointment of Anthony Vezzose as a 
Maintenance Worker, conditional upon a criminal history record check according to Commissioners 







3 
 


Regulation §80-1.11 and Part 87 as follows: 
         Probationary Period: June 15, 2020-June 14, 2021 
         Salary: $11.80/hr. 


 
4. Appoint Maintenance Worker – Kristina Fillmore 


Daniel Friday recommends Kristina Fillmore to the position of Maintenance Worker. 
 
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law, approves the 52 week probationary appointment of Kristina Fillmore as a 
Maintenance Worker, conditional upon a criminal history record check according to Commissioners 
Regulation §80-1.11 and Part 87 as follows: 


         Probationary Period: July 1, 2020-June 30, 2021 
         Salary: $13.23/hr. 
 


5. Appoint Transportation Supervisor – Jeremy Barnes  
                  Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools  
                  and pursuant to Education Law, approves the 26 week probationary appointment of Jeremy Barnes        
       as Transportation Supervisor, conditional upon a criminal history record check according to  
                  Commissioners Regulation §80 1.11 and Part 87 as follows: 
 
                  Probationary Period: July 1, 2020-Decemeber 29, 2020 
                  Salary: Contract is on file with the District Clerk 
 


6. Appoint Elementary School Parent Liaison 
RESOLUTION 


 Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
 pursuant to Education Law, approves the appointment of Samantha Gardner, Elementary School Parent 
 Liaison at $13.00/hr. for the 2020-2021 school year.  
 
7. Appoint  High School Parent Liaison – Jessica Graham 


RESOLUTION 
        Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and    
                      pursuant to Education Law, approves the appointment of Jessica Graham, Parent Liaison at   
                      $12.00/hr. 7/1/20-12/30/20, $12.50/hr. 12/31/20-6/30/21 for the 2020-2021 school year. 
 


8. Appoint K-12 Home/School Liaison 
The K-12 Home School Liaison will help establish better communication between our schools and   
homes while reinforcing the importance of higher achievement of all students.  
 
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law, approves the appointment of Irene Interlichia as Home/School Liaison at 
$40.00/hr. for the 2020-21 school year to be funded from the McKinney-Vento Homeless Education 
Assistance Grant. 


 
9. Program Appointments 
       The following individuals are being recommended to work in enrichment programs that are funded by    
       grants. 


 
        RESOLUTION 
        Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and     
        pursuant to Education Law, approves the following individuals to work various enrichment programs    







4 
 


        during the 2020-2021 school year  conditional upon a criminal history record check according to  
        Commissioners   Regulation §80-1.11 and    Part 87.  


 
Staff Position $/Hr. 
Michael Sontheim Grant Program Teacher $30.00 
Nicholas Wojieck Grant Program Teacher $30.00 
Patricia Weber Grant Program Teacher $30.00 
Kailea Nelson Grant Program Teacher $30.00 
Brian LaValley Grant Program Teacher $30.00 
Jordan Camp Grant Program Teacher $30.00 
David Hahn Grant Program Teacher $30.00 
Samuel Halfman Grant Program Teacher $30.00 
Joanna Samar Grant Program Teacher $30.00 
Lucia Copeland Grant Program Teacher $30.00 
Melissa Mason Grant Program Teacher $30.00 
Christine Schwind Grant Program Teacher $30.00 
Julie Norris Grant Program Teacher $30.00 
Cathy LaValley Grant Program Teacher $30.00 
Michele Bartholomew Grant Program Teacher $30.00 
Sarah Demaray Grant Program Teacher $30.00 
Wendy Hawkinson Grant Program Teacher $30.00 
Michael Grasso Grant Program Teacher $30.00 
Erin Moses Grant Program Teacher $30.00 
Alice Cona Grant Program Teacher $30.00 
Sarah Patterson  Grant Program Teacher $30.00 
Cary Merritt Grant Program Teacher $30.00 
Greg Matkosky Grant Program Teacher $30.00 
Alison Maloney Grant Program Teacher $30.00 
Karen Haak Grant Program Teacher $30.00 
Megan Pentycofe Grant Program Teacher $30.00 
Laura Brown Grant Program Teacher $30.00 
Elaine Eckam Grant Program Teacher $30.00 
Ashleigh Gerstner Grant Program Teacher $30.00 
Joseph O’Neil Grant Program Teacher $30.00 
Maureen Mahoney Grant Program Teacher $30.00 
George Wetherell Grant Program Teacher $30.00 
Pamela Brooks Grant Program Teacher $30.00 
Susan Lasher Grant Program Teacher Assistant $13.50 
Jennifer McKown Grant Program Aide $13.90  
Stephanie Kerr Grant Program Aide $11.80 7/1/20-12/30/20 


12.50 12/31/20-6/30/21 
Cindy O’Dell Grant Program Aide $13.24 
Sundra Besaw Grant Program Aide $13.24 
Keisha Laird Grant Program Aide $12.60 
Karena Anderson Grant Program Aide $12.60 


 
 


10. Revised Appoint Chairperson for Annual Budget Vote and Election of Board Members 
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law, approves the appointment of Chelsey Palmer as the Chairperson of the 
Annual Budget Vote and Election of Board Members on June 916, 2020. 







5 
 


 
11. Revised Election Workers for the Annual Budget Vote and Election of Board Members  


Approval of the following individuals to work at the Annual Budget Vote and Election of Board 
Members. 
 


 RESOLUTION 
          Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
          pursuant to Education Law, approves the following individuals to work at the June 916, 2020 Annual 


Budget Vote and Election of Board Members to serve as Inspectors of Election and Assistant Clerks, pay 
is per the NRWSEA contract. 


       
                  Name     Name  
 Cody Lapp  Lisa Williams 
                 Amy Shear   Brandy Starczewski  
 Chelsey Palmer  Carrie Brown 
 Lois Sheffield  Nicholas Porter 


 
12. Revised Election Workers for the Annual Budget Vote and Election of Board Members  


Approval of the following individuals to work at the Annual Budget Vote and Election of Board 
Members. 
 


 RESOLUTION 
          Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 


        pursuant to Education Law, approves the following individuals to work at the June 916, 2020        
        Annual Budget Vote and Election of Board Members to serve as Inspectors of Election, and Assistant  
       Clerks at $11.80per hr.       
 


                  Name    Name     
 Jessica  Graham  William Fisher 
 


13. Revised Election Workers for the Annual Budget Vote and Election of Board Members  
Approval of the following individuals to work at the Annual Budget Vote and Election of Board 
Members. 
 


 RESOLUTION 
          Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
          pursuant to Education Law, approves the following individuals to work at the June 916, 2020,  


       Annual Budget Vote and Election of Board Members to serve as Inspectors of Election, and Assistant    
       Clerks at $23.48 per hr.       
 


                  Name         
 Melanie Geil  


 
j) Policies  
A motion for approval of the following items as listed under Policies is made by _______, and seconded by_______ any 
discussion- All in favor ___-___. 
 
k) Approval of Policies 


 
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law approves the following new and/or revised policies: 
 







6 
 


1000 Bylaws  
1510 Regular Board Meetings & Rules (Quorum and Parliamentary Procedure) Revised 
5000 Non-Instructional/Business Operations  
5140 Administration of the Budget Revised 
5675 Student Grading Information Systems Revised 
5676 Privacy and Security for Student Data and Teacher and Principal Data New 
6000 Personnel  
6180 Staff-Student Relations (Fraternization) Revised 
7000 Students  
7130 Entitlement to Attend – Age and Residency Revised 
7133 Education of Students in Temporary Housing Revised 
7134 Education of Students in Foster Care New 
7240 Student Records – Access and Challenge Revised 
7242 Military Recruiters and Institutions of Higher Education Revised 
7260 Designation of Persona in Parental Relation Revised 
7410 Extra Curricular Activities Revised 
7512 Student Physicals Revised 
7513 Medication and Personal Care Items Revised 
7521 Students with Life-Threatening Health Conditions Revised 
7522 Concussion Management Revised 
7530 Child Abuse and Maltreatment Revised 
7550 Dignity for All Students Revised 
7690 Special Education Mediation Revised 
8000 Instruction  
8230 Instruction in Certain Subjects Revised 
 


3.  Other:  (Time Permitting) 
 Board Discussions 


 
 
Motion for Adjournment: 
 
There being no further business or discussion, a motion is requested adjourn the regular meeting. 
 
Motion for approval by ______, seconded by ______, with motion approved ____-____.   
Time adjourned: ___:___ p.m. 
 








Community Schools Administrator 
Bridgette Barr 
BOE Update - June 9th, 2020 
 
Focus Area 1: Multi-Tiered Systems of Supports 
Focus Area 3: Community Engagement  
 
Emergency Feeding Program - Since Monday, May 11th, the district has been delivering breakfast and lunch to all 
students in the district on Mondays, Wednesdays and Fridays. As the weather has gotten warmer, we have moved 
delivery to earlier in the morning, beginning at 8 am. The Emergency Feeding Program will continue after the school 
year ends on June 17th. We are in the process of hiring summer food service, delivery, and transportation staff to 
continue the program uninterrupted. The program will take a brief pause the week of June 26th and will resume for the 
remainder of the summer.  
 
Meal Distribution Numbers: 


- Week of 6/1: 1046 students served daily 
6 families are receiving support from both the Cougar Cupboard and the Emergency Meal program 


 
Focus Area 1: Multi-Tiered Systems of Supports 
Focus Area 2: Curriculum 
Focus Area 3: Community Engagement  
 
K - 8 Summer Learning Academy sponsored by the 21st Century Grant - a survey was shared with parents to determine 
if they would like their child to participate in summer learning. Options included paper packets, daily video instruction, 
video instruction 2 - 3 times a week, video instruction weekly, enrichment projects and/or video social groups. I am in 
the process of interviewing to staff the online program, which will begin July 6th.  
 







K-6 Summer Escape and 7-12 Summer LIFT - Virtual enrichment opportunities for students will be offered to students in 
grades K-6. Teachers offering workshops will have the option to host their workshop via Google Meet at a scheduled 
time each week or record the instructions for students to access through Google Classroom at their convenience. Many 
high school students have expressed an interest in having flexibility in workshop times in order to have the opportunity 
to have a summer job as well as participate in the program. In this way, having a virtual program will allow us to meet 
the needs of more students. If a workshop requires material, we will be creating kits to provide to students who 
participate in the course. Additionally, we are partnering with our consortium districts (CS, Lyons, RC and Sodus) to 
open certain workshops to all students when possible (for example, we may host a Magic, the Gathering virtual 
tournament and invite the other school districts to participate, or Clyde-Savannah may host a weekly trivia night that 
our students can participate in). In this way, we can offer a broader spectrum of opportunities for our students and 
increase participation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 


-  








North Rose-Wolcott Elementary  
 
Melissa Pietricola 
Board of Education Report - June 2, 2020 
 
Upcoming Events:  


● June 15th - Grade 4 Moving Up celebratory delivery of certificates 
  


 
Strategic Action Plan Goals:  
 
1-By June 2019, all students taking a state assessment will be proficient (3 or 4, 65 or higher). 
2-By June 2019, each student who has achieved mastery will maintain mastery, and the percentage of new students achieving 
mastery will increase. 
3-By June 2019, by the end of second grade, all students will read at or above grade level. 
4- We will increase students’ participation in STEAM courses by 10% per year.  
 
 


Tenet 2 Building 
Leadership & 
Capacity  


SAP Goal(s) 
Connection   


Action Steps 


Goals 1, 2, 3   Staff have continued to participate in different virtual professional development activities 
this past month. Many are taking advantage of a rich offering available through our 
BOCES connections.  


Goal 1, 2, 3  Members of our school leadership team and instructional coaches are currently working 
hard to develop locally offered professional development this summer aligned with the 
District’s goals. We’re excited to see such a rich menu of choices to help our teachers 
prepare for whatever the fall may hold.  







 
 


Tenet 3 Curriculum 
Development & 
Support 


SAP Goal(s) 
Connection   


Action Steps 


Goals 1, 2, 3  Our  weekly check-in meetings have taken on a new purpose- all of our NRWE teachers 
are busy tackling their Next Generation standards for ELA and math. Teachers meet 
weekly for 45 minutes with a teacher leader/facilitator and work through unpacking a NYS 
standard collaboratively.  
 
“Unpacking” is a technique teachers use to make sense of key standards within their 
curriculum. They break them down and identify actionable learning targets for students. 
It can also be called deconstructing or unwrapping. The process encourages staff to be 
collaborative and efficient with their planning.  This work also fosters ownership over 
curriculum maps and is a key part of the larger process of building a cohesive and 
comprehensive curriculum.  


 
 


Tenet 4 Teacher 
Practices & 
Decisions  


SAP Goal(s) 
Connection   


Action Steps 


Goals 1, 2, 3  Teachers have been given the opportunity to create  professional development plans for 
the summer using BOCES and district level offerings.  In addition to the continuation of 
prioritization of standards, teachers will engage in learning around digital resources, 
multi-disciplinary lessons, and connecting students through Social-Emotional Learning 
in a digital environment, to name a few. 


 
 
 







Tenet 5 Student 
Social & Emotional 
Developmental 
Health 


SAP Goal(s) 
Connection   


Action Steps 


   Our MTSS mental health support team continues to meet weekly and review staff 
members’ participation data for each student UPK-4 at NRWE. We have flagged students 
to begin planning for our fall return, as well. We know some students will need extra 
support upon return to school, and others will need special scaffolding if we continue in a 
digital format. We are continually impressed by how hard our students, families and staff 
are working in this challenging learning environment.  
 
The Restorative Justice team has done some preliminary work on our 20-21 Restorative 
Justice Plan.  The plan outlines continued support through Social-Emotional Learning and 
Restorative Practices.  We will be using summer PD time to look at ways to bridge this 
work into digital formats.   
 
Leadership has recently completed professional development focused on embedding SEL 
practices into content areas.  We have begun this work using our current P2 program 
which has 31 character strength focus areas. Our instructional coaches and library teacher 
are working on developing a character strength book list, as well as content based 
resources pages that support the character strengths development during ELA and math 
instruction. 


 


Tenet 6 Family & 
Community 
Engagement 


SAP Goal(s) 
Connection  


Action Steps 


Goal 1  Our leadership is working with the Cougar Pride Parent group and our parent liaison, 
Samantha Gardner, to review what role community members can have on our curriculum 
and social-emotional health committees. This is a complex process that requires careful 
planning and teamwork. We’ll continue to reflect over the summer and work out a plan to 
increase participation by our community in the fall.  


 







Here is a word cloud NRWE teachers created to capture the feelings around this journey. 





